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130 years of progress



130 years of progress

TClarke designs, installs, integrates and maintains the full range of
mechanical and electrical services and the digital infrastructure to
create a 2lst century building.

Across the country, our directly employed teams lead the industry
for quality and safety. Our focus is on being the partner of choice
in each of the specialist areas we work in - and, equally, on the
retention and enhancement of our traditional reputation for value,
trustworthiness and programme delivery.
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Financial highlights

Record revenue and improving
margins underpin a 24% growth
IN earnings per share.

Group revenue Underlying operating margin

£520.8m 2.7%

Underlying operating profit
before tax and interest Profit before tax

£3.8m £/.8m

Underlying earnings pershare  Dividend

15.38p 4Op

Forward order book Net cash

£411.0m £12.4m

For further information see Group financial review
on page 20.
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Chairman’s
introduction

2018 was a very successful year for
TClarke, showing improvement acress
all key financial measures and we
ended the year debt free.

I am pleased to welcome Louise Dier to
the Board. Louise brings extensive
business experience and perspective and
15 a significant addition to our organisation.

The Group is well placed to meet its
financial objective of a sustainable

3% operating margin in 2019. Our
order book stands at record levels and
profit and earnings per share continue
to grow. As a result, the Beard is
reccmmending a total dividend of 4.0p
for the full year, an increase of 14% aver
2017. The Group rernains committed
to a progressive dividend policy.

TClarke is 130 years old in 2019 and

our continued success is something

to celebrate. This alignment of 2 long
heritage with sohd optimism for future
performance is due both to the qualities
and engineering capabilities of our
people and to the continued support
of our customers and supply chain.

| would like to take this opportunity to
thank each one of them for helping to
make the TClarke brand so strong in
the marketplace. As was true in 1889,
TClarke people and relationships

are our defining advantage.

lain McCusker
Chairman
26th March 2019
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profitable growth

Objective

How we will achieve it

2018 achievement highlights

1

3% sustained OQurbusiness will focus on our five core target

operating
margin

markets through successful targeted tendering and

operational efficiency.

Operating margin of 2.7%, up from 2.3%
in 2017

2

Increase
technology
market share

Our integrated services offering features market-
leading in-house tachnologies capabilities. It also
differentiates our offer and increases the value we

provide and receive in return.

Major projects wins at Battersea Power
Station, IQL, data centres and for global
digital companies

Continued market leadership of Scottish
integrated residential services

Successful integration of Eton Associates
Successful Climate Controls launch
Capability of Stansted facility demonstrated

3

Remain
contractor of
choice for
landmark
projects

There is a substantial premium market of major
Londen projects and their complexity and scale
means few can deliver the same quality of work,
depth of resource and integrated services offering

as TClarke.

We witl continue to target and deliver this work and
increase our market and engineering leadership.

One Bank Street, London
Battersea Power Station

22 Bishopsgate, London

100 Bishopsgate, Lendon
150 Bishopsgate, London
International Quarter London
Southbank Place, London
Westtield, London

A

Sustainable
balanced
business

We balance our business by strategic management
of cur order book with a blend of existing markets
of M & E, Infrastructure and Residenual, renewing
FM contracts and new markets such as Technologies.

FM centre of excellence in Birmingham
opened

Manchester Airport Group framework
ESFA Schools Framewerk ongoing
2,545 new homes in Scotland

5

Build long-
term lasting
relationships

We will continue to grow, supporting principal
contractors and our clients, working on major

projects across the UK, leveraging the guality of our
regional resources and national brand reputation.

88% of turnover in 2018 was with
repeat clients
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Business model and investor case

Strategic business model

Our strategic advantages give us market leadership. Our service mix
allows us to deliver value at each stage of the project. Our delivery
is underpinned by our core values, known as the TClarke Way.

Our competitive
advantage

People

We employ expert professional
engineering staff and operatives and
run industry-leading apprenticeship
and future leader schemes to sustain
our talent pipeline.

Relationships

We focus on building long-term
relationships with principal
contractors and clients.

Nationwide coverage

We cover the whole of mainland UK
with 19 offices to serve ourclients in
local and regional markets. We have
the capability to deliver international
projects where the opportunity
meets our business goals.

Integrated services and technology
We offer integrated and comglete
building services. We are a high-
technology business and leaders in
the delivery of complex installations,
prefabrication, Design for Manufacture
and Assembly (DIMA)and new

digital technologies.

Reputation

Our perfermance maintains our
brand reputation for safety, delivery
and quality.

What
we do

Design

We design and value engineer
systerns, drawing on our expertise to

provide intelligent building solutions.

Procure

We add value through expert
procurement of equipment,
materials, services and expertise
across the life of 2 project.

Install

We employ highly quatified and
experienced in-house engineering
teams of professionals and
operatives to install and deliver our
solutions and services.

Maintain

Cur in-house teams deliver
specialist mechanical, electrical
and digital infrastructure
maintenance services to support
the angoing functicning

of a building through its lifecycle.

Value created for
our stakeholders

Shareholders
Increase in proposed total dividend
for 2018 of 14%.

Customers

Total reliability in project delivery,
quality and safety alongside high
technical skills.

Employees

Industry-leading career paths and
project work to take pride in.

203 apprentices intraining in 2018.

Partners

A collaborative and open approach
to work which maximises value,
efficiency and praductivity.

Society

Delivery of high quality built
environments across the UK.
Support for local and the wider
community in which we work.
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Chief Executive’s report

Future focused

Our focus on sustained margin growth
provides clarity across our operations and
guides our decision-making and appetite
for risk.

| am very pleased that we reach our
130th anniversary in a position of
strength and optimism. We have had
a fantastic year, beating market
expectations on revenue, profitand
dividend, with all our businesses
profitable and we ended the year
debtfree.

The 2018 results vindicate our
strategy, which is for ‘Growth, based
on a complete and integrated
services offering, that targets margin
improvement”. This integrated offer
is attracting demand because, in
plain terms, it de-risks increasingly
complex construction programmas
and helps clients meet their targets.

The trend for major projects to become
more complex is permanent. This 1s not
just a question of increased application
and integration of digital and data
technologies to make a building
‘smart”. It is equally a matter of ever
increasing envircnmental standards
being targeted. Qverall, end users
want their buildings to achieve more
and they also want the fastest possible
programmes to be delivered safely. All
of this increases market demand for
specialist contractors such as TClarke.

indeed, it is the strength of market
demand for our offer that has led
ustc open new TClarke offices in
Manchester and Liverpool, taking our
tatal number of locations across the



UK to 19. These were not speculative
exercises. Looking at the markets in
both of those cities, we see substantial
growth oppertunities. We have also
received the direct encouragement
of long-term partners and customers
who want to access our services there.

It is market demand which has
driven such substantial growth
across our Technologies businasses
and allowed us to introduce new
specialisms like Climate Cantrols
with immediate success. In 2018

wea have seen that demand feeding
through to orders, completed
proiects and improved margins.

For example, towards the end of the
year, a key element of cur integrated
Technologies offer - our new offsite
manufacturing facility at Stansted
-was instrumental in helging us

win our largest ever mechanical
project at Kings Cross, London.

QOur focus on sustained margin growth
provides clarity across our operations
and guides our decision-making and
appetite for risk. We target the work that
is right for us, we focus our resources
for the benefit of our clients and our
people deliver high quality work, safely.
2018 has been the first full year in which
we've had the whole business working
on common operating systems and
pracedures, following the successful

07

Group reorganisation. The work
undertaken in recent years to achieve
this common Group operating system
has helped underpin all the progress
made in 2018 - whether that be in
allowing us to open new offices orin
supporting so many successful tenders,

TClarke's well known commitment to
full-time jobs, our rocts in cur local
communities across the UK and our
commitment to apprenticeships,
decade by decade, means we have

a significant, highly skilled and loyal
UK based workforce. In 2018 we
successfully introduced our Future
lLeaders programme to further secure
our talent pool going forward.
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Chief Executive’s report continued

TClarke knows how to retain customers
through quality work and services and our
2018 numbers reflect that.

in 2018, the UK Government confirmed
that the "Social Value' created from
public sector procurement would
become a required’ element from
summer 2019. Thisis a trend with
growing impact in the private sector
too. For organisations like TClarke,
which deliver substantial, measurable
social value, this is a positive trend which
will further enhance our market appeal.

It has been very pleasing to see
TClarke's name associated with
excellent projects that are really
helping to build a better Britain: major
infrastructure projects like Stanmore
Hospital, Bank Underground Station
and the £8 billion ESFA school building
programmes; Dyson’s campus

expansion in Wiltshire, Virtus Data
Centre in Slough and the new John
Lewis stores in Cheltenham and
Westfield London. Cur residential
business goes from strength to strength
and in Scotland we delivered 2,545
new homes in 2018. In so many cases
these are customers coming back

to TClarke, time and again. TClarke
works hard to retain customers
through quality work and service
and our 2018 numbers reflect that.

In London, where, according to
Deloitte's fatest 'London Office Crane
Survey’ there are currently around
11.8m sq ft of prime commercial
space under construction, 2018 saw
us involved in many of those landmark

schemes. We were delighted to see one
of our landmark projects, Bloomberg
London, winning the RiBA Stirling Prize
in 2018. We were equally delighted at
the continued growth of our Mechanical
and Engineering business to the point
where we are delivering and winning
majar projects like Scuthbank Place

and at the Internaticnal Cuarter
London #QL} on a regular basis.

ltis impaortant to note that, despite
concerns around the impact of Brexit,
our core London M&E market’s
confidence remains solid. At the end
of 2018, the City of London released
details of a further round of major
developments in the City's eastern
cluster and a vision for the skyline in



2026. Although short-term uncertainties
may persist, the underlying confidence
is evident in our developer and

principal contractor client base.

Our acquisition and successful
integration of Eton Associates is
important to note for two reasons.
Firstly, Eton expanded our Technologies
capability and deepened market
confidence in our integrated services
proposition. Secondly, Eton's
effective embedding within the
business is another demonstration
that the Group systems are effective.
Eton has rapidly become a highly
valuable part of TClarke.

130 years ago, Tommy Clarke set up
shop in Knightsbridge, London. ftwas a
venture into the great new technology
of the age - electricity. | think he would
be proud to see the company that bears
his name as an industry leader in the
new technologies of our age - and still
retaining the same focus on committed
people with deep expertise doing the
best job possible, which he established.

| conclude by restating cur continued
commitment to health, safety and
wellbeing, above and beyond
everything else. | am very proud

to see cur Mindfulness classes so

well attended and lock forward to

the programme being rolied out
nationwide. | am also very proud of the

09

wark our people and our health and
safety teams do to make safety our
number cne priority and front of mind
wherever we work, on a daily basis.

That will always be the case at TClarke;
just like the commitment to high quality
work, itis central to who we are.

Mark Lawrence
Group Chief Executive Officer
26th March 2019
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Infrastructure

Work on major transport,
healthcare, education, prison
and defence projects across
the country, ensures balance
in our order book, as we
achieve our strategic goals.

When M&E markets and landmark projects are on a
downcycele, governments tend to increase spending in
infrastructure. So our capabilities to work across the
infrastructure sectors are a key strategic advantage.

TClarke has a proven in-house infrastructure team and
over the years we have aiso developed additional
services and capabilities. For example, for healthcare
clients we have a turnkey design and build service for
scanning suites, supported by a healthcare controls
manufacturing operation and partnerships with
world-leading healthcare equipment manufacturers.

Examples of work undertaken in 2018 are:

Bank Station, London capacity upgrade design
Paddington Bakerloo line link

BMI The Alexandra Hospital turnkey works
HMP Leeds

RAF Mildenhall

Luton Airport Fire Station

Siemens Plc Healthcare, panel builds

* ® & & & & @

2018 revenue

£559m

Forward order book

£65.1m



“Winning Taylor Woodrow's ‘Defect Free Award’
this year for our innovative quality standards and
guidance materials, demonstrated the energy
our frontline teams put into pushing high quality
standards forward even further.”

Robin Aves
Divisional Director, Infrastructure

1
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Residential &
Accommodation

Across the UK, we are active 2018revenue
in the residential, hotel and

student accommodation £3-| -l m
marketplace. In Scotland,

we lead as a ‘one-stop shop/,

partnering quality home-

builders.

There is strong market appetite for cur expertise in
this sector. As part of our margin-targeting strategy,
we operate a consistently selective approach to
residential projects, showing more caution in respect
of high-end, luxury residential fit outs and focusing

more often on the shell and core aspects of these

projects, where we prefer the risk-profile. £9 6 . 2| I l
At the same time, we also favour the development of

effective long-term partnerships and so take on

growth opportunities with confidence. Our

partnership with the Berkeley Homes Group in North

London, leading to potential new cpportunities in
ather geographic areas, was a strong example of this

in 2018.

Forward order book

North of the border, our Scottish business Is the
leading provider of complete building services for
home-builders. This is an innovative, in-house, high
quality service, in which the market places great vatue.

Examples of work undertaken across the UK in 2018 are:
The Peninsula Hotel, London

150 Bishcpsgate, London - residential fit out
Beaufort Park, Lendon

The Crescent, Edinburgh

One Nine Elms, London

Pegasus Life, Portishead and Falmouth

* & ¢ & B



“l can tell, just by looking atthe property, if
TClarke did the job. The quality that our people
consistently achieve is phenomenal - and you can
see that in the annual crop of NHBC awards we
help win.”

Gary Jackson
Managing Director, TClarke Scotland

13
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Technologies

We see substantial growth 2018 revenue

opportunities within this £42 9m

sector and the plans we
have laid are delivering value:
TClarke is a market leader
with critical advantages.

Building services increasingly involve or are driven by
digital technologies and so we have made it cur
objective to lead in this area. Inthe past we partnered
with banking and financial institutions; now we partner
some of the world's biggest digital organisations.
Forward order book
Our technotogies offer also includes our offsite
manufacturing facility at Stansted where vast 6-10 £53 7m
metre prefabricated modules contaming mechanical .
and electrical services and pre-wired and pre-plumbed
equipment can be precision manufactured in safe,
clean conditions and broughttogether onsite. This
dedicated capability has been key to winning and
delivering various landmark projects during the year.

As well as building data and Wi-Fi infrastructures,
we are also integrators, bringing alt of the buildings’
systemns together as connected and responsive
devices to optimise building performance. Our
software engineers wrote the code to drive the
innovative ‘breathable building’ concept at Stirling
Prize Winner, Bloomberg London. They have also
designed and are installing the Wi-Fi network at

22 Bishopsgate. Other examples of work undertaken
in 2018 are:

* Virtus London Data Centre

* Giobal Switch fit out, London

* |nterxion Data Centre LON3

* One Bank Street, Canary Whart

¢+ EDF Energy, Dungeness

* Deepminds, Project Kings Cross, London



"Our strategy is to grow our Technologies
business and become an acknowledged market
leader. We see strong opportunities for growth
and margins as this sector continues to expand.”

Mark Lawrence
Group Chief Executive

15
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M&E Contracting

“We have brought the TClarke brand into
Manchester and Liverpool with efficiency,
purpose and impact - and in both cases, now
is the ideal time to enter these markets.”

Kevin Mullen
Managing Director, TClarke North
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M&E Contracting is our core
market nationwide. We
focus on landmark projects,
working for long-term
partners and principal
contractors who value the
advantages we bring.

As a specialist building services contractor, our core
offer is the design and installation of all the power,
water, waste and chmate control services that a
building needs. We offer those services nationwide
and, in line with cur margin focus, we are selective in
the projects for which we tender and the principal
contractors with whom we work,

Cur integrated services offer gives us a strong market
position and we win and deliver more than our share
of major projects. This, in turn, builds our skillbase and
helps us to achieve very strong staff retention rates
and the scale of resource our clients want.

in 2018, our move into Manchester and Liverpool has
been smooth and productive. In each case the
substantial scale of appropriate M&E opportunities
and the encouragement of long-term partners has
driven the decision to enter those markets.

Examples of work undertaken in 2018 are:
* 22 Bishopsgate, London

* KGX1 Praject, Kings Cross, Londaon

* Battersea Power Station Phase 2, London
* Hanover Square, London

* Dyson Hangar 85, Wiltshire

¢ Plymouth History Centre, Plymouth

2018 revenue Forward order book

£174.25m £188.1m
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Facilities
Management

We are specialists in 2018 revenue

Facilities Management, £27 6m

targeting long-term
relationships and major
framework agreements.

We are proud to enjoy a number of key long-term FM
relationships. These include Springfield Nuclear Fuels,
BAE Systems, EDF at Dungeness and Sizewell and
across US airbases in East Anglia. Across our regions
we also deliver reqular FM services where these meet
our value model and our Birmingham office is a centre
of excellence in FM for a variety of commercial ang
industrial clients.

We also target major framework agreements in both £79 I I l

public and private sectors. Qur position on the
Manchester Airport Group, NHS Procure 22 and ESFA
Schools Framework are all strategically significant for
our business.

Forward order book

Other examples of work undertaken in 2018 are:
* BUPA Care Homes

¢ Feniand District Council, Cambridgeshire

¢ The Gym Group

» Cormnwall Council

* PepsiCo, Leicester

* tmerys Minerals Limited

Itis worthy of note that FM, as a sector, offers less
forward visibility than our traditional M&E markets,
often involving unplanned need, but delivers
reCU!’!’iﬁg revenue.



“We build deep knowledge and expertise during
design and installation. We lead in the digital
infrastructure technologies that are increasingly
prevalent. This gives us substantial advantages
when it comes to maintaining alf those systems.”

Mike Crowder
Group Managing Director

19
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Group financial review

* Underlying operating profit up 21% to
£8.8 million

* All regions profitable

* Underlying operating margin up to 2.7%, on

way to achieving the strategic target of 3%
* Underlying earnings per share up 24% to

15.38p per share
* Dividend increased by 14%

* Debt free, strong cash balance at year end

Summary of financial performance

2018 2017
£m in

Revenue 326.8 3.2

Operating profit

- Underlying? 8.8 7.3

- Reported 8.6 79

Profit before tax

- Underlying® 8.0 6.5

- Reported 7.8 71

Profit after tax

- Underlying® 6.4 5.2

- Reported 6.2 56

Profit for the year 6.2 5.6

Earnings per share

- Underlying? 15.38p 12.37p

- Reported 14.99p 13.44p

Dividend per share 4.0p 3.5p

1 Unuaerlying operat ng proht, protit pefore tax and operat ng margin are statea nefore amorsation of

ntangrble assets ana non-underlying items - see rote 7 1o the financial statemeants.

2 Unoerlying carrings per share is calculated by doaiding unoerlyng proht after tax oy the weinhted average

namber of shares noss.e

Trevor Mitchell
Finance Director

2018 Underlying Group performance
The Group's underlying performance
tor the year ended 31st December

2018 was strong, with both revenue

and profit being slightly ehead of the
Group's upgraded trading update on
27th November 2018. Revenue rose

by 5% to £326.8 million far the year
{2017: £311.2 millien). Group underlying
operating profitincreased by £1.5 million
to £8.8 million. Alt businesses were
profitable with the Central and South
West region recording an operating
profit of £1.8 million compared 1o a

loss in 2017 of £1.8 million. London

and Scuth East remains the core of

the business, delivering an underlying
profit of £7.2 million, a 3.7% margin.

The Group has a medium-term
target of a 3% underlying operating
margin. Good progress has been
made towards this with the 2018
margin rising to 2.7% (2017 2.3%).

We move into 2019 with a forward
order book at a record £411 million
{2017: £337 million) providing
excellent revenue visibility. Year
end cash was £12.4 million (2017
net cash £11.7 miltion) with the
Group being free of any debt.

Technology revenue in 2018
trebled when compared to 2017.
Improving our technelogy market
share Is a core strategic objective.



2018 Revenue by region

2018 Underlying operating profit
by region

2018 Underlying operating margin
by region

Lendon and South East

Revenue from our London and Scuth
East operations increased by 11% to
£196.5 million (2017 £177.6 million),
generating an underlying profit

of £7.2 million {2017: £8.5 million).
Underlying operating margin was
37% (2017, 4.8%). 2017 saw a large
number of projects completing in the
year, releasing significant profits.

For 2019 the region is engaged on

a number of high-profile shell and
care commercial developments,

all of which offer future fit out
opportunities. A number of areas
continue to be regenerated and
offer large-scale mixed commercial
and residential opportunities such
as the International Quarter London,
Battersea Power Station, Kings Cross
and the area of Bishopsgate, London.

Central and South West

Revenue from our Central and Scuth
West operations increased by 17%
to £73.0 million (2017: £62.6 million).
Underlying profitwas £1.8 million
{2017: foss £1.8 million). South

West returned to profitability after
more than doubling turnover and
delivering high quality projects

In the Central area we cantinue
to target opporturities in the
residential, retail and FM markets.
In particular, we have established
an FM operation in Birmingham.

North

Revenue reduced by 25% to

£36.1 million {2017: £48.0 million),
and underlying operating profit
reduced to £2.0 million {2017

£2.4 millien}. Underlying operating
margin remaimad strong at 5.5%
(2017: 5.0%) as a result of an excellent
performance from the Leads office
due to the successful delivery of a
number of educational projects and
a growing small works offering.

Looking forward, we have very recently
opened new offices in Manchester and

21

Liverpool and already have a number
of exciting opportunities. Leeds
continues to see oppaortunites fromits
relationships. notabty m education and
other public sectors such as prisons

Scotland

Scotland'’s revenue was £21.2 million
{2017: £23.0 million}, and underlying
operating profitwas £0.8 million

(2017: £0.8 million}, representing an
underlying operating margin of 3.8%
{2017: 3.5%). Scotland’s continued
strong performance was due in partto
its collaboration on Inteligent Buildings
with the London operation. As well as
Its continuing strength in the residential
market, Scotland has generated
significant IT, mechanical and electrical
workstreams in the commercial sector,

There remains a good level of
opportunity in and around the
Scottish central belt and further afield
in key Scottish towns where we have
a presence, such as Aberdeen

and Dumfries.

Non-underlying items
Non-underlying items (£0.2 million}
comprise a net recovery of
misappropriation of funds that occurred
in 2016 of £0.9 million, offset by
settlement costs of the former Group
Finance Director {£0.3 million) and
Group reorganisatian costs (£0.6 million}.
In addition, amortisation of intangible
assets totalled £0.2 million.

Finance costs

Net finance costs were £0.8 million
(2017 £0.8 million}, including a

£0.6 million {2017- £0.6 million) non-
cash finance charge in respect of

the Group's defined benefit pension
scheme. Net interest on bank facilities
remained at £0.2 million (2017

£0.2 million), reflecting good cash
perfarmance throughout the year.

Earnings per share

Reported earnings per share
increased to 1499 (2017: 13.44p).
Basic underlying earnings per share
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Group financial review continued

Underlying earnings per share

15.38p

Net cash

£12.4m

Dividend

4.Op

=ars 2018

after adjusting for amort'sation of
mtangible assets and non-underlying
costs and the tax effect of these
items, was 15.38p (2017: 12.37p).

Dividends

The Board is proposing a final
dividend of 3.34p (2017: 2.90p),
with the total dividend for the year
increasing by 14% to 4p (2017
3.5p). The dividend is covered 3.8
times by underlying earnings.

The final dividend will be paid, subject
to shareholder approval, on 24th May
2019 to those shareholders on the
register at 26th April 2019. The shares
will go ex-dividend on 25th April

2019. Adividend reinvestment plan
{DRIPY is available to shareholders.
For further details see page 118

Pension cbligations

The triennial valuation of the pension
scheme at 315t December 2015 showed
a deficit of £14.9 million, representing

Cash performance (£m)

afunding level of 67% 12012 valuat'on:
deficit £11.5 million, funding level 68%j.

The Group has Deen pursuing an
agreed deficit reduction plar over
anumber of years; however, market
factors have meant that the deficit has
not been reduced as ntended and

the cost of funding current pension
commitments has increased Following
agreement of the 2015 valuation, the
Group proposed a revised deficit
reduction plan which includes making
additional contributions and continuing
1o provide secunty to the pension
scheme in the form of a charge over
property assets up to a combined
market value of £3.1 million.

From 1st January 2017 the future
service contribution increased

to 21.4% of pensicnable payroll
{including employee contributions)
and the deficit reduction contribution
was set at £1.0 million for the year
ending 315t December 2017,



nsingto £1.25 milhon for the year
ending 31st December 2018 and
£1.5 milllon per annum thereafter,
Employee contributions have
increased from 8% to 10%.

The scheme s closed to new members
and the Group cantinues to meet its
ongoing obligations to the scheme.

In accordance with IAS 19 ' Employee
benefits’, an actuarnial income of

£0.6 million, net of tax, has been
recognised in reserves. with the pensian
scheme deficit falling by £0.4 million to
£23.0 million (2017: £23.4 millicn). This
liabifity iIncludes a £0.2 million charge
that has been expensed through the
consolidated income statement being
the estimate for the impact of GMP
equalisation for the above scheme.

Cash flow and funding

Net cash balances improved to

£12.4 million at 31st December
2018(2017: £11.7 million) after
deducting the £nil {2017: £3.0 million)
outstanding under the Group's
revolving credit faclity.

The Group has a £15.0 million revolving
credit facility, which is committed until
31st August 2022, and a £5.0 million
overdraftfacility, renewable annually.
Interest on overdrawn balancesis
charged at 2.0% above base rate,

and interest on balances drawn down
under the revolving credit facility is
charged at 1.7% above LIBOR, fixed

for the duration of each drawdown
{typically three to six months}. The
Group was compliant with the terms of
the facilities throughout the year ended
31st December 2018 and the Board's
detailed projections demonstrate

that the Group will continue to

meet its obligations in the future.

The Board's detailed cash flow
projections include an allowance for
the impact of a change in VAT regime
from 15t October 2019. From this
date the Governmentis planning to
introduce a VAT domestic reverse

charge for bu'ding and construction
services. Under this scneme TClarke
will continue to charge VAT to end
customers but will nolonger be able

to charge VAT to contractors and will
not pay VAT on costs incurred with sub
contractors. The Board's projections
show a healthy cash position after
taking account of this change of regime.

The Group also has in place

£40.1 million of bonding facilittes, of
which £20.2 million were unutiiised
at 31st December 2018.

Net assets and capital structure
The Group is funded by eqguity
capital, retained reserves and bank
facilities, and there are no plansto
change this structure. The strong
underlying performance of the Group
has resulted in shareholders' equity
rising by £5.7 million during the year
to £22.1 million {2017 £16.4 million).

Goodwill and intangible assets were
£25.7 million (2017: £25.9 million).
The Board has undertaken a
rigorous impairmentreview in
respect of the intangible assets at
31st December 2018 and concluded
that no impairment is necessary.

Accounting policies

The Group's consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards {'IFRSs') as adopted by

the European Union. The Group has
adopted IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts
with customers’ and IFRS 9 'Financial
instrurmnents’, Under [FRS 15 revenue can
only be recognised when itis 'highly
probable’ and so, for example, claims
cannot be recognised until agreed.

A variation cannot be recognised unless
it is highly probable that no significant
reversal of the cumulative revenue will
occur Ravenue on FMjobs isrecognised
when the job is complete. IFRS 15 is
closely aligned to the Group's previous
revenue recognition policy and therefore
adopting IFRS 15 has had no material
impact on the financial statements.
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The impact of IFRS 9 an the Group
reiates to the recoverability of
receivables after taking account of
lifetime expected crechizlosses. The
Group has historically experienced
very low levels of 'bad debts” with £0.2
million being charged to the ncome
statement in both 2018 and 2017,
Therefore, the adoption of IFRS & has
had no material impact onthe Group

Forfurther information please referto
the accounting pelicies and notes tothe
financial statements starting on page 82.
In addition, the Group has completed
its assessment of the impact of IFRS

16. This standard will be adopted

for the firsttime in the accounts

for the year ended 31st December
2019 Please see note Z on pages

82 and 83 for further information.

Financial risk management

The Group's main financial assets are
contract and other trade receivables,
cash and bank balances. These assets
represent the Group's main exposure
to credit risk, which is the risk that

a counterparty will fail to discharge
its obligations, resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The Group may
also be exposed to financial and
reputaticnal risk through the failure
of a subcontractor or suppler.

The financial strength of counterparties
is cansidered prior to signing contracts
and reviewed as contracts progress
where there are indications that a
counterparty may be experiencing
financial difficulty. Procedures

include the use of credit agencies

to check the creditworthiness

of existing and new clients and

the use of approved suppliers’

lists and Group-wide framewaork
agreements with key suppliers.

Trevor Mitchell
Finance Director
26th March 2019
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Corporate social responsibility

The TClarke
Way

The TClarke Way is about the focus across
our business and how we work and deliver
quality with each other, our customers, our
partners, shareholders and society.

For further information see
www.tclarke.co.uk/about-us

The Company reinforces its ongoing
commitment to conducting business
with honesty and integrity in a fair
manner. Through high standards of
corporate governance and setting
the ‘tone from the top’, the Board is
responsible for establishing and
monitoring policies which seek to
embed high ethical standards of
behaviour throughout the Group.
Woe share one set of core values
threughcout the Group, known as
‘The TClarke Way’, that guides our
approach to everything we do.
Every new employee isinducted in
The TClarke Way and encouraged to
adopt it as part of their approach to
work and their relationships with
colleagues and external
stakeholders.

ltts our policy to ensure that the highest
possible standards are achieved and
marntaned operationally throughout
our full scope of operation. We

are proud to operate a business
management system in accordance
with the requirements of ISO 2001:2015
{Quality Management Systems).

Investing in our workforce

Cur people are our biggest asset,
and we recognise the need to attract
and retain excellent staff who give
TClarke the great reputation we are
renowned for. Creating shareholder
value is ukimately dependent on
the skill, dedication, reliability and
motivation of our workforce, and
we priontise investment in our
employess as a key success factor.

Since the launch of the TClarke Training
Academy and Career Pathway 1in 2017,
we have successfully rolled out our
glan of monthly training modules to our
new trainees and expertenced staff to
ensure all staff are trained in TClarke’s
procedures and kept up to date with
new systems and technologies.

TClarke's highly sought-after
Apprenticeship Scheme 1s one of the
bestregarded in the construction and
engineering industries. The success
of our Apprenticeship Scheme is



“Qur people are our
biggest asset and we
recognise the need to
attract and retain
excellent staff who
give TClarke the great
reputation we are
renowned for.”

not only down to the quality of our
intake, but also to our mentors. Each
apprentice is allocated a mentor who
provides advice and support. Qur
mentars have passed through their own
apprenticeship, have considerable site
experience and great knowledge of
the industry and their profession, which
they pass on to each new apprentice.

TClarke also has in place a five-year
leadership programme, whichis
designed to develop the future leaders
of curbusiness and to bring the group
together atalllevels. We are lucky to
have some of the highest quality and
most motivated young engineers
anywhere in the country and we want to
make sure that, wherever they are in the
business from Aberdeen to St Austell.
they have the best opportunities. The
group meets regularly throughout

the year for atwo day programme

of training and site visits,
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At TClarke we have consistently
offered cur people career progression
that can take you all the way from
apprenticeship to Board level - as

our current Board clearly shows.

We ensure employees are kept
informed and take appropriate steps
to ensure that we communicate with
our employees in an effective manner
to notify everyone regarding matters
that are of concern to them and factors
that affect the performance of the
Company. The Company has a regular
newsletter for employees, ‘Fipes &
Wires' to keep everyone up to date
with what is happening across the
Group. When the Company needs

to make decisions which affect our
peopie’s interests, we consult with
employees, or therr representatives,
and value their opinions when making
decisions which affect their interests.
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Corporate social responsibility continued

Diversity and equality and abilities. However, there is a
TClarke is committed to creating a long-standmg lack of women in the
diverse and inclusive place to work construction industry. For those women
where our people can be themselves who are employed in the industry they
and be at their best. The Group are usually in non-delivery or non-client
maintains an equality and diversity facing roles and often in mare junior
policy. selecting and promoting positions. This tends to be reflected
employees based on their aptitudes at TClarke despite our best efforts.

As at 31st December 2018, the composition of TClarke employees inrespect of
gender was as follows:

Number Percentage

Male Female Male Female

Directors (including
Non-Executive Directors) & 0 100 0
Senior management 10 1 21 Q9
Management 34 0 100 0
"We are totally Staff 3n 102 75 25
committed to the Skilled operatives 71 2 99 1
health and safety of all Apprentices 198 5 97 3
persons who have an Trainees 24 1 96 4
overlap with our Total 1,294 11 92 8

undertakings.”




TClarke aspires to create a diverse
workforce by recraitng suitably
qualified candidates from a renge of
backgrounds regardless of age sexual
orientation, ethnic or national origin
or colour, sex, trans-gender status,
religion or belief pregnancy and
matarnity. marital or civis partnership,
or any other group who face
disadvantage in our society. TClarke
gives full and fair consideration to
suitable apphicants, having regard to
individuals’ aptitudes and abilities, and
takes responsibility for its obligations
towards employment of disabled
peocple. The Company is committed
to ensuring that any individual who
becomes disabled during the course
of their employment remains in

their own role, where possible, aris
employed in another suitable position.
Training, career development and
promation of disabled employees
should, as far as possible, be identical
to that of ather employees.

Human rights

TClarke does not have a separate
hurnan rights policy, A respect for
hurman rights iz implicitin all our
employment policies, carporate values
and policies on data protection, privacy
and anti bribery and corruption.

Modern slavery

TClarke is committed to compliance
with the Modern Stavery Act 2015 A
statement which sets aut our actions
to comply with the requirements

of the Act appears on the Group's
website at www tclarke co uk

Anti-bribery and corruption
TClarke values its reputation for
lawful and ethical behaviour and

has a zero tolerance of any form of
bribery or inappropriate inducement.
Our anti-bribery and corruption
policy has been communicated

to all staff and s published on the
TClarke Group Sharepoint,
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Health and safety at TClarke

We are totaily committed to tne health
and safety of 2ll persons who have

an overlap with ourundertaxkings.

As such, we continue with our
considerable investment in this area.

Over the past five years we have seen

a significant improvermnent in our
overall heaith and safety performance
and although there has been a slight
increase in the number of incidents in
2018 against the previous year, this may
correlate with the increase in employees
and the amount of man hours being
worked onsite We continue to use

the ‘Absolute’ Accident Reparting
Regime, which ensures each accident,
no matter how apparently small or
insignificant, is dutifully reported.
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Corporate social responsibility continued

Accident statistics

‘You See, You Say’ Reports
issued

The accident statistics table highlights
the overall reduction in all accidents
reported across the Group since 2015,

The overall fall in the number of
accidents over the last four years has
coincided with the number of ‘You See,
You Say’ Near Miss Reports which have
increased exponentially across the
Group for the same period of time,

It should be remembered that
each "You See, You Say’ card issued
represents a potential incident or
accident which has been avaided,
addressed and ‘closed out”

One of the most encouraging facts
with regard to the statistics is that they

ultimately serve as testament to an ever-

increasing ‘ownership’ from not only the
TClarke teams, but the whole supply
chain. All our people and associates

have bought into our outstanding health
and safety culture, and this approach
is at the core of all our undertakings.

Mindfulness and wellbeing

We are proud to have introduced Mental
Health First Aid training sessions across
the Group to enable staffto become
gualified Mental Health First Aiders. We
have also introduced Mindfulness classes
for our employees which have been both
very well attended and appreciated. Thase
measures are a big steg forward within
the industry and prove how sernous
TClarke is about managing every aspect
of our employees” health and wellbeing.

Social and community involvement
and charitable donations

TClarke is proactive in its corporate
responsibility to the local and wider
community In which we work and
encourages employee involvement in
community projects and programmes.



TClarke has provided sponsorship

tor Bingham RUFC Junior and Mini-
Rugby teams which has allowed

all members to be provided with a

new kit {pictured below}. Providing
sponsorstup for the new kit has aliowed
the club to further develop this section
to which it now has over 100 children
registered and in regular attendance.

In addition, TClarke and its people
value the contribution we can make
through supporting charitable
organisations and sponsored events.

Environment

TClarke recognises and accepts the
known environmental implications of
its engineering works and procedures.

As partof our commitment to
sustainable development, we undertake
regular appraisals as a means of
identifying significantimpacts for our
works, including: health and safety,
climate change and air quality, travel
and transport, energy consumption,
noise vibration, water and drainage,
geology and soils and wastage.

TClarke maintains an Environmental
Management System accredited to SO

29

Energy cansumption was measured
across the Group by recording data on

the combustion of fuel and the use of
electricity at its offices and facilities, and
we have collated Scope 1 and Scope 2
emissions data for the year ended

31st December 2018 (see table below).

14001:2015 to provide its clients and other
stakeholders with verifiable evidence
that environmental performance is
integral to business management.

Greenhouse gas emissions

As aresponsible company we take
our environmental responsibilities
seriously. This is the sixth year we
have been required to report on
greenhouse gas ({GHG'} emissions

in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors’ Reports} Regulations 2013,

Our GHG emissions have been
calcutated using UK Government
guidelines for conversion of
fuels and electricity

Geeonhnace Gas Birissians legsars 2018 201
Scope T emissions tCO2e 1,993 1.616
Scope 2 emissions tCC2e 237 223
Total Scope 1 & 2 emissions tCO2e 2,230 1,839
Revenue fm 326.8 311.2
Emissions/Etmillion revenue 6.8 59

Jefirinons
LS5cope P anssions  Combusucr offuslard ope-stior affacil tiee.
? Seapn Faruzaone Fle i

31C0Oe leones

e the

athas

BT T A

A0 A Loe e dlent



30 TClarke =iz RzocranaF aaas 3 Staterranns 2018

Principal risks

Risk management

The abiity of the Group to dentify

and manage effectively the risks to 1ts
business and operations is fundamental
tothe successful delivery of the
Group's strategy and the protection

of -ts assets and reputation,

The Beard is responsible for defining
the Group's appetite for. and approach
to, sk, including the Group's system
of risk management and internal
controls. The Board has delegated to
the Audit Committee the responsibility
for reviewing the effectiveness

Principal risks

The principal risks faced by
the Group, and the mitigating
actions and controls in place
to address these risks, were
reviewed in March 2019 and
are presented below.

1. Political, economic and
market conditions
Financial strength
Reputation
Winning new waork
Contract delivery
People and skills
Health and safety
Supply chain

. Pensions

0.Cyber security

20D Ne R W

ofthe Groun's internal controls,
inciud rg the systems established
to idertify. assess, manage and
manitar risk and provide assurance

Our risk management process

The Group's risk management
framework requires all business units
to identify, assess and quantify the
specific risks facing them which could
impact on their ability to deliver their
financial and operational objectives.
The business units maintain a register
of the significant risks facing the
business, including an assessment of

the potenual and Ikely mpact pre ard
post-mitigauon and an assessment
ofthe effectvenass of the controls

in place to dentify and manage
potertial risks Actions designed to
mitigate identified risks ana implement
control and process improvements
are discussed and agreed with Group
management. Developments in key
nsks, including an assessment of the
effectivenass of mitigating actions
and controls, are reported to and
discussed by the Board each month.



1. The o

sstractonsoctor shghy oy cal
repengent on tne oiannes
AN Ta atenanile
expend ture 2y 0oth tne oub ¢ and
povarz sectc s
2 Tho Groap s s.o ect 1o Lomniex anc
evolung tax, lega

aad oo,

atory

requiremonts A nreacn of ‘aws and
regulatons con aieadte tigaton,
nvestigaticns Or o sputes, rasutag
aaditicnal costs bomng ncarred owvil andy
arcrmina argceechngs and reputaticnal
damage

The Group's ability to secure and deliver
waork depends on its perceived financial
strangth and the avalabihity of cash
resources, banking ‘acilt es and the ab.tyto
prov:ac performance and other bonds as
NUCOSSary

Reputation

The Groap's ability to tender for new
business and to mamtan strong
relatonships with custormers s dependent
on maintaining its repatat o for leadership
n technalogical innovation and guality of
detivery.

Political, economic and market conditions

Strategy impact

Sasta nap o
D3 ancec bos.ness.

Iricreasc
technology mar<et

share.

Burd ong torm
2sting relationships.

Sustained
operating margin.

Sustanable
a anced business.

Remam contractor
of choice.

7

Mitigation

Tao Group contnuesto operate througnaat
the UK Lsng ts 2072 M&E s« bascto cnab 2
agr e moverrent ¢ and cut o sectors 1o meet
chang ng rrarkot derands
T'WE‘ GTO\H TOomtors 1its ool Doo<Tto cnsare
A7 300°G07 ate oo-ance ot work between
London and the regions and acrossthe

var ous sectors. awn on toperates

The Grodp deveions ong ter chentand
contractos ~¢ ationsh s and seeksto socare
framewaoc ag-eerents to mitigate aga nst
demand fluctuations

. Cost and skills bases are aligned to reflect

anficpated work oad

. The Group ~oniters iegal anc rega atory

dovelooments nthe arcas in whic it
cperates and seeks oga or otherspecalist
adv'ce as anpropnate Al empioyees.
suppliers and subcontractors a“e required to
corpiyw tn all applicable aws and
regulations. Tram ng s provigea on legal and
regulatory changes as required.

. Capital structure and dividend policy

managed to ensure adeguate rescrves
maintaned to fund growth strategy.

. The Groug monitors cash flow requirements
P ]

and seeks to match matunty profiles of
financial assets and fiabilities at contract tevel

. Efficient utihsation of resources monitored via

GFOLJD wida ousiness maﬂager?ent systerm.

- The Group has in place a £15 million revolving

credit facil'ty, committes to 31st August 2020,
and & £5 million overdraft facility to help
manage shortterm fluctuations m working
capital

. The Group also has in place £40 million

cormmitted bonding faclties.

. Creditworthiness of counterparties manitored

onan ongoing basis.

. The Group supports high stangaras of

business ethics, sustainabihity and compl ance,
and ‘s committed to improving health and
safety at work for all.

. Feedbackis sougntfrom key stakehoders on

aregular bas s and actions aris ng from this
feedback are discussod and agreod at an
appropnate leve..
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Movement

Increase

I¢rease .n - s<due

to:

1. Broxr
uncertanty

2 VAT cnanges

3 Marcet

zha engesfaced
by the ndustryasa
whele

Reduced

Reduction nr'sk
ducto

1

Strengtnening of
Group balance
sheet.

Gooa cash
generation and
balances.
Rencwed and
ireproved
banking facilitics.

No Change
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H Fasane Lnoenr Ce(i LONract Os3es and
~eputationai damage may ras. tof fisks arc
overpniced tne Group will notsec.re
sufficient tenders to replenish the order
sock ang grow the nusingss

Contract delivery

Fopurtana Faass 2 5t

incraasa
techno ogy marxet
shae

Bu'd ong term
asting retat ansh.ps

. Adetaled business case s propared

Focusonstiong -e'ahionsh ps &

sderstand ol ent neecs and is

tendarig actrety acco ag .
We havo oxper ences tears ofest mators
tirougnauttne JK wth al s ovewed by a
Director and checws carcd oLtto avo o
NCOTECt O Non-compett Ve NG NG,
Tre Boararemanscomtreatothie pric p e
that we w | hotbh dforwo'k boiow
COMmMercia yaccoptabin rates

‘o any
aronosed expansion Mta now googrannic
arcas or ousINess soctors and 1s sunpEctto
oricr Board approva

Movement

No Change

1 TheGroups
Crdor Do«
T NLES T 08
renign sned

2. Orderpock at
recosiign

3 Brext
dncerta sty may
irrpact 2020 and
beyonu

Tne Groap concusrently runs severa
Auandred cantracts across the UK, same of
n.ge comalexity. These require nigh qua ty.
arsactive manayement te ensure delvery of
value objectives Tor all stakcholders. Failure
to deliver could result in significant financial
and reputationa camage

Remain contractor
of chaice

Sustainable
balancea bus ness.

Buid *ong term,
lasting relationships.

. Ongoing assessment and management of

ooerat.anal nsk tnroughout vroject fecyc o,

. Train and maintain incustry leacing teams of

directly employed eng.neers, surveyors
supervisors and skilled tradespeoole

. Regular perfcrmance reviews of all key

supplers and subcontractors
INsuUrance cover reassessoa 0ac yoar, to
guard aganst hability cla mis

. Profit and cash flow are monitered throughout

the project ifecycle, witn reguiar reviews at
contract and business un tlovel

Contracts of a significant size or risk are

regu arly reviewed by Execative Manageoment
and discussed at Board ievel

No Change

People and skills

Attracting retaining and deve oping

hign calibre sta* and skilled tradespeople s
key to aur abihty to deliver value “or our
stakehclders

Sustainah'e
baianced business,

- Tne Group remains cormmitted to prov ding

apprenticeships, career paths asd ongomng
tra‘ning and development for all employees.

. Remuneration pacxages for a'l staff are linked

to performance and monitered ta ensure they
reman compet tve

. Labour rates are monitored regularly to

ensure tonder rates arc realistic andincreases
are managed. We have cont nuowus dialogue
with tne trage unions and continue tc “eview our
policies and procedures in managing th's ris<

No Change

Impact of Brexit
lkely to be very
small dueto
directly empioyed
and UK nased
labaour



Health and safety

Fallre to manage nes th sa’et; ang

¢V ronranta msks coua canse s oL
MLt 07 0830 e oyeos o7t d Sart o
and expase the Group to signficant financial
anaropatat ona loss and It gat o0

To ael ver ore’ects to the coroct
specification and to budget requires the
avalability of components and mateaa s of
sufficient quality and at the night price. The
majority of projects we secure do not al ow
for the recovery of nereasced matenial casts,

Strategy impact

Rerna ncontractor
of o co.

Susta nable
baltanced businass

Buidlong-term,
lasting relat onshios

Mitigation

. The GroLo Manag ng Directaor
resoonsb ity for neatn anz aafer, onsus g
sa'etyi1s pr o tsen tnreLgnoutie Grolo,

2. The Grawo Heath and Saety Director
rMomto s atd -esponastoegs and rega atory
ceveloarents

3 Ioastry eaa ng nea tnanc satoty Dotic es and
procedures are matained.

4. Allcmp oyees "ece ve regular tra nng an
upaatesto ensure they are aware of tner
responsibinties

_Allemp ayees sunpeers and subcontractors
are requirea to carply with a lapp- cabic
laws, regulations anc standaraos,

4. Continued focus on You See, You Say.’

7. Introduction of Mindfulness worsnogps.

(83}

1. Formal supp er framewark agreements arc
maintained to mitigate this - sk witn orices
lockea mthrougn procureent at the
beginning of a contract wnerover poss.ole,

2. Regular nerformance <ov ews of all key
supolers and subcontractors.
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Movement

No Change

No Change

The Groun s exposedto funding rsks
arising from changes in lengevity, inflation
and investment assumptions nrelat ontoits
defined benafit pension scheme.

Cyber security

S.stanable
balanced pusiness,

% susta ned
aparating margin.

1. The Group's defined benefit scheme closed to
aew members from Janaary 2015

2. Ongoing regulatory and funding requirernents

arc monitorea ' conjunction with externa
actuana’ advisers and regular meetngs arc
held with the sensicn scheme trustess

No Change

1. Actuar a
assumptions,
drven by faling
oond yrelds,
have significantly
ncreased the
Group s
CXPOSIre ta
defired benefits
DEnsIon 757,

2. Additional
contribut ons
be'ng made
folowing
trienm.al
valuation of
31st December
2015,

Cyber attack and datalossis arisk to all
organisations anc individuas. Tae Groug
handles sensitive inforrmation of a Dersonal,
confidential and comemercial nature. [t
business operations denend upan its (T
systems

Susta nable
balanced business.

1. The Group maimntans ronust cynes secunty
policies ta guard agamst trurd party access
ana malicious attacks.

2 Trne Group's core systems are outsourced to a
third oarty with robust processes and
orocedda-es.

3. The Group manta ns an zccess control process

No Change
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Long-term viability statement

The Directors have assessed the
Group's prospects and viaiiity
taking into account its current
position and the principal risks
outlined on pages 30 to 33.

The nature of the Group's business

is long term and its business model
isopen-ended. The UK construction
market in which the Group operates

is subject to considerable peaks and
troughs. The Directors consider a three-
year period as appropriate for assessing
the ongoing viability of the Group

Most of the projects undertaken by the
Group are completed within a three-
year time horizon from initial tender. The
Group uses a three-year timeframe for
the preparation of its strategic business
plans and financial projection modeis.

The Group's prospects are assessad
primarily through its strategic business
planning process and the ongaing
monitoring of the principal risks and
mitigating actions. The process isled by
the Chief Executive and invelves senior
management throughout the Group.

All business units formally update their

strategic plans on an annual basis.

This process, which takes place in the

fourth quarter each year, includes:

* an assessment of the business unit's
current positicn, taking into account
its operating environment and the
threats and opportunities it faces;

* the business unit’s achievements over
the previous 12 months measured
against its strategic objectives;

* adetailed review of the risks faced
by the business units and the strength
of the controls and mitigating actions
in place;

+ the agreement of financial and
strategictargets coverning the
following three years; and

¢ the preparation of detailed budgets
and projections for the next three
years in support of the strategic
business plan.

The busiress units’ strategic plans
are formally reviewed and chalienged
by the Executive Directors prior to
presentation to the full Board.

Based on the firancial models
submitted by the business units, the
Group’s financial projections are
updated and tested using a range of
sensitivities to dentify potential threats
to the financial viability of the Group
over the three-year projection period
based upon the Board's assessment

of principal nsks (where there s a
financial impact). These sensitivities
include changing assumptions with
regard to margins, workload and
liquidity of financial assets and liabilities.
The key assumptions underlying the
financial model include the renewal
and continuing availability on similar
terms of the Group’s existing banking
facilities, which comprise a £5 miliion
overdraft facility repayable on demand
and a committed £15 million revolving
credit facility expirng on 31st August
2022, and the ability to flex the cost
base sufficiently to address any
significant change in worklead. The
three year projections demonstrate
that, taking into account any reasonable
sensitivities, the Group will be able

to operate within its existing facilities
over the three-year projection period,
and the Directors are confident, as
demonstrated by our experience during
the recent recession, that the Group’s
business model allows sufficient
flexibility to meet any significant
change in demand for its services.

The Group takes a conservative
approach to strategic risk. The business
case for all significant investrments and
entry into or exit from specific markets
is reviewed and signed off by the
Board. Risk registers are maintained
and reviewed regularly throughout the
year to identify potential threats to the
Group's business, to assess the financial,
operational and strategic impact

of these threats, and to determine
appropriate mitigating actions.

Based or ther assessment of
prospects and viability above the
Directors confirm that they have
areasonaie expectation that the
Group will be able to continue in
operation ard meet its liabilites

as they fall due overthe three-year
period ending 31st December 2021

The Directors also considered it
appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on the going concern basis,
as explained in note 3(i)on page 83.

Strategic report approval

The Board confirms that, to the best
afits knowledge, the Strategic report
on pages 1 to 34 includes a farr
review of the development and
performance ofthe business and the
position of the Company, and the
undertakings included on the
consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that
they face.

Approval by the Directors and
signed on behalf of the Board on
26th March 2019

Mark Lawrence
Group Chief Executive Officer
26th March 2019
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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

1 Mark Lawrence

Group Chief Executive Officer

Apoointed to the Boarc an 2nd May 2003, Age 51,

Mark has veenwith the Company for 33 years and startea h s career
here by cormpleting an electr cal aoprenticesh.p in 1987, His career
pragressed through the Company, becoming Technical Director in
1997, Executive Diractor in 2003 and Managing Director, London
Operations in 2007. As Group Chief Executive Officer since January
2010, Mark has led stratogic change across the Groun and remains a
hands-on eader tak'ng ocrsonal accountability and pride in TClarke s
performance ana, u'timately our clients satisfaction. He regular'y
walks project sites and gets nvolved personatly witn many of our
chients, contractors and oo suppily chan

2 Mike Crowder

Group Managing Director

Appointed to the Board on 1st January 2007, Age 54.

Mike has over 35 years of significant experience inthe construction
ndustry and started at TClarke as an aporentice His vast aroject
based expenence includes the delivery of many lagship jobs and a
detarad knowledge of -arge infrastructure projects. Mike has ovarall
resnonsibity for Operations and ensunng that all projects a-e
properly managed. He arso monitors oar enginear ng departrments
and projects on a regular basis as a main Board Director. Mike is
resnonsible for Group nealth and safety and s act vely mvoived with
health and safety nsk managerent and with raising awareness,
nfluencing attitudes and changing behaviour,

3 Trevor Mitchell

Group Finance Director

Appointed to tne Board on 15t February 2818, Age 58.

Trevor s a Chartered Accountant and accomplished finance
prafessional witn extens.ve experence across many sectors, ncluding
financial services, construction and maintenance education and retail,
waoriang with orgamisatons sucn as Balfour Beatty pic. Kier Group olc,
Rok plec, Clerica Medical Growp andHalifax p ¢ Priorto his
aopointment, Trever haa been working wth TClarke since October
2016, assisting with simolfying tne structure and imoroving the
Group's financial controls and proceduies. Trevor s a Director of It's
Purely Financial Limited.



Non-Executive Directors

4 lain McCusker

Chairman

Nomination Committee Chairman

Appointed to the Board on 1st January 2009 and appointed Chairman
on 15t Octover 2015, Age 67,

lainis a Chartered Accountant and former partner at Coopers &
Lybrand. He has significantinternational financial and management
experience, ganad through senior executive roles at Xerox, Unisys ana
ACCA Tnsincludesin depth commeraal operational and nsk
management experience. lain is a former member of the Qualifications
Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotfand He s
Senior Vis ting Fel ow, Cass Business School, University of London and
Chairman, NPA Insurance and a former Non-Executive Director of
Cripps LLP.

5 Mike Robson

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Audit Committee Chairman

Aopointeato the Board on 18th Noverrber 2015 Age 58

Mike s a Chartered Accountant with extensive expenence of audit,
financial management and reporting, gained at PwC and in industry. In
a career .ncluding 27 years of Board-leve’ experience Mke has
worked in a range of business sectors as Finance Director, Managing
Director, owner or adviser. He has a strong focus on improving
business performance and developing management teams. Mike has
also'aunchea, ceveloped and seccessfully sold his own internatianally
based business. Mike also serves as Director of Azure Partners Ltd.
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6 Peter Maskell

Independent Non-Executive Director

Remuneration Committee Chairman

Appointed to the Board on st January 2018, Age 61

Peter joined Phillps E'cctronics after study ng Electrical ana Electronic
Engineering at Kingston Un-versity and ne worked there tor 37 years.
Forthe last 20 years, he ne @ a number of sen-or management
positons in both the UK and Europe His‘ast oesit onwas as Cha rman
ofthe UK group. Inthe last five years, Peter managed the
transformation of tne hignting business into a fully digital business
cffering, Peter 1s also a non-executve merber of tne boara of the
Jriversity of Surrey.

7 Louise Dier

Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointad to the Board on 1st January 2019. Age 59.

Louise was previously Managing Director of London based David
Chipperfield Architects having joined therm in 2013, Prior to that,
Louise was General Manager UK for DO & CO Catering and
Restaurants AG. a publ.c y listed Austrian company, for four years,
Lowse studiec law at Cambriage Jniversity and was called to the par,
Aagwever sne quick'y moved inta management, spending nearly cight
years atInternational Management Group, the US based sports
management group, the last two years as head of HR for IMG Europe.
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Group Management Board

1 Mark Lawrence
Group Chief Executive Officer
{See Board of Directors, page 36, for biography}

2 Mike Crowder
Group Managing Director
{See Board of Directors, page 36, for biography)

3 Trevor Mitchell
Group Finance Director
{See Board of Directors, page 36, for biography)

4 Gary Jackson

Managing Director, Scotland

Gary has over 25 years’ expenience in the constraction industry, the
last 16 years at TClarke Scotland. As Managing Director of TClarke
Scotand, Gary was originaliy respansibie for developing ana leading
our successful Res dential Plumbng service, and has since developed
our M&E Building Services operations within the Scottish region and
our Intelligent Buildings aperations throughout the Group. As part of
hisrole onthe Group Management Board Gary s also directiy
responsible for Group fleet management and procurement, as well as

supportng the Board witn 1 s knowicage of HR and health and safety.

5 Kevin Mullen

Managing Director, Northern region

Kevin hasspent 37 yaars with the Group. hav ng joinea Veale-Nixon
Ltd in Feoruary 1982 and completed h s aporenticeship in 1983 and
qualified as a JIB electrician. Kevin steadily progressed through the
business to Technical Director, Assistant Managing Director and
eventually taking the position of Managing Director of the Newcastle
office in 2012. Following this appointment Kevin took responsibility for
the Leeds office in 2013 and the North West office in 2016, becoming
the Nerthern region Managing Director with respansibility tor the
management of the Northern region over those three offices.



6 Kevin Bones

Managing Director, Central and South West

Kevin worked for TClarke for 41 years in varying capacities. For the last
few years, Kevin oversaw the operations of the Peterbarough, Derby.
Birmingham and Kimbalten offices in his role as Managing Director,
Central and South West. Kevin retired in March 2019,

7 Andy Griffiths

Group Systems Director

Andy jomed TClarke 1n 1986, 1 val y working with the project
management teams before becoming the first TClarke project
surveyor. Aftor being pro ect based for many years he managed the
London surveying department ocfore aecaming the London
Commercial Director. He was imvolved with the initial implementation
of Co nsin 2008 and has s wce worked on the Group reorganisat on
project and now oversees the central processing centre in Derby.

8 Garry Julyan

Commercial Director

Garry joined TClarke 'n 2010, has over 20 years of exoer-ence working
in the construction industry and is a Chartered Quantity Surveyor who
has worked prev ous y for principal contractors and consultant
orgarnisations, As Commercial Director, Garry is responsible for
imolementing tne commeraa strategy of the busingss, provid-ng
commercial and contractual support, dentfying nsk and opaortunity,
and overseeing the financial performance of projects to ensure a
commercia return
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9 Mick Jobling

Group Human Resources Director

Mick joined TClarke in 2001 as apprentice and became Group Quality
Assurance & Environmental Marager in January 2017 He was
appointed Group Human Resources Directorin January 2019 and s
responsible for all assaciated HR mratters as well as continuing to oc
responsible for Group Quality Assurance & Environmental. Mick was
appointed to the Group Management Board on st December 2018,

10 Sally Higgins

Chief Buyer

Sally joined TClarke in July 2006, having spent the previous nine years
as a respected M&E Buyer wath leading suppliers in London. Initiaily
starting as a buyer for Londen, Saliy took over the procurement for tne
Bristol and Sittingbourne offices in 2008 and 2009 and became Chief
Buyer for Central, South West and London regions in 2010, Werking
with the regional buying teams she has suceessfully driven and
matured a complete Group buying process that along with tne

reg cna buyers, cnsuwres tne continued business growth s serviced m
partnarship with our supoly chain partners. Sal'y was appomted to the
Group Management Board on 1st December 2018,

11 David Lanchester

Company Secretary

David joined TClarke as Company Secretary in April 2017 and is
responsible for all legal matters for the Group. David is an Associate of
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and has 35
years' broad company secretaria exonerence ana has sreviously hela
Company Sceretary reles 'nlisted oles acress a range o” sectors.



40 TClarke A1 .o Reaogrtasu b oo

o statacacar Z014

Corporate Governance report

lain McCusker
Chairman

Chairman's introduction

The Board is committed to high standards of corporate
governance and continues to comply with the principles
contained in the UK Corporate Governance Code 2016 (‘the
Code’). The Code sets out principles to which the Listing Rules
require all isted companies to adhere, supported by more
detailed provisions. This governance section describes the
principal activities of the Board and its committees and how
the Company complies with the Code.

The Board welcomes the publication of the revised UK
Corporate Governance Code which takes effect for
accounting periods starting on or after 1st January 2019 and
has begun implementing the changes required by the new
Code. Peter Maskell is the Non-Executive Director designated
to engage with our employees. However, as a Company, we
already engage with our workforce in many ways and some of
these are outlined in the Investing in our workforce’ section
on page 25.

As aBoard, we recognise that a high standard of cornorate
governance is essential to support the growth of our business
and to protect and enhance shareholder value. The Directors,
whose names and detalls are set out on pages 36 and 37, are
collectvely responsible to sharetolders for the leng-term
success of the Company. The Board does this by supporting
entrepreneurial leadership from the Company’s executive
team whilst ensuring effective controls are established that
enable the proper assessment and management of risk The
Board is ultimately responsible for the Company's strategic
aims and long-term prospenty; it seeks to achieve this by
ensuring that the right financial resources and human talent
are in place to deliver the Company's strategy and objectives.
Qur culture is fundamental to the successful delivery of our
strategic objectives. The Board ensures that the tone 1s set
from the top and the Executive Directors ensure that our core
values are embedded throughout the Group. The Board
regularly monitors various indicators of our culture such as our
health and safety performance and stakehaolder engagement.

The day-ta-day management and leadership of the Company
is delivered by the Group Management Board, which
comprises the Executive Directars and ather key members of
the Group's senior management team, including
representatives of the regional businesses, details of whom
are provided on pages 38 and 3%.

During 2018, we undertook a formal, internal evaluation of the
Board’s and its committees’ effectiveness. The results of this
exercise are summarised on page 44.| am pleased to report
that | am satisfied that the Board and each of the Directors are
operating effectively. | am therefore happy to recommend
that the Directors standing for re-election should be re-
elected atthe 2019 AGM.

As Chairman, | will continue to evelve ocur governance
framework, being mindful of best practice and the latest
developments surrounding corporate governance.

lain McCusker
Chairman
26th March 2019
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Statement of compliance

David Lanchester
Company Secretary

Statement of compliance

Throughout the year ended 31st December 2018, the Board
considers that it has complied with the provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code 2014 (‘the Code’), The Code is
issued by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) and is publicly
available on the FRC's website, www.frc.org uk.

Structure of the Board

The Company is managed by the Board of Directors, which
currently consists of four Non-Executive Directors {including
the Chairman} and three Executive Directars. The Non-
Executive Directors who served during the year ended

31st December 2018 were deemed to be independent,
notwithstanding their sharehieldings held during the year,
which are not considered significant by the Board. Atthe time
of his appointment as Chairman, lain McCuskar was considered
to be ndependent, butis not considered to be independent by
virtue of his appointment as Chairman.

In line with the new UK Corporate Governance Code, all
Directors shall be subject te annual re-election unless a
Director has been newly appointed during the year. Therefare,
atthe forthcoming AGM on 10th May 2019, all Directors will
retire and offer themselves for re-election apart from Louise
Dier who is standing for election, having been appointad a
Director since the last AGM.

All Executive Directors have signed service agresments which
take into account best pract.ce and contain a notice period of
12 months from either party. All Non-Executive Directors have
letters of appointment specity:ng therr roles, responsibilities
and required time commitment to the Board.

The Board maintains procedures whereby potential conflicts of
interests are reviewed regularly. The Board has considered the
other significant commitments undertaken by the Directors,
details of which are provided in their biographies on pages 36
and 37, and considers that the Cheirman and each of the
Directors are able to devote sufficient time to fuil the duties
required of them under the terms of their service agreements or
letters of appointment.

lain McCusker was appointed Chairman in October 2015,
although he has been a Non-Executive Director since 2009. The
Board notes that the new Code states that the Chair should not
remain in the post beyand nine years from the date of first
appointment to the Board, but provides that this period may be
extended to facilitate effective succession planning and the
development of a diverse Board, particularly in those cases
where the Chair was an existing Non-Executive Director on
appointment. Therefore, in order to provide continuity and
stability given the relative short periods of office of the other
Non-Executive Directors, lain McCusker will stand for re-
election at the 2019 AGM and his position as Chairman will be
kept under review.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and
management of the Board and its governance. By promaoting
a culture of openness and debate, he facilitates the eflective
contribution of all Directors and helps maintain constructive
relations between Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the exacutive
leadership and day-to-day management ofthe Company, to
ensure the delivery of the strategy agreed by the Board.
Through his leadership of the Group Management Board, he
demonstrates his commitment to health and safety,
operaticnal and financial performance.

The Senior Indegendent Director acts as a sounding board for
the Chairman and serves as an intermediary for the other
Directors, where necessary. The Senicr Independent Director
1s also an additional point of contact for shareholders if they
have reason for concern and where contact through the
normal channel of the Chairman, Chief Executive or other
Executive Directors has failed to resolve or for which such
contact s inappropriate.

Independent of management, the Non-Executive Directors
bring diverse skills and experience vital to constructive
challenge and debate. The Non-Executive Directors provide
the membership of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Cammittees.
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Statement of compliance continued

Board diversity

The Board recognises the benefits of Board diversity,
including but not limited to. the approprate mix of skills,
experience, yender, age, ethnicity, background and
personahty. The Board endorses 2 balance of diversity and
experience to promaote Board effectiveness whilst taking into
accountthe appropriate financial, managerial and industry
skills which are relevant to the calibre of a Director of TClarke.

The Board stipulates that new appointments to the Board will
be based on merit and suitability to the role, whilst also giving
due consideration to diversity. Non-Executive Directors

should have the ability to fulfilthe requisite time commitment.

Board meetings
The compaosition of the Board is designed to ensure effective
rmanagement, control and direction of the Group.

The Board is collectively responsible for the effective
oversight of the Company and its businesses. It also
determines the strategic direction and governance structure
of the Company tc enable itto achieve long-term success and
deliver sustainable shareholder value The Board takes the
lead in safeguarding the reputation of the Company and
ensuring that the Company maintains a sound system of
internal contral. The Board's full responsibilities are set outin
the schedule of matters reserved for the Board.

Number of meetings attended

Matters reserved for the Board include:

* Cansideration and approval of the Groun's strategy
budgets, structure and financing reguirements.

e Consideration and approval of the Group's annuaiand
half-yearly reports and financial statements.

+ Consideration and approval of interim and final
dividends.

* Consideration and approval of the Group's trading
statements.

* Ensuring the maintenance of a socund system of internal
controls and sk management.

¢ Conducting a robust assessment of the principal risks
facing the Company and setting risk appetite.

* Changes to the structure, size and composition of the
Board as recommended by the Nomination Committee.

e Establishing committees of the Board and determming
their terms of reference.

The Board meets formally once a month to consider and
decide on matters specifically reserved for its attention. Board
papers are circulated sufficiently in advance of Board
meetings to enable time for review, The attendance of
individual Directors at formal monthly Board and sub-
committee meetings is set out below:

Board committees

The Board has delegated certainresponsibilities to the Audit
Commuttee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, which report directly to the Board. The terms of
reference of each committee are available in the Investors
section of the Company’s website.

Board Audit Nomination Remuneration

{Maximum 18) {Maximum 4) {Maximum 5) {Maximum 8)

lain McCusker 14 - 5 8
Mike Robson 13 4 5 8
Peter Maskell (appointed 1st January 2018) 14 4 5 8
Mark Lawrence 14 - - -
Trevor Mitchell (appointed 1st February 2018) 12 - - -
Mike Crowder 13 - - -
Martin Walton (resigned 2nd February 2018) 0 - - -
Tony Giddings (resigned 18th May 2018) 5 1 1 4




Audit Committee

Mike Robson chairs the Audit Committee and Louise Dier and

Peter Maskell are also members of the Committee The Board
is satisfied that Mike Robscn has the requisite recent and
relevant financial experience to chair the Audit Committee,
The Audit Commuttee repart is set out on pages 46 to 48.

The roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee
include:

* Monitoring the integnty of the financial statements of the
Company and any formal announcements relating to the
Company's financial performance, reviewing significant
financial reporting issues and judgements contained
therein.

* Reviewing the Company's internal controls and risk
managemeant systems and reviewing the need for an
internal audit function on an annual basis.

* Making recommendations to the Board, to be put to
shareholders, in relation to the appointment of external
auditers and their remuneration and terms of
engagement.

* Reviewing and approving the audit plan and ensuring it is
consistent with the scope of audit engagement.

* Reviewingthe independance of the external auditors and
reviewing the effectiveness of the audit process.

¢ Reviewing the extent of non-audit services provided by
the external auditors.

* Reviewing the Company’s whistleblowing and anti-
bribery procedures.
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Nomination Committee

tain McCusker chairs the Nomination Committee and Mike
Robson, Louise Dier and Peter Maskell are also members of
the Committee, The Nominaton Caommittee report s set out
on page 49.

The roles and responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee include:

* Regularly reviewing the structure, size and compaosition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity)
ofthe Board and making recornmendations to the Board
with regard to any changes.

s Evaluating the balance of skills, experience,
independence and knowledge on the Board and
preparing or approving a description of the role and
capabilites required for a particular appointment.

¢ Responsibility for identifying and nominating, for the
approvail of the Board, candidates to fill Board vacancies
as and when they arise.

e Satisfying itself with regard to succession planning for
Directors and other senior executives, taking into account
the challenges and opportunities facing the Company
and the skills and expertise needed on the Board in the
future

* Making recommendations to the Board concerning
membership of the Audit and Remuneration
Committees

» Reviewing annually the time required from Nan-
Executive Directors,
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Statement of compliance continued

Remuneration Committee

Peter Maskell chairs the Remuneration Committee and lain
McCusker, Mike Robson and Louise Dier are also members of
the Committee. The Directors' remuneration repart is set out
on pages 50 to 62.

The role and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include:

* Determining the service contracts and base salary levels
for the Executive Directors and other senior
managerment.

s Setting remuneration policy for all Executive Directors
and the Cempany’s Chairman, taking inte account
relevant legal and regulatory requirements, the provision
of the Code and associated quidance.

* Approving the design of and determining targets for, any
parformance-related pay schemes operated by the
Company and appraving the total annual payments
made under such schemes,

¢ Determining the policy for, and scope of, pension
arrangements for each Executive Director and other
designated senior executives,

* Reviewing the design of all share incentive plans for
approval by the Board and shareholders.

* Agreeing the policy for authorising claims for expenses
from the Directors.

Group Management Board

The Group Management Board comprises the Executive
Directors and other key members of the Group's senior
management team, ncluding representatives of the regional
businesses. The role of the Group Management Board 1s to
co-ordinate and direct the efforts of the four regional
businesses and the individual offices below them to manage
risk and deliver value for the Group as a whole across cur
target sectors in line with the Group's strategy. The Group
Management Board considers Group initiatives on matters
such as health and safety, employee involvement, and the
development of new services and areas of expertise. The
Group Management Board also reviews the operational
effectiveness of the business units in matters such as tender
submission and success rates, cash generation and
mamtenance, and health and safety performance.

The Non-Executive Directors maet with mambers of the
Group Management Board and other members af the senior
management team at least once a year. In addition, the
Non-Executive Directors make visits to the regional offices in
order to acquaint themselves with the regional businesses and
their senior management and also visit project sites to see
work being undertaken at first hand.

Performance evaluation

The effectiveness of the contnibut'or and level of cammuitment
of each Directar to fulfii the rote of a Director of the Company
is the subject of continuing evaluation, raving regard to the
regularity with which the Board meets, the limited size of the
Board and the reporting structures which are in place within
the Company to monitor performance.

The Chairman primarily, but acting in conjunction with the
Chief Executive Officer, undertakes the task of annual
evaluation of performance and commitment of iIndrwvidual
Board members by conducting individual interviews. The
evaluation of the Board as a whale, and its committees. is also
undertaken on an annual basis New Directors receive a
formal induction, overseen by the Chairman in conjunction
with the Company Secretary. Training is available for all
Directors as and when necessary. The Senior Independent
Director, in conjunction with the other independent Non-
Executive Diractors, undertakes the annual appraisal of the
Chairman

The Board conducted an nternal appraisal of its own
performance, led by the Chairman in conjunction with the
Nemination Committee, covering the composition,
orocedures and effectiveness of the Board and its
committees. The Board members are of the opinion that the
Board and its committees operate effectively. Performance is
regularly monitored to ensure ongoing obligations are
adequately met and the Board reqularly considers methods
for continuous improvements.

Company Secretary

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, who ensures that the Board receives
appropriate and timely information, that Board procedures
are followed and that statutory and regulatory requirements
are met.

Relationship with shareholders
The Company recognises the importance of dialogue with
both institutional and private shareholders.

Presentations are made to brokers, anaiysts and institutional
investors at the tme of the announcement of the year end
and half-year results, and there are regular meetings with
analysts and investors throughout the year. The aim of the
meetings is to explain the strategy and performance of the
Group and to establish and maintain a dialoegue sc that the
investor community can communicate its views to the
executive management. All such meetings are reported at
Board meetings. Ir addition, the Chairman is available to mest
with major shareholders pernicdically to discuss Beard
governance and strategy.



The Board has asways nvited commuicatian from private
Investors and encouraged ther participation at the Annual
General Meetng. All Board memuoers present at the Annual
General Meeting are availlabie to answer questians from
sharehalders inciuding the Chairs of the Audit, Remuneration
ard Nomination Committees. during the meeting and
rermain available after the meeting to talk informally with
shareholders. Notice of the Annual General Meeting 15 given
in accordance with best practice and the business of the
meeting 15 conducted with separate resolutions, each being
voted on initially by a show of hands, with the results of the
proxy voting being provided at the meeting Further
shareholder information 1s available on our website at
www.tclarke.co.uk under the fnvestor tab.

Internal control

The Board is responsible for the Group's system of internal
control and for reviewing 1ts effectiveness. Such a system is
designed to manage, rather than eliminate. the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

{n accordance with the Code, the Board confirms that, for the
year ended 31st December 2018, it has carried cut a robust
assessment of the principal nsks facing the Group, including
those that would threaten its business model, future
performance. solvency or iguidity. The principal risks
identified and the controls and mitigating actions in place are
described on pages 3010 33

Risk management and internal control procedures are
delegated to Executive Directors and senior management in
the Group, operating within a clearly defined divisional
structure. Each division or subsidiary assesses the level of
authorisation appropriate to its decision-making process after
the evaluation of potential benefits and risks. Athree-year
strategic plan is prepared for each division and updated
annually, including the identification and consideration of
significant risks to the division's strategic objectives. Progress
aganst the strategy and the management of the risks
identified is formally reviewed on a quarterly basis.

At each Board meeting the Board reviews management
accounts in order to provide effective monitoring of financial
performance. Atthe same time, the Board considers cther
significant strategic nsk management, operational and
compliance issues to ensure that the Group's assets are
safeguarded and financial infformation and accounting records
can be relied upon. The Board monitors monthly progress on
contracts formally. Furthermore, the Company's risk appetite
is discussed and considered when making key decisions.
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The Board reviews tne Company s risk register and monitors
ns«< maragement procedures as a regular agenda tem and
the Board recewves reports therean from Growp management
The emphasis 1s on obtaining the relevant degree of
assurance and not merely reporting by exception,

At its meeting on 20th March 2019 the Board carned out the
annual internal cantrols and rsk management assessment of
the year ended 31st December 2018 by considering
documentation from the Audit Committee Further details
concerning the Audit Committee's review of internal controls
and risk management processes isincluded inthe Audit
Committee report on pages 46 to 48 Historically, the imternal
audit function has been covered through regular site visits
conducted by Quality Assurance and Group finance
personnel. The Audit Committee reviewed the need for a
separate internal audit function during the year and agreed
that the current process worked well and the remit of the
Quality Assurance department would be expanded to include
detailed reviews that the Committee felt appropriate.

Share capital structures

The statements within the Directors’ report on share capital
structures are incorporated by reference into this statement
of compliance.

Fair, balanced and understandable assessment

In relation to compliance with the Code, the Board has given
consideration as to whether or not the Annual Report and
Financial Statements, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and concluded that this is the case A
statement to this effectis included in the Directors’
Responsibilities Statement on page 66. The preparation of this
documentis co-ordinated by the Finance tearm and the
Company Secretary with Group-wide input and support from
other areas of the business. Comprehensive reviaws have
been undertaken at regular intervals throughout the process
by senior managerment and cther contributing personnel
within the Group.

The Directors’ responsililities for preparing the financial
statements and supporting assumptions that the Company 1s
a going concern are set out on page 64

Long-term viability statement ('LTVS’)

In relation to compliance with the Code, the Board has
assessed the prospects of the Company, taking into account
the Company's current position and principal risks. The LTVS
and supporting assumptions are set out on page 34.

David Lanchester
Company Secretary
26th March 2019
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Audit Committee report

Mike Robson
Chair of the Audit Committee

Dear Shareholder

As Chairman of the Audit Committee, | am pleased to present
the report of the Audhit Committee for the year ended

31st December 2018,

The Audit Committee continues to support the Board by
providing detailed scrutiny of the integrity and relevance ofthe
Group's financial reporting, monitoring the appropriateness of
the Group's internal control and risk management systems and
overseeing the external audit process,

The Audit Committee has continued to foliow a programme of
meetings which are timed to coincide with key events in the
financial calendar. As a Committee, we are committed to
discharging our responsibilities effectively and constructively
challenge the information we receive. Over the past year, the
regular reports the Audit Committee has received from
management and the external auditors have been timely and
well presented, which has enabled the Committee to discharge
its responsibilities effectively. Where necessary, we request
additional detailed information so that we may better assess
certain issues, and the risks and opportunities presented

Further information concerning the activities of the Audit
Committee during the year are set out on the following pages.

Mike Robson
Chair of the Audit Committee
26th March 2019

Matters considered by the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee met on four occasions during the year
ended 31st December 2018 The principal matters discussed
atthe meetings are set out below.

Principal matters considered

March 2018

* Draft Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year
ended 31st December 2017, including significant
judgements and disclosures therein.

* Audit representation letter

» Annual assessment of internal controls and nisk
management

* Review of nsk register and mitigating actions.

s Review of the effect of IFRS 15.

* Finance Director's report on going concern and viability
statement.

* Finance Director's repart on goodwill impairment.

» Consideration of the reappointment of external auditors.

* Independence of external auditors.

July 2018

» Update on internal controls.

¢ Review of procedures for identifying and recording risks.

» Draft half-year report and financial statements for the six
months ended 30th June 2018, including significant
judgements and disclosures therein

October 2018

* Audit plan presented by the auditors,

+ Governance and independence of the external auditors.

s Consideration of the internal audit work carried out by
the Quality Assurance team and expansion of that role.

* Consideration of the need for a separate internal audit
function.

* Review of policy on non-audit services.

December 2018

* Review of accounting policies.

*+ Review of anti-bribery and corruption and whistleblowing
policies,

¢ Review of Committee’s terms of reference.

+ Review of Committee’s effectiveness.

+ Review of procedures for identifying and recording risks.



Significant judgements, key assumptions and estimates
The Aud't Cammittee pays saricular attent’on to matters it considers 1o oe mpertant by virtue of ther mpactan the Groug's
resu'ts ard remuneration of senior management or the teve! of complexity, judgemert or esumation invoived 'n their
application on the corsolidated financial statements. The main areas of focus during the year are set out below:

Matter considered and action
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Matter considered: Action: The recognition of revenue and profit The Committee considerad the consistency
Contract profitand on construction contracts involves s'gnificant and appropniateness of the Group's policies
revenue iudgement due to the inherent difficulty in ard the effect of IFRS 15 in respect of profitand
recognition forecasting the final costs to be incurred on revenue. Their specific application to a number
contracts in progress and the process whereby of targe contracts was considered The
applications are made during the course of the Committee also considered the application of
contract with variations, which can be IFRS 15 to the 2017 financial year and agreed
substantial, often being agreed as part of the with management that no restatement was
final account negotiation. required.
The Committee concurred with management’s
assessment of the contracts and the revenue
recognised for 2018,
Matter considered: Action: The Group's defined benefit pension The Committee reviewed the basis of the
Pension scheme schame is valued annually by external advisers valuation, including the assumptions used, and
accounting In accordance with IFRSs. The valuation is considered the sensitivity of the pension
subject to significant fluctuations based on scheme valuation to changes in those key
actuarial assumptions, including: assumptions, Further details of the valuation,
* discountrates; including the key assumptions used, are
* mortalty assumptions; disclosed innote 23 to the financial statements
* inflation; on pages 107 to 111
* salary increases; and
* expected return on plan assets.
Matter considered: Action: Intangible assats comprise a significant  The Committee agreed with management's

Carrying value of
intangible assets
and investments

element of the Group's net assets. As required
by IFRSs, the Company conducts an impairment
review of these assets every year,

The Committee considered the papers
presented by the Finance Director supporting
management’s assertion that goodwill 1s not
impaired. Other intangible assets comprise
customer relationships on acquisition and are
arnortised. This assertion was supported by
detailed cash flow and profit projections
covering a three-year period, including
sensitivity analysis and an analysis of secured
workload. It also considered the independent
auditors’ comments on the key assumptions
and detailed forecasts made. The issue of
impairment involves making significant
Judgements abeout individual cash-generating
units and the risks they face.

recommendation that no impairment charge
should be made. Further details concerning the
make-up of intangible assets, the assumptions
used and the sensitivity of the carrying value of
intangible assets can be found in note 11 to the
financial statements on pages 96 tc 8.

Aligned to the review of the carrying value of
intangible assets, the Committee also
considered the carrying value of the
subsidiaries in the Parent Company's financial
statements.
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Audit Committee report continued

Membership of the Audit Committee

The memrbers of the Committee during the year were Mike
Robsan (Charr), Peter Maskell and, until his resignation on
18th May 2018, Tony Giddings. Louise Dier also joined the
Committee on her appointment as a Director on 1st January
2019. Biagraphies of the currert members of the Audit
Committee are included on page 37.

Governance

The Committee members are all independent Non-Executive
Directors. The Board is satisfied that Mike Robson has the
requisite recent and refevant financial experience to chair the
Audit Committee and the Committee as a whole has
competence relevant to the canstruction industry. The
Committee routinely meets four times a year, and additionally
as required, to review ar discuss other significant matters.

The Company Secretary also attends the meetings and, when
requested, the Finance Director, the Chiet Executive Officer
and the external auditor also attend parts of the meetings.

The terms of reference of the Committee are available on the
Company's website under the Investor section - Governance.

Internal controls

Following the review of the Graup's payment and
procurement processes and contrals undertaken by an
independent party, a number of changes and improvements
have been made over the last two years. An independent
review of the controls over expenses has been initiated. The
Audit Committee receives regular updates on internal
controls and has concluded that our controls are adequate
and appropriate to our business.

Internal audit

The internal audit function is covered through regular site
visits conducted by Quality Assurance and Group finance
personnel The Audit Committee reviewed the need fora
separate internal audit function during the year and agreed
that, whilst a separate internal audit team was not required,
the remit of the Quality Assurance department would be
expanded to include detailed reviews that the Committee felt
appropriate.

Risk management

Assisted by Executive Directors, the Audit Committee has
focused on mamtaining and improving the procedures to
identify, manage and mitigate the rnisks facing the business
and to drill down on selected risks on a rolling basis through
the year.

External audit

The Audit Committee s responsinie for overseeing -¢'ations
with the external auaitors. including the approvar of fees. and
makes recommerdatons to the Board on their appointrent
and reappointment. Details of the auditors’ remuneration can
be found in note 7 to the financial statements on page 92.

The Committee accepts in principle that certain work of a
non-audit nature 1s most efficiently undertaken by the external
auditors. The policy on non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP {PwC'} is that the Chairman of
the Audit Committee reviews and. if appropriate. approves all
nan-audit services and fees, and any such approval s putto
the Audit Committee for review and ratification at the next
Committee meeting. The auditors’ fees for non-audit services
during the year were £nil (2017: £nil).

The independence of the external auditors is essental to the
provision of an objective opinion on the true and fair
presentation in the financial staternents. Auditor
independence and objectivity 15 safeguarded by limiting the
nature and value of non-audit services performed by the
external auditors, ensuring that employees of the external
auditors who have worked on the audit in the past two years
are not appointed to senior financial positiors in the
Company, and ensuring the rotation of the lead engagement
partner at least every five years. The current lead engagement
partner has held the position for two years. The last audit
tender process was in 2011 when PwC were nitially appointed
and they have been the auditors since. Another audit tender
process will be undertaken by 2021

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the audit
process through quality service revicws with the external
auditors post-audit. At the end of the review process, the
Audit Committee decides whether, given the results of the
review, to recommend to shareholders that the auditors be
reappointed.

Mike Robson
Chair of the Audit Committee
26th March 2019
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Nomination Committee report

lain McCusker
Chair of the Nomination Committee

Dear Shareholder

As Chairman of the Nomination Commitiee, | am pleased to
present the report of the Nomination Committee for the year
ended 31st December 2018.

During the year, the Nomination Committee comprised lain
McCusker (Chair), Peter Maskell, Mike Robson and, until his
resignation on 18th May 2018, Tony Giddings. Louise Dier also
joined the Committee on her appointment as a Director on
1st January 2019, Biographies of the current members of the
Nomination Committee are included on page 37.

The Nomination Committee met five times during the year i
review the structure, size and composition of the Board,
undertake a Board evaluation process and to consider
succession planning for Directors and other senior executives.
The Committee also considered a candidate, Louise Dier, to
replace Tony Giddings as a Non-Executive Director and,
following a thorough interview process, the Committee
recommended the appointment of Louise Dier as a Non-
Executive Director. As the Nomination Committee was
presented with such a suitable candidate for interview, it was
felt that an external search consultancy firm was not reguired.

During the year. tne Committee alsa met and considered the
process of replacing Martin Walton, the Finance Director. The
Commities recommended to the Board to appoint Trevor
Mitchell as an interim Finance Director for one year in order to
give the Commettee time to recruit a long-term replacement.
Subsequently. Trevor indicated that he would like to be
considerad as the long-term replacement and the Committee
metto consider this and recommended to the Board his
permanent appointment.

The Committee gives due consideration to diversification in
the make-up of the Board but, due to the size of the Company,
the most important consideration is to achieve an appropnate
mix of skifls, knowledge and experience, taking into account
the Company's Board Diversity policy. Before any
appointmentis made by the Board, the Nomination
Committee evaluates the balance of skills, experience,
independence and knowledge on the Board and, in the hght
of this evaluation, prepares a description of the role and
capabilities required for a particular appointment.

The performance of individual Directors, the Board, its
committees and the Chairman is reviewed annually. In 2018, in
order to evaluate the performance of the Board, each member
of the Board was asked to complete a2 detailed questionnarre.
The responses to the questionnaire were summarised and
were reviewed and discussed by the Nomination Committee.
Topics covered in the review ncluded strategy. risk
management and the conduct and effectiveness of Board
meetings. Whilst there are always opportunities for
development and improvement, the Directors have
concluded that the Board had effectively discharged its duties
during the year.

lain McCusker
Chair of the Nomination Committee
26th March 2019
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Directors’ remuneration report

Peter Maskell
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Annual statement by the
Chair of the Remuneration
Committee

Dear Shareholder
On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the
remuneration report for the year to 31st December 2018.

The report comprises:

* A summary of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy, which
was approved atthe 2017 AGM and is included for
information only, as itis unchanged.

* The Annual Report on Remuneration, which sets out how
the Remuneration Policy was implemented in the financial
year ending 31st December 2018 and which, together with
this introductory statement, is subject to an advisory
shareholder vote at the 2019 AGM.

The primary objective o' the Reruneration Pobey s o
promcte the long-term success of the Company. In working
towards the fullilment of this abjective, our current
remuneration structure is .ntended to be simple and
transparent. and to cantnbute to the bulding of a sustainable
performance culture. Our policy ensures that performance-
related components will form a significant proportion of the
overall remuneration package, with maxirmum rewards earned
only through the achievement of challenging performance
targets based on measures aligned with our long-term
strategy The overarching remunerauon framework for
Executive Directors consists of base salary, pension, benefits,
annual bonus and a single long-term incentive plan (LTIP). Pay
is subject to recovery and withholding provisions and share
ownership guidelines apply - features intended to enhance
the alignment of interest between Executive Directors and
shareholders and to contribute ta an apprapriate level of risk
mitigation. The Commuttee continues to believe this
framewark is effective and remains aligned wath TClarke's
strategy.

Performance and reward for 2018

The 2018 annual bonus was subject to underlying profit
befare tax targets alongside a scorecard of strategic
objectives closely aligned with the KPls of the business.
Underlying profit before tax increased by 23% to £8.0 million
{2017: £6.5 million) and the performance of the Executive
Directars in executing against the strategic annual benus
objectives set for them at the start of 2018 was metn full.
Therefore, overall, the level of performance achieved resulted
in a maximum bonus being payable to each of the Executive
Directors. The Committee believes this is a fair outcome,
reflecting strong Group and individual performance in 2018.

Earnings per share growth over the three-year perod to

31st December 2018 was 281%. This was above the stretch
vesting condition for the LTIP award granted in 2016 and, as a
result, the award will vest in full on 20th April 2019.



Remuneration scenarios for Executive Directors

The char:s below show now the comaosition of the Executive
Directors’ rernuneration packages vary under the policy at
three parformance levels (mirimum - 1e. fixed pay only, target
and maximum).

Group Chief Executive

Group Managing Directer

Group Finance Director

The charts above are based on:

* salary levels effective 1st January 2019;

* the value of benefits received in 2018 (as per the Directors’
remuneration table) and the projected level for the new
Group Finance Director;

*» the value of pension contribution received in 2018 (as per
the Directors’ remuneration table);

* a 150% of salary maximum annual bonus (with the on-target
level agsuming 50% of maximumy); and

* a 150% of salary LTIP award (with target assumed to be 25%
of the maximum). No share price appreciation or dividend
assumptions in respect of the LTIP awards have been
assumed.
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Implementation of the Remuneration Policy for 2019

The key highlights of how we intand to apply the

Remuneration Policy for 2079 are:

* Base salaries - the Executive Directors' salaries were
increased by 4% effective 1st January 2019 which is broadly
in line with the average increase across the wider workforce

* Variable pay - annual bonus maximum will be 150% of salary
and an LTIP award will be made in May 2019 atup to 150%
of salary.

* Performance measures - will continue to be focused on
simple and transparent measures For the annual bonus,
underlying profit before tax will apply for two-thirds of the
opportunity and key strategic objectives aligned with the
Group's KPls will apply for the remaining one-third of bonus.
For the LTIP, stretching earnings per share targets will be set
for financial year 2021.

Board change

We announced in February 2018 that Trevor Mitchell was
appointed intarim Finance Director for a term of one year with
a basic salary of £224,500. In July 2018, Trevor agreed to
become permanent Group Finance Director. At that time,
Trevor's salary was increased by £60,000 to £284,500, but the
extra £60,000 will not be subject to borus. The rest of his
package remains fully in line with our approved policy, but he
does not receive a pension benefit from the Company.

Alignment with shareholders

We are mindful of our shareholders’ interests and are keen to
ensure a demonstrable link between reward and value
creation. We are proud of the support we have received inthe
past from our shareholders, with over 98% approval of the
Directors’ remuneration report received last year at the 2018
AGM. We hope that we will continue to receive your support
atthe forthcoming AGM in 2019,

Peter Maskell
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
26th March 2019
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The table below summarises the Directors’ Remuneration Policy for the Company which was approved by shareholders atthe
2017 AGM The paoicy came nto effect on 5t May 2017 and is next due to be put to shareholders ‘or approval at the 2020 AGW.
The original pelicy can be found in the 2014 Annual Report, which can be found on our webste

Element of remuneration: Salary

Purpose and link to strategy Maximum
* To provide competitive fixed remuneration 1o attract and retaim » There 3nN0pRrascr Do Mar Murm 37703 0.0 50 a0 salary

Executve Drectors of superior calibre in o-der to deliver growth
for the Las ness

QOperation

s Norma yreviewed anncally win changes typ caliy effact ve
Ist January

* Paid ncasnonamonthy basis, pens onaale

¢ Compeanscn aganst companies wita s miar charactenstics are
Tal(eﬂ NtQ accountimreview

¢ Internal reference points, the responsibilities of the individual
role, progressicn withinthe role and novidus perfor~ance are
also taken nto account

increase Detads of the current salary levels are set out.n the
Arnuat Renorton Rerune-aton o page 61

* Anysalary increase {in percentage of salary terms; wall ordimarily
pe up to the general ncrcase “or tie oroader enaioyes
pooulation: however a higheringc-ease ray be awarded to
-accgnise. far exampie, anincreasc intne sca o scope o
respansibiiity of the -0 ¢ and.or to take accountofre evant
maret Mmovements

» Where an Executive Director s salary s set below market levels at
appointment, a seres of incrcases may pe grven in asa han to
the factors listed above) in order o achieve the desired salary
postionng. suoject to satisfactasy indiv dual pe-forrance

Performance targets

» None, althougn the overall pesfarmance of the ndoviduai 5
cons.dered as part of the salary rev.ow process

Element of remuneration: Benefits

Purpose and link to strategy
s Topromete recrutment and retontion
* To provide a market consistert benehts package

Operation

¢ Benefits may include a combination of car or car allowance,
private medical insarance ang hfe assurance

* Executive Directors will be eligible far any other berefits which
are introguced for the wider wor<force on broacly stme arterms

¢ Relocaton ortravel a lowances may be offered fronsidered
aoprepriate and reasonab e oy the Cormittee

s Any-cazonable business ~elated expenses (including tax
thereon) can be reimbursed if determined to be a taxable benefit

¢ Executive Directors are also eligible to participate in any
all employee share plans operated by the Company, in ine with
prevailing HMRC guidelines (where relevant), on the same bas:s
as for other eligible employees

Maximum

s Thore s no maximum im tout the Cormmittee revicws tae cost of
the benefits provision on a regular basis to ensure that it remains
aporop: ato

e Particoation mthe ail-emplioyee share olans $ s ccrtothe
limits set out by HMRC

Performance targets
* Notappiicable

Element of remuneration: Pension

Purpose and link to strategy
* Provide competitive retirement benefits

Operation

* Defined benefit or defined contribution scheme (or cash
alternative)

* Where the promised levels of benefits canneot be provided
through an appropriate pension scneme, the Growp rmay orovice
benefits through the provision of salary supplements

Maximum

e Defined contribution or cash allowance or combination of the
two up to 10% of salary

¢ Current employees who are cxisting members of the Comnpany’s
defined benefit scheme may be entitled to continue ta accrue
benefits under these arrangements rather than participating in
the defined contribution {or cash equivalent) arrangements. The
maximum pension on retirement at age 65 is 1/60th of finaf
pensionable salary for service befare March 2070, and 1/80th
of revalued pensionable salary for service thereafter Asalary
supplernent may be prov ded nordeto compensate the indiviauat
up to the value of benefits lost as a result of HMRC limits

Performance targets
¢ Notappicaole



Element of remuneration: Bonus

Purpose and link to strategy

-

Incentizise annual ackievermnent ot performance targets refaung
to the Company s KPls
Max.rnam bonus oy payao e for acniev. g comana g targets

Operation

»

Nearreal y Dayan @ o
Narn peas cranle
Levels of award are qeter™ noo oy e Comr ties after tne year
end baszed cn performance agamst tne targets set at the start of
the year

Al poas payreants are atthe wtimate disc-euon of the
Commttee and the Cornr ttee “cta ns an overnding @ scretcn
to ensure that overall bonus payments reflect its view of
carporate pe-formance during the vea
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Maximum
* 150% of salary peranrom

Performance targets

* Group financial measures‘e.g profit-zlated measuresiwill acply
fortne ra or by of the bonus

s lfused, personal or strategic ob,ectves wll be apphed for tre
Tiior ty oftre banus

o Meas.-es and ogpect vosw oo actoo aed e a one yoar
performance parod

Element of remuneration: Long-Term Incentive Plan

Purpose and link to strategy

Aligned to zel very of strategy and lang-term value creation
Align Executive Directors’ interests with those of shareholders
Te promete ratention

Operation

LTIP awards take the form of conditional rights or mil, nominal cost

ar market va ue options and are normally granted annally
Awards vest after no ess tran three years subect to the
achievenent of pre sct perfor »ance crternia and continued
employment

The Comm ttee rev ews the quantum of awards anndally and
mon tars tae continuing suitab ity of the pe-‘armance measures
The Comm ttee may determ ne at grant that an arsount {'n cash
or shares} equivalent to the dividends paid or payable on vested
shares up to the vesting date may necome payabe, any amaunt
payable may assume the rainvestment o dividends over the
vesting nened

Maximum
¢ Annual awards of no more than 150% of salary

Performance targets

s Performance normally measured over tnreo years

e Awards currently vest based on performance aga nst stretching
earnings per share 'EPS') targets set and assessed by the
Committes. However, different financial strategic orshare
price based measures may be set “or future awara cycies as
appropriate to reflect the strategic prionties of the business at
that ime

* Notwithstanding the perforrance outcome, the Remoneration
Cormr ttee retans the discret on to acyust the vest ng outcome
upwards or downwards to reflect the underlying performance of
the Company over the tiree year nenod

¢ A maximum of 25% vests atthreshold, increasing to 100% vesting
atmaximum on a steaight-ine bass

s Withholding and recovery provisions may apply inthe eventcofa
mater.al misstatement, er-ar n calow atan of awa':,‘.’p(;'{orﬁ‘:ﬂcc
ar gross msconduct

Element of remuneration: Share ownership guidelines

Purpose and link to strategy

Ta increase alignment oetween Executives and shareholders

Operation

Executive Directors are required to build and maintain a
sharehoiding of 30,000 shares through the retention of vested
snare awards or through open market purcnases

Only wholly owned shares wili count towards the guideline

Maximum
* Notapolcabie

Performance targets
s Notapp.acable
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued

Element of remuneration: Non-Executive Director

Purpose and link to strategy Maximum
« To arcey de coTpettve feesto attractanc ¢tann gn zabre o Trierc .50 Br0sct QoG Ak L e
Non-Executive Diractors ¢ Anyncrcasew 02 go ded Dy CNang

¢ Torefinctthe time commirment ard responsibilities o' the role

'l

St trents and resnonsion Uy evel

tne hroader erp oy oo soouiaton
Operation
¢ Tho Charmansfen s sct oy the Boaro onthe recommanaat ono” Performance targets
the Remuneration Committee, The Non-Executive Directors fees * Notapaolranie

are set by the Baard on tne recemmanicat o of the Exocut ve
Directors. No Director takes partin discussions relating to their
awnremuneraticn

s Non Executwes may be paid addit onal fees for char ng ane of
tne major Board carmmittees or for ho d.ong the Sen o
Independent Director position

s The fees are set tak.ng nta accountthe ime commit-nent and
respans ol ties af the role

* |nexceptional circumstances, ifthere is atemporary yet material
increase in the time commtments for Non-Executive Directars,
the Boad may pay extra fees to recognise the add.t cna
wor oac

» Feesare normally pa d manthly in cash ang are normany
reviewed adnuatly

* Drrectors can be reimbursed for any reasonable business-related
expensas (including the tax thereon if deter~imed to be a taxable
benefit)

Notes:

The chouce of the performance metr cs appl cable ta the 2019 annual bonus scheme reflects the Committes's oshetinat any Imcentive compensation should oe
approp ately challeaging and tieu to cotn the delivery of targets relating to key finane al measure, profit ang whicnsupnort ive Cormpany's strateg « cojectives

through naividaal andror strazcgic perfarmance meas.res Pterded 1o ersure thot Ezeut ve Dirnciors are incantvised to acliver across ararge of ob ez ves o

wh e they are accountable. The Committes hasetainad somre Hexibility or tne spec fie measures whior will be nsad over the bfe of the policy to ensure thatany

imeas e zie Ll alg

oo with the strategic mperatives presalling attas Lme they a g set

2 The perforrance condi or appd cablata the 2019 LTIP awards 15 wnderheng earrings oer share growtk, Urderharg EPS was selectea by the Remunesation
Corenaittes oo the bases thatit i ahigned with the delvery of leng-rerr retars to shareholgers and 1tz one of the Group's <ev * nancal matrnics Tae Cammittes nas
retained flexiblity onthe measuras which will ne used for *uture award cycles g0 ensure tnat the rreasures are fully aligneo with the st-ategy preva I ng atthe ime
the aware © are gre nten: Notwithets g thus the Commirtas wga goeaek b A3t w th mare sharchaloers mac, once of ang matenal cnanae trthe chawe of e
_1IP performa-ce measures.

3 The Cormmittes operates the annual porus LTP and allemrployee share plans in accordance wih the celevant plan rules anc where sporoonats, the Listmg Rules

HMRC le tion The Comimittee consstent with ket prae ki CreTian ave mberof creas relst ng Cperat O Ang et eior of
the plans These ncloae for exanple the timing ot cwards anc setting pedonrarce snfer a canm yean cealing w th Arcreln D e nspeLlely Irent
performance targets .n excennonal croumstances {provid ng the ~ew Largels are no less challengirg thar onigimally envisagediard nresoact of share awards, o

sstthe number of share s sbjactto an awere nthe evert ofu vanot o0n the share capital of the Company

4

Cor the avordance of cuubt inappraving this Directors’ Remune-atior Palicy authonity s g vento the Company 1o bancur any commitments entared into with
cur-entor former Diectorsisech as e payment of a pensior of the vestirg/exerc se of past share awards) Detals of any payments to tormer Drrectors will be set
aat.nthe Amnacl Report on Remuanaration as they ar

5 Consistent with HVRC legis ation the HMRE ol emplayes share g ans o aat have perforance conaitinns
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Single totat figure remuneration (audited)
The table below reports the total remuneration recevable in respect of qualifying services by each Director during the year:

Year ended 371st December 2018

Total salary Taxable Annual Lang-term Pension-
and fees benefits bonus incentives related Total
£ £ £ £ benefits £

Executive:
Mark Lawrence 301,800 21.075 452700 50,574 177,511 1.003,6860
Mike Crowder 257,500 21.075 386.250 50,574 145,666 861,065
Trevar Mitchedl’ 265,792 18,998 336,750 - - 621,540
Martin Walten® 263,208 3,654 - - 18,284 285,144
Non-Executive:
lain McCusker 63,300 - - - - 63.300
Peter Maskell 46,900 - - - - 46,900
Tony Giddings? 19,542 - - - - 12,542
Mike Robson 446,200 - - - - 46,900
Tl eea Michel sz epno oteatette Boceo on T Feragn, 2015

2 Mart n'walton resigned ‘rom e Boare 9n 2nd February 2078 See page 56 tor a oreacdown of Maran Walton's total remuneranc-.
3 Tary Giecings gugnen o the Boar on *dth May 2079

Year ended 31st December 2017

Poros o -

Tanchile Loang-t=nr torafes

benefits  Annadl banas e T s benetits Tl
Executive:
Mark Lawrence 293,000 23,825 363174 74,070 120,978 875,047
Mike Crowder 250,000 28,463 309,843 74,070 119,141 781,537
Martin Walton 218,060 22,215 75,000 - 45,880 361095
Non-Executive:
tain McCusker 60,167 - - - - 60,167
Beverley Stewart’ 18,958 - - - - 18,958
Teny Giddings 45,500 - - - - 45,500
Mike Robson 45,500 - - - - 45 500

1 Bewsiley Stewart retive s e he Boowre on Sthiba, 2017
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

The figures n the single total igure remuneration table are derived from the following:

Total salary and fees

The armount of salary and fees recaived in the year. The figure for Martin Walton included a
termination payment of £244,500 which represented payment in leu of one years' notice of
£224,500 and £20,000 as a termination payment

Taxable benefits

The taxable value of benefits received in the year. These are a car or car allowance and private
medical insurance

Annual bonus

The 2018 annual bonus was subject to underlying profit before tax targets {twao-thirds of bonus)
alongside a scorecard of strategic objectives closely aligned with the KPIs of the business
{one-third of bonus).

The underlying profit before tax targets were as follows: threshold of £7.0 million (45% payable),
target of £7.3 million {60% payable) and stretch of £8.0 million {100% payable). Actual
performance was £8.0 million which resulted in 100% of maximum for this element being
payable Performance against strategic objectives was strong and resulted in 100% of maximum
for this element being payable.

Overall this resulted in a bonus of 100% of the maximum {150% of salary) for Mark Lawrence,
Mike Crowder and Trevor Mitchell.

Long-term incentives

The value of LTIP awards that vest in respect of a performance period that is completed by the
end of the relevant financial year. For 2018 this includes the 2016 Conditional shares awards
which will vestin full on 20th April 2019 The value is based on a share price of 84.29p, which is
the average share price for the last quarter of 2018, The performance conditions are detailed on
page 58. EPS growth over the three-year period to 31st December 2018 was 281%. For 2017 this
includes the 2015 LTIP awards which vested in full on 29th Aprit 2018. The value is based on the
share price of 82.3p, which is the share price on the last trading day before vesting. The
performance conditions are detalled on page 38. EPS growth overthe three-year period to

31st December 2017 was 295%.

Avalue for the 2016 Conditional options which will vest in full on 20th April 2019 has not been
included as the options have an aption price of 88.5p which is above the share price of 84.2%p
used to calculate the value of the benefit, as detailed above.

Pension-related benefits

Pensions are calculated based on HMRC's pension input method. Details of accrued pensions
can be found on page 58. Trevor Mitchell does not receive a pension benefit from the Company.
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Directors’ interests and Minimum Shareholding Requirement ("MSR’) (audited)

Directors’ interests in the issued share capital of TClarke plc are set out below. There is a MSR for the Executive Directars
whereby each Executive Director is required to build and maintain 2 holding of 36,000 shares in TClarke plc. For Non-Executive
Directors, the MSR reguirement s 2,000 shares in TClarke plc a5 defined in the Company's Articles of Associaton.

The oeneficial interests of Directors in the Ordinary share capital of TClarke plc at 315t December 2018 and 31st December 2017
were:

L ~ IR T T

31st Docemner 2018 3tstDecerrber 2007 ISR ToNTS e

Tl oaushares T Up e coe o grare awsdsT vt T o el npn et
Mark Lawrence 99295 41,273 356 588 30,000
Mike Crowder 21,295 33273 314,934 30000
Trevor Mitchell” 142,000 N/A 135,078 -
Martin Walton? N/A 31,273 - -
tain McCusker 2,000 2,000 - -
Peter Maskell 41,500 N/A - -
Tony Giddings?® N/A 2,000 - -
Mike Robson 2,000 2,000 - -
T Trevor Mitche'le oot wn any thares o his appo nimestte tre Bocrs on ot ok wae, 2008
2 Mart rnWalton tesigned “rom the Boara on 2nd February 2078 ano held 31 273 shares as atthat date
I Tery Giriecimusresignet [ am v 2o on 15th Ma, 2018, e nele 2000 shares csatthatr gate

4 Tho auistanamg onditional share awards ard outstanai~g conditranal aptons are sulyectto performance corditions.
There have been na changesto Directors’ interests since 31st December 2018.

The Directors’ interests over shares as a result of their participation in the TClarke Equity Incentive Plan {‘EIP') are as follows:

a1 012018 A2 2R Freicime  Eal Date of
Arero cate Nuoirbe Crronted TxErCEen Lasen N D Pt of cxernisn =AY
Mark Lawrence
Conditiona shares 29/04/2015 90.000 - (9C,000) - - - 29/04/2018 29/04/2025
Conditona shares  20/04/2016 60 600 - - - 6C 000 - 20/04/2019 20/04/2026
Condit’ onai shares 08/05/2017 115 000 - - - 15000 - 08/05/2020 08/05/2027
Caond tional shares 25/04/2018 - 181 588 - - 181,588 - 25/04/2021 25/04/2028
Conational ootions 20/04/2016 36,000 - - - 30,000 88.5p 20/04/2019 20/04/2026
Mike Crowder
Conditional shares  29/04/2015 90 0G0 - {90,000) - - - 29/04/2018 29/04/2025
Conditional shares  20/04/2016 60,000 - - - 60.000 - 20/04/2019 20/04/2026
Conditional snares (8/05/2017 100.000 - - - 100.000 - 0B/05/2020 08/05/2027
Conditiona’ shares 25/04/2018 - 154,934 - - 154,934 - 25/04/2021 25/04/2028
Conditiona options  20/04/2016 30,000 - - - 30,000 848.5p 20/04/2019 20/04/2026
Trevor Mitchell
Conditonal shares 25/04/2018 - 135078 - - 135 078 - 25/04/202%1 25/04/2028
Martin Walton'
Conditional shares  29/04/2015 20.000 - - ($0,000) - - 29/04/2018 29/04/2025
Conditional shares 20/04/2014 60 000 - - 160,000) - - 20/04/2019 20/04/2026
Ceoenditional shares 08052017 85000 - - {85,000) - - 08/05:/2020 08/05/2027
Conditional options  20/04/2016 30000 - - {30,000) - 88.5p 20/04/2M9 20/04/2026

1 Folluwnng h sresignancen from the Board on 2nd Fenruary 2018 the outstandimg FIP awards in the ~ame of Mart n Walton lansed on thardate uader the rules of
the EIP
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The conditional share awards a~d options wiil vest subject ta continuea employment wits the Grouo and satisfaction cf the
following performance conditions over a three-year period ending 31st December preceding the earliest vesting date.

A-visal growtn mEPS sue.e RPY e T

Less than 3% il

3% 25%

Between 3% and 10% Between 25% and 100% on a straight-line basis
Above 10% 100%

Tlmcnoomprittes oo e o ey g PP et i e e s e m  sothotlie pecr orace s ng e ol o

The Directors' interests in the TClarke Savings Related Share Option Scheme ('SAYE Scheme') are as follows:

LT 2018 3112 2013 Eozcme Ea Date of

At nate NoaThas Goate s Lapnes Ercicizen farmo. pries ot e exo,

Mark Lawrence 0841072015 10,322 - - (10,322} - 6975p 01:12/2018 31:05/2019
24/10/2018 - 4,807 - - 4,807 74.88p 0112/2021 31/05/2022

Mice Crowder 08/10,/2015 10,322 - - (10,322} - 69750 O112:°2018 310572019
24/10/2018 - 4,807 - - 4,807 74.88p 01:12/2021 3170572022

Travor Mitcnell 2410/2018 - 4,807 - - 4,807 74.88p 01/12,2027 31/05/2022
Martin Walton? 08/10/2015 10,322 - {10,322} - - 69750 01.12/2018 31/05/2019

1 Optons exerc sed on 3rd Decercber 2018,
2 Follovang s res grator frem the Board or 2nd Febroary 2018, tre cutstanding SAYE award i the name o Mart o Waltos lapsed on that date unaer e nudes of
the SAYE

The market price of a 10p Ordinary share on 315t December 2018 (being the last day of trading of 2018) was 87p and the range
during the year ended 31st December 2018 was 73p to 93.6p.

External appointments
Mark Lawrence and Mike Crowder do not hole any external appointments. Trevor Mitchell 1s a Director of It's Purely Financial
Limited.

Pension scheme (audited)
Details of the accrued pension benefits that the Executive Directors would be entitled to on leaving service are as follows:

nerease in Increase r lrcrease n
Irtel penoicn ACe i Eension LOCTOoC perans Total pension Transter oz ot tanster solae lews Transterwalac of
ELANRITN anclasing texclading PRI GO0 LG DensInn Dhrector’s LLLILBCG EaNsInn
et 311277 inflatinnt inflaticr) St 311278 at 311217 contnbotions 2t 311218
Thie “oa fpa Ipa i’ £ -
Mark Lawrence 77,031 12,874 11,005 82905 1,540,614 177 51 1,798,105
Mike Crowder 78,254 11,811 9939 90,065 1,565,074 145,666 1,801,304

Inflationary increases were assumed to be 2.4% per annum during 2018 in line with increases in the Consumer Price Index
during the year.

Trever Mitchell does not receive a pension benefit from the Company.
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Performance graph {audited)

Tre graph below shows the total srarenolder return trat would have ssen obtained over the past ten years by invest.ng £100

in shares of TClarke plc on 31st December 2008 and £100 in a notioral investment in the FTSE All-Share Index and the FT5E
All-Share Construction & Matenals index on the same date. In all cases it has been assumed that all income has been reinvested.
The FTSE All-Share Index and the FTSE All-Share Construction & Materials Index are considered to be the most appropriate
broad equity indices to use as a companson because the Company is a constituent of both,

Shareholder return 2009-2018
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Total remuneration {audited)

The total remuneration figures for the Chief Executive during each of the last ten financial years are shown in the table below.
The total remuneration figure includes the annual bonus based on that year's performance and LTIP awards based on three-year
performance periods ending in the relevant year. The annual bonus payout and LTIF vesting level as a percentage of the
maximum cpportunity are also shown for each of these years.

2009 FHA Foia 2Nz 2013 2¢14 2015 2014 25" o
Total remuneration (£G00s} 23 234 245 266 308 300 4364 567 875 1.003
Annual bonus (%) 0% 0% 0% 0% 9% 0% 24% 32% 659% 100%
LTHP vesting {%) 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%

1 Pat Stanboroagh haln the positon of CEG 1 2009

Percentage change in Chief Executive’s remuneration

The table below shows the percentage change in the Chief Executive’s salary, benefits and annual bonus between the financial
year ended 31st December 2017 and 31st Decermnber 2018, compared with that of the total amounts for all UK employees of the
Group for each of these elements of pay.

2018 2007 %
£k “k ¢ Ne g

Salary:
Chief Executive 301.8 293.0 3.0%
UK employee average 48.7 45.2 77%
Benefits:
Chief Executive 21.0 238 {(11.7%)
UK employee average 1.2 20 (40%]}
Annual bonus:
Chief Executive 452.7 363.2 24.6%
UK employee average 2.52 167 50.8%

Average number of UK employees 1,346 1,348
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Relative importance of spend on pay

The foliowing table shows the Group's total spend on pay refative to dividends and total cperating expanses Total operating
expenses comprise cost of sales and administrative expenses before amaortisation of intangible assets and cther non-underying
costs.

2018 st £

fm A e

Statf costs 79.1 70.3 12.5%
Dividends 1.5 1.4 7%
Total operating expenses 318.0 304.0 4.6%

Service contracts and letters of appointment
All Executive Directors have 12-month notice periods from the Company (and 12 months from the Executive Director}in
accordance with their service agreements.

Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment which include intial terms of three years.

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration
The Company's approach to the Chairman's and Executive Directars' remuneration is determined by the Board on the advice of
the Remuneration Committee.

During the year, the Remuneration Committae comprised Peter Maskell (Chair), lain McCusker, Mike Robsan and, until his
resignation on 18th May 2018, Tony Giddings, who was Chair of the Committee until his resignation. Louise Dier alsa joined the
Committee on her appointment as a Director on Tst January 2019. Biegraphical informatien on the Committee members and
details of attendance at the Remuneration Committee’s meetings during the year are set out on pages 37 and 42 respectively.

The Remuneration Committee has access to independent advice where appropriate. New Bridge Street {NBS'} (a trading name
of Aon Hewitt Ltd, an Aon plc company) was appointed by the Committee in 2016 to provide independent advice on
remuneration matters

Representatives from NBS attend Committee meetings on invitation and provide advice to the Committee Chairman outside of
meetings as necassary, Fees are charged an a cost incurred basis and for advice to the Committee totalted £3,500 in the year
ended 31st December 2018. NBS is a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and operates voluntarily under the
Group's code which sets out the scope and conduct of the role of executive remuneration consultants when advising UK listed
companies. NBS does not undertake any other work for the Company, and the Committee is satistied that the advice provided
by NBS remains objective and independent

The Committee also receives input from the Chief Executive and advice from the Company Secretary. No individuals are present
when their own remuneration is being discussed.

Statement of voting at Annual General Meeting

The Company remains committed to angoing shareholder dialogue and takes a keen interest in voting outcomes. The following
table sets cut voting vutcomes in respect of the resolutions relating to approving Directors’ remuneration mattars at the
Caompany's AGM on 18th May 2018:

vores for Votes

Resaation CHBEET T % ofvoie  Vares aga st % af vate withmele
r p

Approval of Directors’ remuneration report 10,893,880 98.34% 184,113 1.66% 47,281
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Implementation of the Remuneration Policy for the year ending 31st December 2019
A summary of how the Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be applied during the year ending 31st Decembear 2019 is set out
below.

Basic salary
Increases for 2019 are shown below. The Executive Directors’ salaries were increased by 4% effective 1st January 2019,

D ecior 2019 Lt Horcrease
Mark Lawrence £313,875 301800 4%
Mike Crowder £267,800 £257.500 4%
Trevor Mitchell’ £233,500 £224,500 4%
1 Trevor Mitchel was apuo nted a Directzar on st tebroary 2078 81 a salary of £224,503 On becomn ng permanant b narce D -ector nuuly 2018, s salary increasses o

£284.500 through an additinral £86 000 woich iz rotsob ectto hanus mistotalsalary n 2019 well be £293 500,

Pension arrangements
The Company operated a defined benefit pension and death benefits scheme of which Mark Lawrence and Mike Crowder are
members. The defined benefits scheme 1s closed to new members. The life assurarce bensfitis four-times pensionable salary.

Where the promised levels of benefits cannot be provided through the appropriate scheme, the Group can continue to provide
benefits through the provision of salary supplements.

Trevor Mitchell does not receive any pension berefit from the Company.

Annual bonus
The maximurm bonus potential for the year ending 31st December 2019 1s 150% of salary for all the Executive Directors.

Awards are determined based on a combination of both the Group's financial results, being growth in Group profit before tax
{two-thirds of overall bonus} and strategic targets (one-third of overall bonus) being met.

Maximum bonus will only be payable when both the financial results of the Group have significantly exceeded expectations and
all strategic targets have been met.

The measures have been selected to reflect a range of key financial and operational goals which support the Company's
strategic objectives The respective targets have not been disclosed as they are considered by the Board to be commercially
sensitive. However, retraspective disclosure of the targets and performance againstthem will be provided in the remuneration
report for the year ending 315t December 2019 provided that they do not remain commercially sensitive at thattime.

The Executive Directors’ performance will be assessed individually by the Commuittee against the measures and targets, relying
on audited information where appropriate, and having regard to the value which has been created for shareholders.

Long-term incentives
Consistent with past awards, | TIP awards that will be granted in 2019 will vest subject to continued employment with the Group
and satisfaction of the following performance conditions over a three-year period ending on 31st December 2021.

Annual growtn .2 EPS above RPU Peoportimn ol cwase vosnitg

Less than 3% Nil

9% 25%

Between 3% and 10% Between 25% and 100% on a straight-line basis
Above 10% 100%

* Base oo'nt from whios performarce smessured s wased on average wnaerly ng EPS for the thres year s ended 31st Decanbar 2018
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Non-Executive Directors

The Company's approach to Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration is set by the Board with account teken of the time and

responsibility involved in each role. No additional fees are paid in respect of membership of any Board commuttees. Asamrary

of current fees 1s shown in the table below, which includes an increase of 4% effective 1st January 2019

far-fxez mive Diusctors 2019 2otz walnEaze
lain McCusker £65,850 £63,300 4%
Peter Maskell £48,775 £46 900 4%
Louise Dier £48,775 MNAA N/A
Mike Robsen £48,775 £46,900 4%

By order of the Board

Peter Maskell
Chair ofthe Remuneration Committee
26th March 2019
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Directors’ report

The Directors report should be read in conjunction with the Strategic report on pages 1 to 34 and the Corporate Governance
report on pages 36 to 62, both of which form part of this Directors report. The Directors’ report comprises sections of the
Annual Report incorporated by reference as set out be'ow which taken together, contain the information te be inciuded -r the
Annual Report, where applicable, under Listing Rule 9.8.4,

Going concern Page 83

Board membership Pages 36 and 37
Dividends Page 22
Directors' long-term incentives Pages 50 to 62
Corporate Governance report Pages 36t0 62
Future developments of the business of the Group Pages 2to 19
Employee equality, diversity and involvement Pages 24 to 27
Carbon emissions Page 29
Information to the independent auditor Page 66
Dividend waiver Page 84
Financial risk management Pages 112 tc 115
Subsidiaries Page 116
Directors

The following Directors served during the year ended 31st December 2018 and as at the date of this report, except as indicated:

Mame Appo tnent

{ain McCusker Chairman

Mike Robson Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Peter Maskell Non-Executive Director (appointed Tst January 2018)

Mark Lawrence Group Chief Executive Officer

Mike Crowder Group Managing Director

Trevor Mitchell Group Finance Director lappointed 1st February 2018)

Louise Dier Non-Executive Director (appointed 1st January 2019}

Tony Giddings Senior Independent Non-Executive Director (resigned 18th May 2018}
Martin Walton Group Finance Director {resigned 2nd February 2018}

Brief biographies of current serving Directors, indicating their experience and qualifications, can be found on pages 36 and 37.

In line with the new UK Corporate Governance Cede, all the Directors shall be subject to annual re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting (AGM'} on 10th May 201%. Therefore, all Directors will retire and offer themselves for re-election apart
from Louise Dier who is standing for election, having been appointed a Director since the fast AGM.

Powers of Directors

The powers of the Directors are determined by the Company’s Articles of Assaciation, the Companies Act 2006 and the
directions given by the Campany by reselutions passed in general meetings. The Directors are autharised by the Articles of
Association to issue and allot Ordinary shares, to disapaly statutory pre-empticn rights and to make market purchases of the
Company's shares. The Directors currently have shareholder approval for the issue of Ordinary share capital up to a maximum
amount of £1,394,318 and for the buyback of Ordinary shares up to 3 maximum aggregate of 10% of the issued QOrdinary share
capital. The Directors will be seeking to renew their authorities at the forthcoming AGM.
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Directors’ report continued

Share capital

The Company’s share capital consists of Ord nary shares with a nominal value of 10p each Thessued share capital as at

31st December 2018 was £4,286,857 20, consisting of 42,868,572 Crdinary shares of 10p each. At 26th March 2019 the issued

share capital had increased to £4,297,566 .10 consisting of 42 575,661 Ordinary shares of 10p each The Company’s issued

Crdinary shares are fully paid and rank equally in all respects. There are no restrictions on the size of a holding nor on the

transfer of Ordinary shares in the Company or on the exercise of voting rights attachad to them, save that

s certain restrictions may from time to time be imposed by laws and regulations (for example, insider trading laws and market
requirements relating to close periods); and

¢ sursuantio the Listing Rules of the Financiat Conduct Autharity, whereby certain employees of the Company require the
approval of the Company to deal in the Company's shares.

Further details on share capital are shown in note 19 1o the financial statements on pages 102 to 105.
Substantiail shareholdings

Notifications of the following voting interests in the Company’s Ordinary share capital had been received by the Company (in
accordance with Chapter 5 of the FCA's Disclosure and Transparency Rules) as at 31st December 2018 and 2éth March 2019:

Moo afshaies oot Muniber ot zhe res Vs of

rooar sohineg rohts - Ing - ghts:

31zt Decamuper 2018 P2l - 2ot Warn 2000 =i

Regent Gas Holdings 3,813,036 ?.12 3,813,034 212
Hargreaves Lansdown Stockbrokers 2,454,595 587 2,454,595 5.87
Barclays Stockbrokers 2198,86% 5.26 2.198,849 524
Walker Crips Wealth Management Ltd 2189190 5.23 2189190 523
Miton Group Plc 4,180,072 299 2128528 4.95
Interactive Investor 1,740,829 416 1,740,829 416
Charles Stanley & Co. Ltd 1,364,585 3.26 1,364,585 3.26

The information shown above was correct at the time of disclosure, however the date received may not have been within the
current financial reporting period. it should alse be noted that these heldings may have changed since the Company was
notified, however, notification of any change is not required until the next notifiable threshold is crassed.

Significant agreements - change of control
The Directors are not aware of any significant agreements that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control ofthe
Company following a takeover bid,

The Company has an Equity Incentive Plan ('EP') in place for Directors and senior management, and an employee share save
scheme in place which 1s available to all employees. The rules of the EIP provide that awards made under the EIP may vest on a
change of contrel of the Company, at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee. The rules of the Savings Related Share
Cption Scheme provide that in the event of a change of control, outstanding options may be exchanged or replaced with similar
options on the same terms. Further details on employee share schemes are disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements on
pages 102 to 105.

There are no other known agreements between the Company and 1ts Directors or employees providing for compensation for
loss of office ar employment that accurs because of a takecver bid.

Significant interests

Save for interests in service agreements, none of which extend beyond 12 calendar months, the Directors have no material
interest in any contract of significance that would have required disclosure under the cantinuing obligations of the Financial
Cenduct Authority Listing Rules, nar have they any beneficial interest in the issued share capital of the subsidiary companies.
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Qualifying third party indemnities

The Articles of Association of the Company entitle the Directors, to the extent permitted by the Companies Act 2006 and other
applicable legislation, to be incemnified out of the assets of the Company in the event that they suffer any expenses in
connection with certain proceedings relating to the exacution of their duties as Directors of the Company.

In additicn, the Company has in place insurance in favour of its Directars and officers in respect of certain losses or Labilities to
which they may be exposed due to their office up to a mit of £10 million. The insurance was in force throughout the period.

Research and development

The Group undertakes research and development activity in creating innovative design and construction solutions integral to
the delivery of its projects. The direct expenditure incurred s not separately identifiable as the investment is usuzlly contained
within the relevant project

Political donations
The Group made no political donations during the year ending 31st December 2018(2017: £nil).

Events after the balance sheet date
There have been no significant events since the balance sheet date which would have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Company status
Sofar as the Directors are aware, the Company 1s not a close company.

Statement of disclosure of information to the auditor

Asfar as each Director who s in office at the time when the Directors’ reportis approved is aware, there is no relevant audit
infermation of which the Company’s auditor is unaware, and each such Director has taken all reasonable steps to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to estabiish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that nformation.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418(2) of the Companies Act 2006.

Aresolution is to be proposed atthe AGM for the reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as independent auditor of the
Company at a rate of remuneration to be determined by the Audit Committee.

Annual General Meeting ('AGM’}

The AGM of the Company will be held at 200 Aldersgate, St Pauls, London EC1A 44D at 10.00am on 10th May 2019. The Notice
convening the AGM, together with details of the special business to be considered and explanatory notes for each resolution, 1s
contained in a separate circular sent to shareholders. It 1s also available to be viewed on the Company's websits.

Approved by the Directors and signed by order of the Board.
David Lanchester
Company Secretary

26th March 2019

TClarke plc s registered in England No. 119351.
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in
respect of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law, the
Directors have prepared the Group financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs}) as adopted by the European Union and Parent
Coempany financial statements in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Unien. Under company law, the Directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and Parent Company and of the profit or loss of
the Group and Parent Company for that period. In preparing
the financial staterments, the Directors are required to:
* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;
¢ state whether applicable IFRSs a5 adopted by the European
Union have been followed for the Group financial
statements and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union
have been followed for the Parent Company financial
statements, subject to any material departures disclosed or
explained in the financial statements;
* make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and
* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless itis inappropriate to presume that the Group and
Parent Company will cantinue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group and Parent Company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group and Parent Company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements and the Directors’ remuneration
repart comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

The Directors are also responsible for safequarding the assets
of the Group and Parent Company and hence fortaking
reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and otherirregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the Parent Company’s website. Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors cansider that the Annual Report and Financial
Statements, taken as a whole, i1s fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group and Parent Company's
performance. business model and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in
the Board of Directors section on pages 36 and 37, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge:

¢ the Parent Company financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Unian, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit of the Company;

« the Group financial statements, which have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, give atrue and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit of the Group; and

¢ the Directors’ Reportincludes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the Group and Parent Company, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it
faces.

In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors’

report is approved:

* sofar asthe Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Group and Parent Company’s
auditors are unaware; and

* they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken
as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group
and Parent Company’s auditors are aware of that
information.

On behalf of the Beard

Trevor Mitchell
Finance Director

lain McCusker
Chairman

26th March 2016

TClarke plc
Registered number: 119351
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of TClarke plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinien, TClarke plc's Group financial statements and

Parent Company financial staterments (the financial statements’):

* give 2 true and farr view of the state of the Group's and of
the Parent Company's affairs as at 31st December 2018 and
of the Group's profit and the Group's and the Parent
Company's cash flows for the year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as
adopted by the European Union and, as regards the Parent
Company's financial statements, as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

* have been preparad in accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the |AS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the
Annual Report and Financial Staterments 2018 (the "Annual
Report”), which comprise: the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31st December 2018, the
consolidated income statement and consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated and company
statements of cash flows, and the consolidated and company
statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, which include a
description of the significant accounting policies.

Our opinion Is consistent with our reporting to the Audit
Committee.

Basis for opinion

We cenducted our audit in accordance with Imternational
Standards on Auditing (UK} ("1SAs (UK)" ) and spplicable law.
Cur respensibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in
the Auditors’ respansibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit
evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which in¢ludes the FRC's Ethical
Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that
non-audit services prehibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard
were not provided to the Group or the Parent Company.

We have provided no non-audit services to the Group or the
Parent Company in the period from 1st January 2018 to
31st December 2018.

Our audit approach

s Overall Group materahty: £1.3 milion
{2017- £626,000), based on 0.5% (2017
0.25%) of average revenue for the last five
years.

e Overall Parent Company rmaterality:
£488 000 (2017: £484,000), based or 1%
of tota assets

* Substantially all of our auditwork was
conducted from the head office in
Lonaaon,

* We also metwith representatves from
across al- four regions m the course of the
audit.

* Revenue recogrmition and .ong torm
contract accounting In respect of
construction contracts

+ Defined benefit pension plan liabilities.

* Goodw landintangiole assets
Imoa rment assessmeant

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and
assessed the risks of material misstatementin the financial
statements.

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including
fraud

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we
identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with

laws and regulations related to the Companies Act 2006, the
Listing Rules, pensions and UK tax legisiation, and Health and
Safety Executive Legislation, and we considered the extent

to which non-compliance might have a material effect on

the financial statements. We also considered those laws and
regulations that have a directimpact on the preparation of
the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006.
We evaluated management's incentives and cpportunities
for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements
{including the risk of override of controls), and determined
that the principal risks were related to posting inappropriate
journals to increase revenue or reduce expenditure,
management bias in accounting estimates, and inappropriate
allocation of expenses between contracts. Audit procedures
performed by the engagement team included a review of
the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting
documentation, review of correspondence with the
regulators, enquiries of management, review of significant
estimates, review of a selection of journals posted throughout
the year, and a review of cost allocations between contracts.
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of TClarke plc continued

Report on the audit of the financial statements

There are inherent imitations in the audit procedures
described above and the further removed non-compliance
with laws and regulations 1s from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would
become aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting a matenal
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concaalment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’
professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit
of the financial statements of the current period and include
the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including
those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit
strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing
the effarts of the engagement team. These matters, and any
comments we make on the results of our procedures thereaon,
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
This is not a complete list of all risks identified by cur audit,

We selected a sample of contracts to test, based on both

quantitative and qualitative criteria including:

* high levels of revenue recognisedin the year;

s low margins or loss making contracts;

* contracts with significant balance sheet exposure including those
with matenal amounts recogn.sed wnich were not agreea with the

Revenue recognition and long-term contract accounting
in respect of construction contracts

We focused on the revenue and profit recognised on long-term
contracts because they result in material balances, imvolve
judgements and can be complex. IFRS requires revenue to be
recognised over the course of the contract, by select.ng an

appropriate method for measuring the entity's progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. if a project s,
or 15 farecast to be, loss making, they require tne full loss ta be
recogrised immediateiy.

clent; ana

» other high nisk contracts identfied through discussions with

management, mcluding those with a high 1evel of vanations or
changes tothe contract scope relatwe to the requiced contract

. total.
The Group generates revenuc from long term contracts manly

reiating to mechanical and electrical services. The percentage
completion of contracts 1s calculated based on the amount of costs
incurred to date compared with the total expected costs to be
meurred on the project, exceptwhere this wou.d not be
representative of the stage of compietion. Forecast ond of hfe costs
are inherently subject.ve.

We obtained an understanding of and evaluated management's own
process and controts for roviewing ‘ong-term contracts (including
the pracess for identifying foss making and/or nigaer risk contracts
and assessment of the supporting revenug recognition and cost
estimates, including contract variations) and gained an
understanding of the key judgements involved and background to
the specific contracts selected on our sample.

For our sample of contracts, we focused on the sigmificant
judgerments adopted by management n relation to the revenue and
margin recogrition, and, in partlcu!ar, }udgements with <cspectto
the percontage completion, as follaws:

* We obtained an understanding of the contract and its particulars;

* We agreed forecast revenue to signed contracts, signed
variatens or other supporting documentation;

* We traced a sample of variations to supporting cartifications or
nstructions from clents;

* We held discussions with management to understand and
challenge areas of judgement taken:

* Where necessary, reviewing third party expert advice obtained in
respect of those judgements:

* We reconciled revenue recognised with amounts applied for and
amounts certitied by clhents and confirmed, using our industry
knowledge and experience thatthe reconaling iterrs were
appropniate;

¢ We re-performed the key calculations behind the margin applied,
the profit taken and the stage of completion, as weli as bslance
sheet exposure;
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

* We assessed the recoverability of balance sheet iterrs by
comparing to external certification of the value of work
nerfor—ed: ana

* We evaluated forecast costs to complete through analyucal
oroceaures, and apolied industry krowledge and experience to
chalenge the completeness of management's forccast casts to
completion.,

In addition, for the remaining contract population we performed

the following:

* ‘We reviewed the farecast margins for the population of contracts
and far those which had moved sigrificantly since tender and/or
prior reporting penods, we abtained explanat ons from
management, and

* We recalculated the percentage completion based on costs to
date and recalcuated revenue recognised:

* We traced a sample of revenue transactions to supporting
documnentation: and

¢ We traced a sample of balance sheetitems (including positive and
negative work-in-progress balances)to supporting
docamnentation

Based on all of the evidence obtaned in the anove orocedures,
we are satisfied the revenue and profit recognised by management
15 supportable.

Defined benefit pension plan liabilities

The Group operates a funded defined benefit scherne for
qualfying ermployccs which was closed to new membeors after
315t December 2014,

The scheme has assets of £35 8 million and post retrement habiites
of £58.8 million which are significantin the context of the overall
balance sheet of the Group

The valuation of the pension habilities requires significant levels of
judgement and technical expertise in choosing appropriate
assumptions. Unfavourable changes in a numper of the key
assumptions (including salary increases, inflation, discount rates and
martality) can have a matenal impact on the calculation of the
liabdity.

As a result of the size of the pension scheme deficit, the judgements
inherent in the actuaria’ assumptions mvolved in the valuation of the
pension obligation we considered this to be an area of focus

We obtained the actuarial valuation at 21st December 2018 and

tested the valuation of the pension habiities as fol ows:

* We agreed the discount and inflation rates used in the valuation of
the pension hability to ourinternally developed nenchrarks,
finding these to be within an acceptable range. Gur benchmarks
are based on our view of relevant cconomicind cators.

s We assessed the rationale for the discount rate they used, the
methodology used to dernve it was appropnate:

* We tested the Directors’ assumptions around inflation and Ife
expectancy rates by comparing them to, and finding them
consistent with, national and ingustry averages, recognising the
particular economic and hea tn and safety factors that affect the
construction industry; and

+ we performed areconciliation of the valuation results to the IAS 19
liability at 31st December 2018.

There was no new census data n the year so we assessed the
assumptions made by the actuary in rolling forward the information
from the most recent census data

We did not identify any issues within our testing and were satisfied
the assumptions appled are within an appropriate range
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of TClarke plc continued

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Goodwill and intangible assets impairment assessment
We focused on this area because the Directors’ assessment of the
carryngva uc of goodw  ancintangble sssets nvolves complex
ane s.njective jJudgerents about tne future res. ts of the business
No impa resent was recognised dunng tne year.

We focused on those Cash Generating Units (CGUs) we considered
ta carry more judgement because of current year profitability or
historic unaerperformance aga nst budgets, orfor wh ¢n
management's imparment assessment model gave lower headroom
reiative 1o otner CGUs

We evaluated the Directors’ future cash flow forecasts, which were

prepared 1o a sufficiently detailed level, including:

* We compared them to the latest Board approved budgets;

¢ We tested the integrity of the underlying calculations;

* \We compared 2018 financial performance to budget and
understood the drivers of profitability; and

* We performed sensitivity analysis around the key drivers of the cash
flow forecasts, in particular the revenus growth and margin
assLmptons; aid

» We challenged the discount rate used by mdependently
recalculating the cost af captal which we nave used nour
senstivities.

Management have also preparoa seqstivity analysis in respect of all
CGUs. We examined the disclosures made inthe financial staternents
and compared these to the sensitivity analyses performed by
management. We concluded that the disclosures are appropriate.

We determined that there were no key audit matters applicable to the Parent Company to communicate in our report,

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we
performed enough work to be able to give an epinion an the
financial statements as a whole, taking into account the
structure of the Group and the Parent Company, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which
they operate.

As part of designing our audit, we determined matenality and
assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements. In particular, we locoked at where the Directors
made subjective judgements, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates that invelved making
assumptions and considenng future events that are inherently
uncertain.

We gained an understanding of the legal end regulatory
framework applicable to the Group and the industry in which
it operates, and considered the risk of acts by the Group which
were contrary to applicable laws and regutations, including
fraud. We designed audit procedures at Group and significant
component level to respond to the risk, recognising that the
risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is
higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example,
forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through
collusion. We focused on laws and regutations that could give
rise to a material misstatement in the Group and Parent
Company financial statements, including, but not limited to,

the Companies Act 2006, the Listing Rules, pensions and UK
tax legislation and The Health and Safety Legislation. Our tests
included, but were not limited to, review of the financial
statement disclosuresto underlying supporting
documentation, review of correspondence with the regulators
and enquiries of management There are inherent limitations
in the audit procedures described above and the further
removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from
the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, the less likely we would become aware of it.

We did not identify any key audit matters relating to
irregularities, including fraud. Asin all of our audits, we also
addressed the risk of management gverride of internal
controls, including testing journals and evaluating whether
there was evidence of bias by the Directors that represented a
risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Materiality

The scope of aur audtwas influenced by our application

of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materizlity. These, together with qualitative considerations,
helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures en the
individual financial statement line iterns and disclosures and
in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually
and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined
materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:
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— Group financial statements Parent Company financial statements

Overall materiality £1.3 million {2017, £626,000;.

s« £488,000{2017: £484,G00)

How we determined it

0.5%(2017: 0.25%] of average revenue for the last five years .

1% (2017 1%} of total assets.

Rationale for benchmark
applied

We used revenue as a basis for materiality as the Group's * We used total assets as a basis for
profit margins have historically been low, consistent with
the industry as a whote, and tnercfore revenue s used by
the Group as a cey performance Ing cater, An average
measure was appl ed to avoid the volatity caused oy

rmateralty as the Parent Cempany coes
nottrade and we believe that total assets
15 therefore the most aporonnate
benchmark.

fluctuations in revenue over the business cycle. Based on
cur risk assessment, we have deterr.ned a materiahity of
1.3 million is reasonable, based on the size and nature of

the Group.

For each componentin the scope of our Group audit, we
allocated a materiality that s less than cur overall Group
materiality. The range of materiality allocated across
components was between £73,000 and £1.2 million. Certain
compenents were audited to a local statutory audit materiality
that was also less than our overall Group materiality.

Going concern
In accordance with ISAs {UK) we report as follows:

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report
to them misstatements identified during our audit above
£65,000 (Group audit} (2017 £31,300) and £24,400 {Parent
Company audit} (2017: £31,300) as well as misstatements
below those amounts that, in cur view, warranted reporting
for qualitative reasons.

We are required to report if we have anything material to add or
draw attention to in respect of the Diractors’ statement in the
financial statements about whether the Directors considered it
appropriate to adootthe going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements and the Directors’ identification
of any matenal uncertainties to the Group's and the Parent
Company's ability to continuie as a gosng cancern over a period of at
least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial
statements.

We have nothing material to add or to draw attentionte

However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this statement s not a guarantee as to the Group's and
Parent Company’s abylity to continue as a ge ng concern. For
example, the tarms on which the Jnited Kingdom may withdraw
from the European Uaion, which s carrently due to occur o0

29th March 2019 are not clear, and it is difficult to evaluate all of the
potential implications on the Group's trade, customers, supphers and
the wider economy

We are required to report if the Directors’ statement relating to
Going Concern in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3} 1s materially
inconsistent with aur knowledge obtained inthe audit.

We have nothing to report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the
Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors' report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the
other information. Qur opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do
not express an audit cpinion or, except to the extent ctherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
respensibility is to read the cther information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially

inconsistent with the financial statements or cur knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or
material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures
to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report based on these responsibilities,
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of TClarke plc continued

Report on the audit of the financial statements

With respect to the Strategic Report, Directors’ Report and
Corporate Governance Statement, we also considered
whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies Act
2006 have been included. Based on the responsibilities
described above and our work undertaken in the course of
the audit, the Companies Act 2006 (CAQ8), 1ISAs (UK) and the
Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA} require
us also to report certain opinions and matters as described
below {requirad by 15As (UK} unless otherwise stated).

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

in our apinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the
audit, the iInformation given in the Strategic Report and Directors’
Report forthe year ended 31st December 2018 is consistent with
the financizl statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements {CAQ6)

in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and
Parent Company and therr enviranment obtained 'n the course of
the audit, we did not identify any maternia misstatements inthe
Strategic Report and Directors’ Report. (CAQ6)

Corporate Governance Statement

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the
audit, the informatien grven inthe Corocrate Governance
Statement{on pages 41 to 45} about internal controls and risk
management systems in relation to financial reporting processes
and about share cap-tai structures in compliance withrules 72 5
and 7.2 6 of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules
sourcebook of the FCA{"DTR"}is consistent with the financial
statements and has been prepared in accordance w:th applcabic
legal requirements. (CAD#S)

in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and
Parent Company and therr environment obtainea in the course of
the aud't, we did not identify any material misstatements in this
infarmatian. (CAD6)

In our ppinion, based on the work undertaken in the course ot the
audiit, the information given inthe Corporate Governance
Statement {on pages 41 ta 45) with respect to the Parent
Company's corporate governance code and practices and about
ts administrative, management and supervisory badies and thei-
comruttees complies with rules 7.2.2, 7.2.3 and 7.2.7 of the DTR.
({CADE)

We have nothing to report arising from our responsibility to report
if a corporate governance statement has not been prepared by the
Parent Company. (CAQS}

The Directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Group
and of the principal risks that would threaten the

solvency or liquidity of the Group
We have nothing material to add or draw artention to regarding:

¢+ The Directers’ confirmation on page 45 of the Annual Report
that they nave casred out a robust assessment o' the princ pa’
“isks facing the Group ncludmg those that would threaten its
ousiness rode:, future performance, saivency or Fguidity.
¢ The d.sclosuresinthe Annual Reportthat descrbe those nisks
and exp'ain haw they are being managed or mit gated.
¢ The Directors’ explanation on page 34 of the Annual Report as
to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over
what period they bave dong so and why they consider that
oenod to be approor ate, and therr statement as to whether they
have a reasonable expectation thatthe Groun will e able to
continue nopearation and meot tshabilities as they fall due over
the period of their assessment. including any reated disclosures
drawing attention to any necessary guahfications or
assumptions.
We have nathing to report having performed a review of the
Cnrectors’ statement that they have carnied out a robust
assessrrent of the prinoipal «'sks facing the Group and staterentin
relat on to the longer terr viability of the Group. Qur review was
substantialiy less in scope than an auait and only consisted of
making inguiries and considering the Directors' process
supporting their statements; checking that the statements are 1In
alignrment with the relevant pravisions of the JK Corporate
Governance Code {the “Code”); and considering whether the
staterments are consistent with the knowledge and understanding
of the Group and Parent Company and their envirenment obtained
inthe course of the audit. {Listing Rules)

Other Code Provisions
We have nothing to report in respect of our responsibility to report
when:

¢ The statement given by the Directors, on page 45, that they
consider the Annual Report taken as a whole to be farr balanced
and understandable, and provides the information necessary for
the members to assess the Group's and Parent Company's
position and performance. business model and strategy s
materially inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group and
Parent Company obtainad in the course of performing cur audit.

¢ The section of the Annual Reporton pages 46 to 48 describing
the work of the Audit Committee coes not appropnateiy address
matters communicated by us to the Audit Committec.

* The Directors’ statement relating to the Parent Company's
comphance with the Code does not praperly disclose a
departure from a relevant provision of the Code specified, under
the Listing Rules, for review by the auditors.

Directors’ remuneration

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to
be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006, (CADS)




Responsibilities for the financial
statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Staternent of Directors’
responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable framework

and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misctatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to
cease operations, ar have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee
that an audit conductad in accordance with 1SAs (UK} will always
detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, iIncluding the opinions, has been prepared for

and only for the Parent Company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these
opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or ta any other person to whom this reportis shown or
into whose hands it may came save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing.
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Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to repart to

youif, In our opinion:

* we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audhit; or

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Parent Company, or returns adequate for cur audit have not
been received from branches notvisited by us,; or

» certain disclesures of Directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made; or

e the Parent Company financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are notin
agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this
responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we
were appointed by the members en 13th May 2011 to audit
the financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2011 and subsequent financial pericds. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement is eight years, covering the years
ended 31st December 2011 to 31st December 2018.

Matthew Mullins (Senior Statutery Auditor)

fer and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

26th March 2019
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Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31st Decemiber 2018

2018 2017
Non- Nan
Underlying underlying Uadepng  Lazerlyag
items items Total eTs tarmns Total
Nato £fm £m £m £ £ £re

Revenue 5 326.8 - 326.8 311.2 - 31.2
Cost of sales {(287.6) - (287.6) (273.0} - (273.0)
Gross profit 39.2 - 39.2 38.2 - 38.2
Other operating income - - - 01 - 0.1
Administrative expenses

Amortisation of intangible assets 7 - (0.2) {0.2) (0.2} (0.2}

Non-underlying costs 7 - - - - 0.8 0.8

Other administrative expenses (30.4) - (30.4) (31.0) - (31.0)
Total administrative expenses (30.4) (0.2) (30.6) (31.0) 0.6 (30.4)
Operating profit 7 8.8 (0.2) 8.6 73 0.6 7.9
Finance costs o) (0.8) - (0.8} (0.8) - {0.8)
Profit before taxation 8.0 (0.2) 7.8 6.5 0.6 71
Taxation 9 (1.6) - (1.6) (1.3} (0.2} {1.5)
Profit for the financial year 6.4 (0.2) 6.2 5.2 0.4 5.6
Earnings per share
Attributable to owners of TClarke plc

Basic 10 15.38 (0.39) 14.99 12.37g 1.07p 13.44p

Diluted 10 14.98 (0.37) 14.61 12.13p 1.04p 13.17p
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive
income

for the year ended 31st December 2018

2018 2017
£m fm
Profit for the year 6.2 5.6
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial gainf/(loss) on defined benefit pension scheme, net of tax 0.7
Total other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year, net of tax 0.7 (2.3)

Total comprehensive income for the year 6.9




76 TClarke A1z Rzpartans Fanag 2 Staternants 2018

Consolidated statement of financial position

as at 31st December 2018

2018 2017

Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 1,27 25.7 259
Property, plant and equipment 12 4.9 4.9
Deferred tax assets 14 3.9 3.8
Total non-current assets 34.5 34.6
Current assets
Inventories 15 0.3 0.5
Amounts due from customers under canstruction contracts 16 26.4 26.4
Trade and other receivables 17 68.7 67.3
Cash and cash equivalents 20 12.4 167
Total current assets 107.8 1109
Total assets 142.3 1455
Current liabilities
Amounts due to customers under construction contracts 16 {8.4) (5.5)
Trade and cther payables 18 (87.8) (23.6)
Current tax liabilities (1.0) {1.5)
Obligations under finance leases 24 - (0.1)
Total current liabilities (97.2) (100.7}
Net current assets 10.6 10.2
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans 21 - {5.00
Retirement benefit obligations 23 (23.0) (23.4)
Total non-current liabilities (23.0) (28.4)
Total liabilities (120.2}) {129.1)
Total net assets 221 16.4
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 19 4.3 4.2
Share premium 19 3.7 3.
ESOT reserve (1.4} {0.8)
Revaluation reserve 0.5 0.5
Retained earnings 15.0 2.4
Total equity 22.1 16.4

The financial statements on pages 74 to 116 were approved by the Board of Directors on 26th March 2019 and were signed on
its behalf by:

I McCusker M Lawrence
Director Director



Company statement of financial position

as at 31st December 2018
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2018 2007

MNote £m fn
Non-current assets
Investments 13 43.2 a41.7
Total non-current assets 43.2 4.7
Current assets
Trade and otherreceivables 17 0.4 0.9
Current tax receivables 1.6 0.4
Cash and cash equivalents 20 4.5 5.4
Total current assets 6.5 6.7
Total assets 49.7 48.4
Current liabilities
Trade and cther payables 18 (3.7) (1.9)
Current tax liabilities - -
Total current liabilities (3.7) (1.9
Net current assets 2.8 4.8
Non-current liabilities
Bank lcans 21 - (5.0}
intra-Group loans 18 {(28.3) (25.6)
Taotal non-current liabilities (28.3) (30.6)
Total liabilities (32.0) {32.5)
Total net assets 17.7 159
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 19 4.3 4.2
Share premium 19 3.7 37
ESCT reserve (1.4) (0.8)
Retained earnings 114 G4
Total equity 17.7 159

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from presenting its

own incaome statements. The profit after tax for the year was £3.2 million (2017: £2.1 million).

The financial statements on pages 74 to 116 were approved by the Board of Directors on 26th March 2019 and were signed on

its behalf by:

| McCusker M Lawrence
Director Director
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the year enged 315t December 2018

2018 2017
Note £m £

Net cash generated from operating activities 20 3.5 6.8
Investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 27 (0.5) {1.5)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {0.5) (1.9)
Receipts on disposal of property, plant and eguipment - 0.3
Net cash used in investing activities (1.0) (3.1
Financing activities
New shares issuance 0.7 -
Facility fee {0.2) -
(Repayment)y/drawdown of bank borrowing 19 {5.0) 2.0
Fquity dividends paid 19 (1.5) (1.4}
Acquisition of shares by ESOT 19 (0.7) -
Repayment of HP and finance lease obligations {0.1) 0.1
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities {6.8) 0.7
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (4.3) 4.4
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 20 16.7 12.3
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20 12.4 16.7
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2018 2m7
Note £m e
Net cash used in operating activities 20 (3.2) (8.2)
Investing activities
Investment in subsidiaries {0.5) (1.5)
Dividends received from subsidiaries 0.5 1.6
Net cash generated from investing activities - 01
Financing activities
Loan from subsidiary 9.0 -
Facitity fee (0.2} -
New shares 0.7 -
Repayment of bank borrowing 21 (5.0) 20
Equity dividends paid 19 {1.5) (1.4)
Acquisition of shares by ESOT 19 (0.7) -
Net cash generated from financing activities 2.3 0.4
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (0.9) (7.7)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 20 5.4 13
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20 4.5 5.4
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31st December 2018

Atte butan e to cwaers o7 tna parent

Sna-c Shace  ESQTsnare  Revaluaton Retaned
capital prermL T resaerve resere carnngs Tota
fr £ £ £ frr fr
At 1st January 2017 4.2 3.1 (0.8) 0.5 7.1 147
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - 5.6 5.6
Other comprehensive expense
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit
obligation - - - - (2.7} (2.7)
Deferred income tax on actuarial loss
on retirement benefit obligation - - - - 0.5 0.5
Total other comprehensive expense - - - - (2.2} (2.2)
Total comprehensive income - : - - 3.4 3.4
Transactions with owners
Share-based payment credit - - - - 0.3 0.3
Shares acquired by ESOT - - (0.2 - - (0.2)
Shares distributed by ESOT - - 0.2 - - 0.2
Dividends paid - - - - (1.4) {1.4)
Total transactions with owners - - - - (1.1 (1.1
At 31st December 2017 4.2 31 (0.8) 0.5 9.4 16.4
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - 6.2 6.2
Other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain on retirement benefit
obligation - - - - 0.8 0.8
Deferred inceme tax on actuarial loss on
retirement benefit obligation - - - - (0.1) (0.1)
Total other comprehensive income - - - - 0.7 0.7
Total comprehensive income - - - - 6.9 6.9
Transactions with owners
New shares 0.1 0.6 - - - 0.7
Share-based payment credit - - - - 0.2 0.2
Shares acquired by ESOT - - (0.7) - - (0.7)
Shares distributed by ESOT - - 0.1 - - 0.1
Dividends paid - - - - (1.5} (1.5)
Total transactions with owners 0.1 0.6 {0.6) - (1.3) (1.2)
At 31st December 2018 4.3 3.7 (1.4) 0.5 15.0 221
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Snare Snare  ESOT share Reta nea
captal ares..m roserve carngs Total
£n fm fr fro fm

At 1st January 2017 4.7 31 (0.6) 8.7 15.4
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - 27 2.1
Total comprehensive income - - - 2.1 2.1
Transactions with owners
Share-based payment credit - - - - -
Loan repaid by ESCT - - (0.2) - (0.2}
Bividends paid - - - (1.4) (1.4}
Total transactions with owners - - - (1.4) {1.6)
At 31st December 2017 4.2 31 {0.8) 2.4 15.9
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - 3.2 3.2
Tetal comprehensive income - - - 3.2 3.2
Transactions with owners
New shares 0.1 0.6 - - 0.7
Share-based payment credit - - - - -
Shares acquired by ESOT - - (0.7) - (0.7
Shares distributed by ESOT 0.1 0.1
Dividends paid - - - (1.5) (1.5)
Total transactions with owners 0.1 0.6 (0.6) {1.5) (1.4)
At 31st December 2018 4.3 3.7 (1.4) 11.1 17.7
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 3lst December 2018

1 General information

TClarke plcis a public fimited company hsted on the London
Stock Exchange, incorporated and domiciled in the United
Kingdom. The address of its registered office and principat
place of business is disclosed on page 117 The nature of the
Group's operations and its principal activities are described in
note 5 and in the Strategic report on pages 110 34. The
Company is limited by shares

2 Application of new and revised IFRSs

New standards, interpretations and amended standards
adopted by the Group

The accounting policies adopted are in line with those in
previous financial year, with the exception of IFRS 15 ("Revenue
from Centracts with Customers™) and IFRS @ (“Financial
Instruments”). These two standards have been applied for the
first time by the Group, with effect from 1st January 2018.

IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The standard deals with revenue recognition and establishes
principles for reporting useful information to users of financial
statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity's contracts
with customers. IFRS 15 replaces all existing revenue
requirements in IFRS and applies to all revenue arising fram
contracts with customers unless the contracts are within the
scope of other standards such as 1AS 17 Leases.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services, Under IFRS 15 an entity recognises revenue
when, or as, a performance obligation is satisfied, that is when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer so that
the customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has
the ahility to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the
good or service.

During 2017 and 2018, the Group conducted a
comprehensive review of existing contractual arrangements
and processes for recognising revenue to determine the
impact of IFRS 15. A key consideration in this review was the
treatment of contract modifications (variations, claims, etc).
Under previous accounting standards, these could be
included in revenue when itis probable that these will be
approved by the customer and the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured. Under IFRS 15, a higher threshold is in
operation as now these can only be included in revenue to the
extent that, it is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the cumulative revenue recognised from these contract
modifications will not occur in the future.

The conclusion of the review was tnat the impact of IFRS 15
was deemed to be immaterial. Amongst other factors, the
Group's existing policies for recognising variable
consideration were in campliance with the thresholds entailed
by IFRS 15. As a result, these financial statements are neither
restated for the retrospective impact of IFRS 15 noristhere an
adjustment through opening retamed earnings

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments

The standard introduced new requirements for the

classification and measurement of financial instruments,

including impairment requirements for financial assets. The
key requirements of IFRS 9 are:

* All financial assets are required to be classified and
measured, on initial recognition and subsequently, at either
fair value or amortised cost. The classification depends on
the entity’s business model for managing its financial
instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the instrument.

» Inrelation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9
requires an expscted credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected
credit loss model reguires an entity t¢ account for expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

* Forfinancial liabilities, IFRS 9 retains most of tAS 39's
requirements. The main change is that where the fair value
option is taken for financial habilities, the part of a fair value
change due to an entity's own credit risk is recorded in
other comprehensive income rather than the income
statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch.

The classification and measurement basis for financial assets
and liabilities have been unchanged with the adoption of IFRS
9. The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that were
recognised in the priar year are matenally unchanged from
the application of IFRS 9. For this reason, there has been
neither an adjustment to retained earnings at 3tst December
2017 nor a restatement of prior year balances.

Loss allowances have been measured at an amount egual to
lifetime expected creditlosses, in accordance with the
“simplified approach” in 5.5.15 of IFRS 9.

New standards, interpretations and amended standards in
issue but not yet adopted by the Group

IFRS 16: Leases

IFRS 16 was issued on 13th January 2016 and will become
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after

1st January 2019. The Group will adopt the standard from the
accounting period beginning st January 2019.



2 Application of new and revised IFRSs continued

The main feature of IFRS 16 s that lessees will have to
recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and
a'right of use asset for almost all lease contracts, whereas at
present a distinction is drawn between finance leases and
operating leases depending on whether substantially all the
risk and reward of ownership have been transferred to the
lessee. In future periods, the operating fease charge would be
replaced by a depreciation charge.

During 2018, the Group undertook a review to estimate the
impactthat IFRS 156 will have on initial application in the
forthcoming year. This review found:

* gross assets and gross liabilities will increase by c£4.3
million with the creation of the right of use assets’ and
correspending finance lease liabilities;

* depreciation and interest will increase by ¢£1.2 million and
c£0.1 million respectively;

* rental charges will decrease by c£1.3 million.

3 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated and Parent Company financial staterments
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applicd to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(i) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs’) as
adopted by the European Union ('EU’), IFRS IC Interpretations
and the Companies Act 2006 applicable tc companies
reporting under IFRS and have been prepared on a going
concern basis under the historic cost convention as modified
by the revaluation of land and buildings. They comprise the
Parent Company financial statements of TClarke ple and the
consolidated financial statements of TClarke plcand all its
subsidiaries made up to 31st December 2018 and have been
presented in £ million.
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRS as adopted by the EU requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. it also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consclidated financial
statements, are disclosed innote 4.

Going concern

The Group had positive cash balances at the year end and has
in place a £15 million committed revolving creditfacility
expiring 31st August 2022, and a £5 milfion overdraft facility.
For details of the covenants in place referto note 21 on page
106.

The Group draws on the overdraft facility as and when
required to meet working capital requirements. As with all
such facilities the overdraft s subject to annual review and is
repayable on dermand. The overdraft facility was renewed in
August 2018. The Directors have received confirmation from
the bank that they know of no reason why the overdraft facility
will not be renewed when it next falls due for review. At

31st December 2018 these bank facilities were unutilised.

After making enquiries and taking account of reasonably
possible changes in trading performance, the Directors are
satisfied that, at the time of approving the financial
statements, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the financial statements of both the Group and
the Parent Company.

{ii) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial stataments incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31st December
each year Control is achieved when the Company has power
over the investee, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its invalvement with the investee, and has the ability to
use its pawer to affect its returns.



B4 TClarke 2o Reoot and Fa

armed Sratacecats 2018

Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31st December 2018

3 Accounting policies continued

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group. All intra-Group
transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated
on consolidation.

(iii) Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT’)

As the Company is deemed to have control of its ESOT, itis
included in the consolidated financial statermments. The ESCT's
assets (other than investments in the Company’s shares),
Kabilities, inceme and expenses are included on a line-by-line
basis in the consolidated financial staterments. The ESOT's
investment in the Company’s shares is deducted from equity
in the consolidated statement of financial position as if they
were treasury shares. The Trustee of the ESOT has waived its
right to dividends on the shares held in the ESOT.

(iv) Segmental reporting

Operating divisions are reported in a manner consistent

with internal reporting provided to the Group Chief Executive,
who is the chief operating decision-maker respansible

for allocating resources to, and assessing the performance

of, operating divisions.

{v) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised in accordance with the five-step model

outlined in [FRS 15:

1. Identify the contract with the customer

2. ldentify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its
performance obligaticns

Revenue derives largely from two sources: most significantly,
from lang-term contracts whereby the Group designs, installs
and integrates mechanical and electrical systems for
custormers (“construction contracts”, see (vi)); less significantly,
from ongoing maintenance works on previously installed
systems. In both instances, steps one to five of the revenue
recognition process are determined with reference to the
formal contract which exists with the customer. In these
contracts, the transaction price, performance obligations, etc.
are readily identifiable and distinct.

Revenue from maintenance work is measured as the amount
the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for
transferring goods or services to the customer - this amount is
net of discounts and VAT, it is recognised at the point in time
the customer obtains control over the asset associated with
the works.

Interest income is accrued on atime basis, by reference to the
principal cutstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicabtle.

The Directors have elected to apply practical expedient in
paragraph C5{d] of IFRS 15 to not disclose the transaction
price allocated to remaining performance obligations and an
explanation of when the Group expects to recognise that
amount as revenue for the prior year,

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the
period between the transfer of the promised goods or
services to the customer and payment by the custamer
exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Group does not
adjust any of the transaction price for the time value of money.

(vi) Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised over
time by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the reporting date, measured based anthe
proportion of contract costs {prime costs and overheads)
mcurred for the work performed to date relative to the
estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be
representative of the stage of completion (instances of which
arerare).

The earliest point at which profitis taken is that at which the
outcome of the contract, based on an assessment by officials
ofthe Group, can be reliably foreseen, taking into account the
circumstances of each contract. Vanations are included to the
extent itis highly probable that its inclusion will not resultin a
significant revenue reversal in the future. Full provision is
made for any fareseeable losses to completion.

"Contract assets” (as discussed in IFRS 15.107) are recognised
when the Group performs by transferring goods or services to
a customer before the customer pays consiceration or before
payment is due. This asset is assessed for impairment in
accordance with IFRS 9. These "contract assets” have been
termed "Amaounts due from customers under construction
contracts” in these financial statements.



3 Accounting policies contirued

"Contract hiabilities” {as discussed n |FRS5 15.106) are
recognised if a customer pays consideration before the entity
transfers a good or service. These have been captioned in
these accounts as "Amounts due to customers under
construction contracts” respectively.

Bid costs are expensed as incurred, unless recoverable from
customers.

(vii) Acquisitions and goodwill

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at fair value, which is
caleutated as the aggregate of the fair values at the acquisition
date of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
instruments issued, to the former owners by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
expenses are recognised directly inthe income statement.

Purchased goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the fair value of the consideration transferred over the net of
the acquisition date fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired, and is capitalised and classified as an
intangible asset in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities are recognised attheir fair values at the acquisition
date, except for non-current assets {or disposal groups) that
are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5
‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations.”

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.

Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that
qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against
goodwill.

Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
‘measurement period” {which cannot excead one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date. The subseguent accounting for
changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that
do not gualify as measurement period adjustments depends
an how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
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subseguent reporting dates and s subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subseguent
reporting dates in accordance with 1AS 39, or{AS 37
"Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profitar loss.

If the initiat accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period, or additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised atthat date,

Gaoodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition
to IFRS has been retained at the previcus UK GAAP amount
subject to being tested for impairment. Goodwill s reviewed
forimpairment on an annual basis. When the Directors
consider the initial value of the acquisition to be nagligible, the
goodwill is written off to the income statement immediately.

(viii) Impairment of goodwill and other non-financial assets
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumutated impairmentiosses, ifany.

Impairment tests on goodwill are undertaken annually at the
financial year end. Other non-financial assets are subject to
impairment tests whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Where the carrying value of an asset exceedsits
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell), the asset is written down accordingly.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 3lst December 2018

3 Accounting policies continued

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount

of anindividual asset, the impairment test is carried out on the
asset's cash-generating unit{i.e. the lowest group of assets in
which the asset belongs far which there are separately
identifiable cash flows). For the purposes of impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated on initial recognition to each of
the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination giving rise

to the goodwill.

Impairment charges are included in non-underlying costs in
the consclidated income statement, except to the extent they
reverse gains previously recognised in the consclidated
statement of comprehensive iIncome. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed.

{ix) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and
recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised at
cost, being their fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
to initial recognition, intangible assets are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the retevant assets, determined on an
individual basis and ranging from one to ten years.

{x) Property, plant and equipment

Land and buitdings comprise mainly offices occupied by the
operating units of the Group. Land and buildings are shown
atfair value, based on valuations carried out by external
independent valuers, less subsegquent depreciation.
Valuations are perfermed with sufficient regularity to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially
from its carrying amount. Any accumulated depreciation at
the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to the
revalued amount of the asset. On disposal of the asset the
balance of the revaluation reserve pertaining te the asset is
transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

All other property, plant and equipmant is stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical costincludes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
itemn will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part s
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

tncreases in the carrying amount anising on revaluation of land
and buildings are credited to other comprehensive income
and shown as revaluation reserves in shareholders’ equity.
Decreasesthat offset previous increases of the same asset are
charged in other comprehensive income and debited against
revaluation reserves directly in equity; all other decreases are
charged to the income statement.

Each year the difference between depreciation basad on the
revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the income
staternent and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost
is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained
earnings. On disposal of the asset, the balance of the
revaluation reserve pertaining to the asset is transferred from
the revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis so as to write
off the costless residual values of the relevant assets over their
useful lives, using the following rates:

Freehold properties: 2%
Leasehold improvements: 33% or iife of lease if shorter
Plant, machinery and motor vehicles: 10%-33%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

{xi) Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost, being the fair
value of consideration paid, and subsequently at cost less
provisions for impairment. Cost includes the fair value of
equity-settled share-based payment arrangements relating to
optians to acquire shares in TClarke plc granted to subsidiary
employees under savings-related share option schemes.

(xii} Inventories

Inventories of raw materials and consumables are nitially
recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost s determined on a first-in first-out
basis and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the assetto its present
location and condition.

(xiii) Leasing and hire purchase commitments

Leases (including similar hire purchase arrangements) are
classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other jeases are classified as operating leases.



3 Accounting policies continued

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as
assets of the Group attheir fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability 1o the lessaris included
in the statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation. Lease payrments are apporticned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability Finance charges are charged directly to the income
statement except where they relate to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group's
borrowing costs policy (see note xvi).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-fine basis over the lease term. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a hability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

{xiv) Financial instruments

The Group's financial instruments comprise trade and other
receivables (exciuding prepayments}, contract trade and other
payables (excluding deferred income and taxation), and cash
and cash equivalents net of overdrafts. The Group classifies its
financial assets as loans and receivables and its financial
liabilities as liabilities at amortised cost. The Group does not
trade in any financial derivatives. Financial assets and liabilities
are offset and the netamount reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to
offsetthe recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing, are
measured an initizl recognition at fair value and subsequently
at amortised cost. On initial recognition, a less allowance is
created which reflects the lifetime expected credit loss on that
asset. This loss allowance is subseguently reassessed at each
reporting period date.

Trade and other receivables are presented net of the loss
allowance,

Bank deposits

Bank deposits comprise cash placed on deposit with financial
institutions with an initial maturity of six months or more, and
are measured at amortised cost. Finance income is
recognised using the effective interest method and is added
to the carrying value of the asset as it arises.

87

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
bank overdrafts, demand deposits and other short-term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a
known amount of cash and are subject to an insign ficant nisk
of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are included within
current habilities in the statement of financial position. Finance
income and expense are recognised using the effective
interest method and are added to the carrying value of the
asset or liability as they arise.

Bank loans

interest-bearing bank loans are recorded at the fair vatue of
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance
charges are accounted for on an accruals basis in the income
statement using the effective interest mathod, and are added
to the carrying value of the instrument to the extent that they
are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured atfair value
and subsequently at amortised cost. Trade and other payables
are non-interest bearing.

{xv) Taxation
Income tax expense reprasents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Tax is recognised in the income statement except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profitand is
accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax
lizbilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that itis probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.
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3 Accounting policies continued

The amount of any deferred tax asset or hability recognised s
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected
to apply when the deferred tax llabilities or assets are settled
orrecovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset as the Group has a
legally enforceable nght to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to
taxes levied on either the same company, or on different
companies, where there is an intention to settle current tax
assets and liabilittes on a net basis.

{xvi) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interast method.

{xvii) Borrowing costs

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it
1s probable that some or alt of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the loan is drawn down. To
the extent there is no evidence thatitis probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amartised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to qualifying
assets are added to the cost of the asset. All other borrowing
costs are recognised in the income statement in the period in
which they are incurred.

(xviii) Dividends

Dividends are recognised when they become legally payable.
In the case of interim dividends to equity shareholders, this is

when they are paid. In the case of final dividends, this is when

approved by the shareholders at the AGM.

(xix} Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are charged as an expense as they fall due.

The retirement benefit obligation represents the fair value of
the defined benefit obligation at each reporting date as
reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. For defined
benefit retirement benefit schemes, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with actuarial valuations being carried cut at each
reporting date. Actuarial gains and tosses are recognised in
full in the period in which they occur. They are recognised
outside the income statement and presented as 2 component
of other comprehensive income.

The current service cost of defined benefit retirement benefit
schemes is recognised in ‘employee benefit expense’ in the
income statement, except where included in the costof an
asset, and reflects the increase in the defined benefit
obligation resulting from service in the current year, benefit
changes, curtailments and settlements. Past service costis
recognised immediately in the income statement.

{xx) Long-term employee benefits

Long-term employee benefits are accrued when the Group
has a legal or constructive cbligation to make payments under
long-term employee benefit arrangements and the amount of
the obligation can be reliably measured. The liability is
discounted to present value where it is due after more than
one year.

{xxi) Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair value
of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding
the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-
based transactions are set out in note 19.

The fair value determined atthe grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments s expensed on a straight-line
basis over the period, based on the Group's estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity. At the end of each reparting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.



3 Accounting policies continued

(xxii) Non-underlying items

Non-underlying items are items of financial performance
which the Group believes should be separately identified on
the face of the income statement to assistin understanding
the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group.
This includes items that are irregular in nature, and also the
amortisation of acquired intangibles, which grincipally relates
to acquired customer relationships. The Group incurs costs,
which are recognised as an expense in the income statement,
in maintaining these customer relaticnships. The Group
considers that the exclusion of the amortisation charge on
acquired intangible from underlying performance avoids the
potential double counting of such costs.

4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation
uncertainty

Inthe application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described above, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assurnptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the
amounts of revenue and expenses incurred during the period
that may not be readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that peried, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The estimates and assumptions that have the most significant
impact are set out below.

Revenue and margin

The recognition of revenue and profit on construction
contracts is a key source of estimation uncertainty due to the
ditficulty of ferecasting the final costs to be incurred on a
contract in progress and the process whereby applications are
made during the course of the contract with variations, which
can be significant, often being agreed as part of the final
account negotiation.
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The Group's policies for the recognition of revenue and profit
on construction contracts are set out in note 3(wi) on page 84.
Commercial reviews of all live contracts are undertaken on a
regular basis, with all significant contracts being reviewed on a
monthly basis. The Diractors also take into account the
recoverability of contract balances and trade receivables, and
allowances are made for those balances which are considered
to be impaired.

Impairment of goodwill and investments

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit
giving rise to the goodwill, including the estimation of the
timing and amount of future cash flows generated by the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate. Further details
are provided in note 11, The estimation of the value in usa is
also used 1o assess the carrying value of investments in the
relevant subsidiaries in the Company's financial statements.

Retirement benefit obligations

The costs, assets and liabilities of the defined benefit scheme
operated by the Group are determined using methods relying
on actuarial estimates and assumptions, which are largely
dependent on factors outside the control of the Group.
Details of the key assumptions are set cutin note 23, and
include the discount rate, expected return on assets, rate of
inflation and mortality rates. The Group takes advice from
independent actuaries relating to the appropriateness of the
assumptions. Changes in the assumptions used may have a
significant effect on the income statermnent, statement of
comprehensive income and the statement of financial
position. A sensitivity analysis is included in note 23 on pages
110 and 111
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5 Segment information
(i) Reportable segments

The Group provides electrical and mechanical contracting and related services to the construction industry and end users.

For management ard internal reporting purposes, the Group is arganised geographically into four regional divisions: London
and South East, Central and South West, the North and Scotland, reporting to the Chief Executive Officer, wha is the chief
operating decision-maker. The measurement basis used to assess the performance of the divisions s underlying operating
profit, stated before amortisation of intangible assets and other non-underlying items. Non-underlying items for each segment
are disclosed on pages 20 and 21 and in note 7. All assets and habilities of the Group have been allocated to segments apart
from the retirement benefit obligation and tax assets and liabilities.

All transactions betwaen segments are undertaken on normal commercial terms. All the Group's operations are carried out
within the United Kingdom, and there is no significant difference between revenue based on the location of assets and revenue
based on location of customers. The accounting policies for the reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting
policies disclosed in note 3, Segmental information is based on internal management reporting.

(ii) Segment information and revenue analysis - current year

Group Costs
London & Central & and

SouthEast SouthWest North Scotland Unallocated Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Revenue from contracts with customers 196.5 73.0 3641 21.2 - 326.8
Underlying operating profit 7.2 1.8 2.0 0.8 (3.0) 8.8
Amortisation of intangibles - - {0.2) - - {0.2)
Non-underlying costs (see note /) - - - - - -
Operating profit 7.2 1.8 1.8 0.8 (3.0} 8.6
Finance costs - - - - (0.8) {0.8)
Profit before tax 7.2 1.8 1.8 0.8 (3.8) 7.8
Taxation expense (1.6) {1.6)
Profit for the year 6.2

London & Central &
South East South West North Scotland Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Business sector

Facilities Management and Frameworks 1.6 7.0 13.3 0.7 22.6
Infrastructure 13.8 29.6 11.6 09 55.9
M&E Contracting 137.7 261 81 2.4 174.3
Residential & Accommodation 1.4 10.0 3.1 16.6 311
Technologies 42.0 0.3 - 0.6 42.9
Total revenue 196.5 73.0 361 21.2 326.8
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5 Segment information continued
(ifii) Segment information and revenue analysis - prior year

Groun
London & Central & Costs anict
So.th East  South YWest Norta Scotana Jnal ocated Total
fre (8 £m fm fn £

Revenue from contracts with customers 177.6 52.6 480 230 - 311.2

Underlying operating profit 8.5 (1.8) 2.4 0.8 (2.6) 7.3

Amortisation of intangibles - - {0.2) - - (0.2}
Non-underlying items (see note 7} 0.8 - - - - 0.8

Operating profit 9.3 {1.8) 22 0.8 (2.6) 79
Finance costs - - - - {0.8) (0.8)
Profit before tax .3 (1.8) 2.2 0.8 (3.4) 7.1

Taxation expense (1.5) (1.5}
Profit for the year 5.6

London & Central &
ScuthEast  South West MNaorth Scotiand Total
tm £rm £fm frn fr

Business sector

Facilities Management and Frameworks 2.6 4.8 14.3 - 21.7

Infrastructure 16.0 241 251 4.4 69.6
M&E Contracting 150.0 18.2 2.2 2.5 1729
Residential & Accommodation 2.3 14.5 2.6 13.6 33.0
Technciogies 6.7 1.0 3.8 2.5 14.0
Total revenue 177.6 62.6 48.0 23.0 31.2

Revenue 1s wholly attributable ta the principal activity of the Group and arises solely within the United Kingdom.

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning ofthe penod was
£1.8 million (2017 £2.4 miilion).

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are
unsatisfied {(or partially unsatisfied) was £360.7 million.

These will be recognised as revenue in accordance with the satisfaction of the performance obligations.

Revenue includes £38.0 million {2017- £35 4 million) which arose from sales to a single customer. No other single customer
contributed 10% or more of the Group's revenue for either 2018 or 2017,

In the current year, the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer which has been recognised as an asset is £0il
(2017 £nil).

In the current year, the costs to fulfii a contract with a customer which has been recognised as an asset is nil (2017: £nil).
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6 Finance income and finance cost

2018 2017
£m £r
Finance costs
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans (0.2) (0.2
Interest cost in respect of defined benefit pension schemes {0.6) (0.6
Net total of finance income and finance cost (0.8)
7 Operating profit
(i) Operating profit is stated after charging/{crediting)
2018 207
£m fm
Amortisation of intangible assets 0.2 0.2
Non-underlying costs (see (i) below) - (0.8)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0.7 0.6
Operating lease charges:
Land and buildings 0.8 0.4
Plant, machinery and vehicles 1.3 1.1
Project-related raw materials and consumables 78.2 87.6
Bad debt expense 0.2 0.2
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of:
The Company and censolidation 0.3 0.2
Subsidiary companies - 0.1
Employee benefit expense (see note 8) 77.4 70.3
The auditors’' fees for non-audit services during the year were £nil (2017: £nil).
{ii) Non-underlying items
2018 2017
£m £
Settlement expenses for former Finance Director 0.3 -
Recovery of misappropriated funds, net of legal casts (0.9} {1.0)
Restructuring expenses 0.6 0.2
Amortisation of intangible assets 0.2 0.2
Total non-underlying items 0.2 (0.6)

No further monies will be recovered following the misappropriation of funds which occurred in 2016,
Restructuring costs relate to the streamlining and relocation of certain functions.

The impact of Group cash flows from non-underlying items was £nil in 2018 (2017: £8.8 million cash inflow).



8 Employee benefit expense
(i) Employee benefit expense
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Group

2018 2017
£m fr

Staff costs during the year were as follows:
Wages and salaries 69.0 6C.7
Share awards and options granted to Directors and employees (see note 19) 0.3 0.3
Social security costs 6.1 6.4
Other pension costs 3.7 29
Total employee benefit expense 79.1 70.3

Ofthe above employee costs of the Group, £79.1 million (2017: £70.3 million) relates to continuing operations and £nil
(2017: £nil)to discontinued operations. All employee costs of the Company relate to continuing operations.

The Company has no employees (2017: no employees). The Directors of the Company are remunerated by TClarke Services
Limited. Of their remuneration, an amount of £0.1 million {2017: £0.1 million} relates to services rendered to the Company.

In the current yaar, £0.2 million {2017: £nil) was recharged to the Company from TClarke Services Limited in relation to share-

based payments for the Company's Directors.

{(ii) Monthly average number of employees

Group
2018 2017
Number Namber
Staff (including Directors) 448 417
Operatives 898 931
Total 1,346 1,348
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9 Taxation

2018 2017

£m £

Current tax expense
UK corparation tax payable on profits for the year 1.7 1.6
Deferred tax credit
Arising on:
Qrigination and reversal of iming differences {0.1) (0.1)
Total income tax expense 1.6 1.5
Reconciliation of tax charge
Profit before tax for the year 7.8 7.1
Tax at standard UK tax rate of 19% (2017: 19.25%) 1.5 1.4
Tax effect of:
Permanently disallowed items 0.1 0.1
Total income tax expense 1.6 1.5
Income tax debited/(credited) to other comprehensive income 0.1 (0.5)

A reduction in the main rate of corporation tax to 17% from 1st April 2020 had been substantively enacted at 31st December
2018 for the purposes of IAS 12 'Income Taxes’ Deferred tax balances have been assessed using an mcome tax rate of 17%,
taking into account the period over which temporary differences are expected to reverse.
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10 Earnings per share

{i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of Ordinary shares inissue during the year.

2018 2017
£m fro

Earnings:
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 6.2 5.6
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares in issue (000s) 41,531 41,625
Basic earnings per share 14.99p 13.44p

(i) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential Ordinary shares. The Company has three categories of dilutive potential Ordimary shares:
share options granted under the Savings Related Share Option Scheme and conditional share awards and options granted
under the Equity Incentive Plan. Further details of these schemes are given in note 19.

For the share options, a calculation is made to determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value
{determined as the average annuat market share price of the Company's shares} based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

2018 207
£m £m
Earnings:
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 6.2 5.6
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares in issue (000s) 41,531 41,625
Adjustments:
Savings Related Share Option Schemes 218 201
Equity Incentive Plan:
Conditional share awards 873 H49
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share {000s) 42,622 42,475

Diluted earnings per share 14.61p 13170
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10 Earnings per share continued
(iii) Underlying earnings per share

Underlying sarnings per share represents profit for the year adjusted for amortisation of intangible assets and other non-
underlying itemns and the tax effect of these items, divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue. Unaerlying

earnings is the basis on which the performance of the operating divisions of the business is measured

2018 2007

£m fm

Profit attributable to owners of the Company 6.2 5.6
Adjustments:

Amortisation of intangible assets 0.2 ¢.2

Nen-underlying costs (see note 7) - (0.8)

Tax effect of adjustments - 0.2
Underlying earnings 6.4 52
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares in issue (000s) 41,531 41,625
Adjustments:

Savings Related Share Option Schemes 218 201

Equity Incentive Plan:

Conditional share awards 873 649
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share (000s) 42,622 42 475
Diluted underlying earnings per share 14.98p 12.13p
Basic underlying earnings per share 15.38p 12.37p
11 Intangible assets

Other
ntangible
Goodwll ass0ts Total
tr £rn £m

Cost
At 1st January 2017 24.2 29 271
Additions in the year 33 - 33
At 31st December 2017 27.5 29 304
Additions in the year - - -
At 31st December 2018 27.5 29 30.4
Accumulated impairment and amortisation
At 1st January 2017 (2.2) (2.1 (4.3)
Charge for the year - (0.2 (0.2)
At 31st December 2017 (2.2) (2.3) (4.5)
Charge for the year - (0.2) (0.2}
At 31st December 2018 (2.2) (2.5) (4.7)
Net book value
At 1st January 2017 22.0 0.8 22.8
At 31st December 2017 25.3 G.6 259
At 31st December 2018 25.3 0.4 25.7
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11 Intangible assets continued

Goodwill relates to the purchase of subsidiary undertakings. Goodwithis notamortised but s tested for impairment in
accordance with IAS 346 Impairment of assets’ at least annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
a potential impairment. Other intangibie assets comprise customer refationships arising on acguisitions. Amortisation of other
intangible assets s included in administrative expenses in the mcome statement.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units as follows:

Cash-generating unit fm
TClarke London and South East 1.3
TClarke Central and South West 6.1
TClarke Scotland 31
TClarke North 4.8
Total 25.3

Value in use

The carrying value of goodwill has been compared to its recoverable amount based on the value in use of the cash-generating
units (CGUs") to which the goodwill has been allocated. Each operating division within the Group has been assessed as a
separate CGU, being the smallestidentifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other groups of assets.

Value in use has been calculated using budgets and forecasts approved by the Board covering the period 2019 to 2021, which
take into account secured orders, business plans and management actions. The results of the pericd subseguent tc 2021 have
been projected using 2021 forecasts with no growth assumed. The extrapolated cash flow projections have been discounted
using a pre-tax discount rate derived from the Company’s cost of capital.

Assumptions

The key assumptions to which the assessment of the recoverable amounts of CGUs are sensitive are the projected revenue and
operating margin to 2021 and beyond, and the discount rate applied. The range of these assumptions applied to the CGUs
within each segmentis as follows:

2018 z2017
Pre-tax discount rate 11.0% 11.0%
Average annual revenue growth (2018-2021) (2017: 2017-2020)
London & South East 6.4% {1.4%)
Central & South West 1.1% 2.3%
MNorth 2.0% 52%
Scotland 2.0% 2.9%
Operating margins (2019-2021){2017: 2017-2020)
London & South East 3.0% 2.5%
Central & South West 2.6%-2.9% 2.3%-2.6%
North 2.6%-3.0% 2.1%-4.3%

Scotland 2.1%-3.2% 21%-2.2%
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11 Intangible assets contnued

Sensitivities

For each CGU, management has considered the level of headrocom resulting from the impairment tests, and performed further
sensitivity analysis by changing the base case assumptions applicable to each CGU The sensitivities tested related to changes in
discount rate, changes in profit, delays to the business plan and a combination therecf. This analysis has indicated that ne
reasonably possible changes in any individual key assumption would cause the carrying amount of the CGU to exceed its
recoverable amount.

At 31st December 2018, based on these valuations, no increase in the impairment provision was required against the carrying
value of goodwill {2017 £ril).

An assessment of the subsidiary investments using consistent methodology amended for pre-tax cash flows indicates that there
is no reguirement for any additional impairment provision.

12 Property, plant and equipment

Plant,
machinery
Freehold Leasehold and
properties improvements vehicles Total
Group £m £m £fm £fm
Cost or valuation
At 1st January 2017 3.2 0.7 2.6 6.5
Additions - 1.1 09 2.0
Disposals (0.4) - (0.2) (0.6)
At 31st December 2017 2.8 1.8 3.3 7.9
Additions - 0.6 0.1 0.7
Disposals - - - -
At 31st December 2018 2.8 2.4 3.4 8.6
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At Tst January 2017 {0.3) (0.5) (1.8) (2.6)
Charge for the year (0.1 {0.1) (0.4) (0.6)
Disposals 0 - 0.1 0.2
At 31st December 2017 (0.3} {0.6) (2.1) (3.0}
Charge for the year (0.1) {0.6) - (0.7)
Dispesals - - - -
At 31st December 2018 (0.4) (1.2) (2.1) (3.7}
Net book value
At 1st January 2017 29 0.2 0.8 39
At 31st December 2017 2.5 1.2 1.3 49

At 31st December 2018 2.4 1.2 1.4 4.9
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12 Property, plant and equipment continued

The Group's freehold land and buildings were valued at 31st December 2011 based on an external valuation provided by an
independent valuer dated 14th October 2011, The external valuation was conducted on the basis of market value as defined by
the RICS Valuation Standards, and was determined by reference to recent market transactions on arm’s length terms. The
revaluation surplus, net of applicable deferred income taxes, was credited to other comprehensive incorme and is shown inthe
revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity. A further external valuation was concluded as at 31st January 2018 which indicated
that the market value of the Group's property was not significantly different to the book value. The net book value of the freehold
properties on a historic cost basis would have been £1.9 million (2017: 1.9 million).

The net book value of Group plant, machinery and vehicles includes £nil (2017: £0.1 million) in respect of assets held under
finance leases and hire purchase contracts. Depreciation of £nil (2017 £nil) was charged on these assets during the year.

The Group has granted a charge in favour of the TClarke Group Retirement and Death Benefits Scheme over a number of
properties occupied by the Group up to a maximum value of £3.1 million, to secure the future pension obligations of the
scheme. The book and fair value of the properties at 31st December 2018 was £2.5 million (2017: £2.5 million).

13 Investments
Investments in subsidiaries comprise:

2018 2017
fm £

Cost
At 1st January 51.3 49.3
Additions 1.5 2.0
At 31st December 52.8 51.3
Impairment
At st January (9.6) {9.6)
Charge for the year - -
At 31st December (9.6) (3.6)
Net book value
At st January 41.7 397
At 3tst December 43.2 M7

Afulllist of the Company’s subsidiaries is included in note 28 on page 116. An annual impairment review is undertaken at
31st December each year in conjunction with the goodwill impairment review {see note 11}, using the same underlying cash flow
projections and other key assumptions.

The impairment pravision comprises the entire cost of subsidiaries where operations have ceased, or a reduction to recoverable
amount where there has been a significant reduction in underlying trading and significant losses have been incurred such that
the Group 15 unable to recover the cost of the investment through its net asset value or future trading.
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14 Deferred taxation
Retrement  Acceisrated

herefit caoita

Reva'uations cbhgation  alowances Othe- Tota
Groap £m £n £n £ fr
Asset at 1st January 2017 (0.1} 35 - (0.1} 3.3
Charged to income : - - _
Credited to other comprehensive income - 0.5 - - 0.5
Asset at 31st December 2017 {(0.1) 4.0 - {01) 3.8
Charged to income - - - 041 041
Charged to other comprehensive income - - - - -
Asset at 31st December 2018 {0.1) 4.0 - - 39

The amount of deferred tax recoverable within ane year is insignificant. Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The deferred tax asset arises in respect of the deficit on the retirement benefit obligation. A deficit reduction plan is in
place to reduce this deficit aver a number of years (see note 23). The deferred tax asset will be recovered over time as the deficit
isreduced.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

2018 2017
£m frm
Deferred tax liabitities {0.1) (0.2}
Deferred tax assets 4.0 4.0
Total 3.9 3.8
15 inventories
2018 2017
£m fm
Raw materials and consumables 0.3 0.5
16 Construction contracts
2018 2017
£m £rr
Contract work in progress comprises
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses to date 310.2 2559
Less: progress payments (292.2) (235.0)
Total 18.0 209
Contracts in progress at the reporting date
Gross amounts due from customers 26.4 26.4
Gross amounts due to customers (8.4) {5.5)
Total 18.0 209

At 3tst December 2018, retentions held by customers of the Group for contract work amounted to £19.9 million (2017: £16.7 million).
These amounts are included in trade receivables (see note 17).

Aclvances received from customers for contract work amounted to £ril (2017 £nil).

Centract balance movements from the prior year closing position were due to events in the normal course of business.
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17 Trade and other receivables

Groun Corpany
2018 2017 2018 2017
fm £ £ fm
Trade receivables - gross 53.8 52.8 - -
Trade receivables - allowances for credit losses {0.7) (0.5) - -
Net trade receivables 5341 52.3 - -
Owed by Group companies - - - 0.3
Other receivables 1.4 1.1 0.1 0.6
Accrued income 12.3 10.6 - -
Prepayments 1.9 3.3 0.3 -
Total 68.7 67.3 0.4 09
Movements in allowances for credit fosses
At st January (0.5) {0.5) - -
Charged in year (0.4) (0.2) - -
Recovered in year 0.2 - - -
Written off in year - (0.2) -
At 31st December {0.7) {0.5) - -
Trade receivables (including retentions} are due as follows
Due within 3 months 239 30.6 - -
Duein 3 tc 6 months 3.8 1.8 - -
Duein 6 to 12 months 33 4.0 - -
Due after more than one year 7.3 4.4 - -
Overdue 15.5 12.0 - -
Total 53.8 52.8 - -
The ageing of trade receivables past due but not impaired
is as follows

Less than 30 days 9.5 0.5 - -
31-60 days 0.8 55 - -
61-120 days 1.1 2.5 - -
Greater than 120 days 3.4 3.0 - -
Total 14.8 1.5 - -

Allowances for creditlosses have been assessed against individual debtor balances. Where overdue balances are still
considered to be recoverable in full no allowance has been made. The allowances mostly relate to smali building contracters
who have become insolvent or are facing severe financial difficulties at present. Credit risk is spread across a large number of
customers and there are no significant concentrations of creditrisk.
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18 Trade and other payables

Group S oEny
2018 2017 2018 2017
£m fra £m £

Current
Trade payables 51.5 533 0.1 -
Owed to Group companies - - 3.6 1.4
Other taxation and social security 3.2 89 - -
Accruals 28.8 294 - ,
Deferred income 31 1.0 - -
Other payabies 1.2 1.0 - 0.5
Total 87.8 23.6 3.7 19
Non-current
Owed to Group companies (see note 28) - - 28.3 25.6
Other payables - - - -
At 31st December - - 28.3 25.6
Trade payables payment terms are as follows
30 days or less 324 224 0.1 -
31 to 60 days 9.6 189 - -
Greater than 60 days 9.5 12.0 - -
Total 51.5 533 0.1 -

19 Capital and reserves
(i) Components of owners’ equity

The nature and purpose of the components of owners’ equity are as follows:

Compuonent of owners’ equity

Dascrintion and purposc

Share capital

Share premium

ESOT share reserve

Revaluation reserve

Retained earnings

Amount subscribed for share capital at nominal value.

Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value, net of
allowabie expenses.

Acquires and holds shares in the Company to be issued to employees in
settlement of options exercised and conditional share awards under the
Group's employee share schemes.

Cumulative gains recognised on revaluation of land and buildings abeove
depreciated cost.

Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the income statement and
the statement of comprehensive income.
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19 Capital and reserves continued
(ii) Share capital and premium

Ordinary Share

shares premium

Allotted, called up and fully paid Number of shares fm £m
At 1st January 2016, 31st December 2016 and 31st December 2017 41,829,577 4,2 31
At 31st December 2018 42,868,572 4.3 3.7

All shares rank equally in respect of sharehalder rights.

(iii) Save As You Earn scheme
The following options granted to employees and Directors of the Group under the TClarke plc Savings Related Share Cption
Scheme ('the SAYE scheme’), an approved save as you earn {'SAYE') share aption scheme, were outstanding at the end of
the year:
Fair value at

Number Exercize date of

of options Grant date Excroise cate prce grant

2015 SAYE scheme 195,638 09/10/2015 01/12/2018 £9.75p 1.57p
to
31/05/2019

2018 SAYE scheme 1,471,194 24/10/2018 01/12/2021 74.88p 0.3p
to
31/05/2022

The SAYE scheme was approved by HM Revenue and Customs on 14th july 2011, In accordance with the scheme rules, all
employees of the Group with at least six menths’ continuous service were eligible to participate in the scheme, the only vesting
condition being that the individual remains an employee of the Group over the savings period. The impact of recognising the
fair value of employee share option plan grants as an expense under IFRS 2 is £nil for the year ended 315t December 2018 (2017:
fril). The scheme is open ta all eligible employeses including the Executive Directors. Under the rules of the scheme all
participating employees have entered into an approved Save As You Earn contract ('SAYE contract’} under which the employee
agrees to make monthly contributions, of between £5 and £200 in respect of the 2015 scheme and £10 to £500 for the 2018
scheme, for a pericd of three years, at the end of which the employee may use part or all of the proceeds to acquire the shares
under option. Options will be exercisable within a period of six months commencing on the date of maturity of the participants
SAYE contract.

The number of options outstanding during the year were as follows:

2018 2017

Weighted Weighted

average average

2018 exercise 2017 exercise

Number price (p} Number prce (p)

At Tst January 1,367,537 80.13 1,904,378 66.45
Granted 1,479,847 74.88 - -
Exercised (1,038,995) 69.75 (378,653) 76.64
Lapsed (141,597} 70.06 (158,188) 77.66
At 31st December 1,666,792 74.28 1,367,537 8013

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the options at 31st December 2018 was 1,118 days (2017: 334 days).

On 1st January 2018, 1,260,398 options granted under the 2015 SAYE Scheme became exercisable at an exercise price of
£9.75p per 10p Ordinary share. Options exercised during the year were satisfied by the issue of new shares.
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1¢ Capital and reserves continued

{iv) Equity Incentive Plan

All employees, including Executive Directors, are sligible to participate in the TClarke Equity Incentive Plan (the Plan'; at the
discretion of the Remuneration Committee. Awards may be made in the farm of approved options, unapproved options,
conditional awards of shares and matching awards of shares. Awards may be made in the six-week periods after adoption of the
Plan and after the announcement of the Group's interim or final results. No award may be made more than ten years after the
date on which the Plan was approved by shareholders (11th May 2011). Opticns and awards of shares are subject to performance
conditions as determined by the Remuneration Committee.

The total number of shares issued or made availzble pursuantto the Plan, when aggregated with the total number of shares
issued or made available pursuant to any other employee share scheme in the ten years immediately preceding the date upon
which an award is made, shall not exceed 10% of the Company’s issued share capital at the date of the grant.

At 31st December 2018, 806,600 conditional share awards, 60,000 conditional aptions and 510,000 conditional matching
awards have been granted under the TClarke Equity Incentive Plan as follows:

Conditional Matching Conditional Conditional

shares Conditional options awards $1ares 51ares

Date of grant 20/04/2016 20/04/2016 20/04/2016 08/05/2017 25/04/2018
Number of awards 120,G00 60,000 510,000 215,600 471,600
Share price at date of grant 88.50p 88.50p 88.50p 90.50p 83.10p
Exercise price 88.50p - 88.50p - -
Option life 3 years 3 years 3years 3 years 3 years

The conditional share awards and options will vest on the third anniversary of the date of grant, subjectto continued
employment with the Company and satisfaction of the following performance conditions:

Annual growth in underlying EPS above RPI? Proportion of award vesting

Less than 3% Nil

3% 25%

Between 3% and 10% Between 25% and 100% on a straight-line basis
Above 10% 100%

1 Tha base paint s vases on average anderlying EPS fo- the tnree vears encing with the year pracening the care af grart

Matching awards will vest three years from date of grant conditional on the Group achieving profittargets set at the beginning of
each year.

(v) Share-based payment expense

The charge to the income statement takes into account the number of shares and options that are expected to vest. The impact
of recognising the fair value of Eguity Incentive Plan grants as an expense under IFRS 2 is £0.3 millicn charge for the year ended
31st December 2018 (2017: £0.3 million).
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{vi) Dividends paid
2018 2017
fm £ni
Final dividend of 2.90p (2017: 2.70p) per Ordinary share proposed and paid during the
year relating to the previous year's resuits 1.2 1.2
Interim dividend of 0.66p (2017: 0.60p) Ordinary share paid during the year 0.3 0.2
Total 1.5 1.4

The Directors are proposing a final dividend of 3.34p (2017: 2.90p} per Ordinary share totalling £1.4 million (2017: £1.2 million}.

This dividend has not been accrued at the reporting date

20 Notes to the statement of cash flows

(i} Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

Group Carpany

2018 2017 2018 2017

£m frm £m fm

Operating profit 8.6 79 (2.1) (2.6)
Depreciation charges 0.7 0.6 - -
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment - - - -
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 0.3 0.3 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets (see note 7} 0.2 0.2 - -
Defined benefit pension scheme credit {0.2) (0.5) - -
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital 9.6 8.5 (2.1) (2.6)
Decrease in inventories 0.2 0.1 - -
Decrease in contract balances 2.9 12.6 - -
Increase in operating trade and other receivables {1.3) (23.1) (0.3) (0.7)
Increase/(decrease) in operating trade and other payables (5.2) 9.1 1.8 (3.9)
Cash generated from eperations 6.2 7.2 (0.6} (7.2)
Corporation tax paid (2.4) (0.2) (2.4) (0.7)
Interest paid (0.3) (0.2) (0.2) (0.9
Net cash generated from operating activities 3.5 6.8 (3.2) (8.2)

{(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into

cash, less bank overdrafts, and are analysed as follows.

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£m fm £fm fm
Cash and cash equivalents 12.4 16.7 4.5 5.4
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21 Bank overdrafts and loans

During the year, the Group had in place a £5 million overdraft facility and a £15 million revolving credit facility {'/RCF), both with
Naticnal Westminster Bank plc. interest is charged at 1.70% above LIBOR on drawn balances under the RCF and 2.00% above
base rate on overdrawn balances. A fee of 0.66% is payable on undrawn balances under the RCE. The RCF includes financial
covenants in respect of interest cover and net leverage ratios which are tested quarterly.

All operating companies within the Group are included within the overdraft facility, and cross guarantees and charges have
been granted in favour of Naticnal Westminster Bank ple. No value has been attributed to the guarantee contracts in the

Company’s financial statements as the amount s considered 1o be negligible.

At 315t December 2018, the Group had unused overdraft facilities of £5 million (2017: £5 million} and had £15 million undrawn
committed facilities (2017 £5 million} under the RCF.

The Group was compliant with its oblhgations under the RCF and the overdraft facility throughout the year.

22 Related party transactions
(i) Directors’ remuneration

2018 2017

£m fm

Salaries, fees and other short-term employee benefits 2.2 1.7
Termination benefits 0.3 -
Share-based payment charge 01 0.1
Post-employment benefits 0.2 0.2
Total 2.8 2.0

Further disclosures, including details of the highest-paid Director, are included in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages
50to é2.

(i) Key management remuneration
Compensation payable to key management for employee services is shown below. Following the Group reorganisation in 2017,
key management includes members of the Group Management Board.

2018 2017

£m £m

Salaries, fees and other short-term employee benefits 1.1 11
Termination benefits - -
Share-based payment charge 0.1 0.1
Post-emnployment benefits 0.1 0.1

Total 1.3 1.3
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22 Related party transactions continued
{iii) Sales and purchases of goods and services to/from subsidiaries
The amounts due from and to subsidiaries are disclosed in notes 17 and 18 respeactively.

TClarke plc was charged £0.6 million (2017: £2.4 million) by TClarke Services Ltd for Group management services and incurred
interest charges of £0.6 million {2017: £0.7 million} on intercompany loans TClarke plc charged subsicdhary companies £rul (2017
E£nil} during the year for insurance services and £nil (2017: £nil) for IT services. Sales to other Group companies of £nil (2017: £nil)
and cost of sales fram other Group companies of £nil (2017 £nil) are included in the financial statements of the Company.

The Company received a non-cash dividend of £5 0 million during the year (2017 £nil).

23 Pension commitments

Defined contribution schemes

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for all qualifying employees of all its operating companies. The
assets of these schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of the trustees.

The Group also contributes to an industry-wide, multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme on behalf of certain
employees. The asseats of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
plan exposes participating employers to actuarial risks associated with the current and former employees of other entities with
the result that there is no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, plan assets and costs to individuals
participating in the scheme, and the Group does not have access to sufficient information to ensble it to use defined benefit
accounting. Therefore, the scheme has been accounted for as a defined contribution scheme. The latest formal actuanal
valuation as at Sth April 2015 showed thatthe scheme had a funding level of 101%.

The total cost charged to income of £1.2 mithon (2017: £2.3 million) represants contributions payable to these schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the separate plans.

Defined benefit scheme
The Group operates a funded defined benefit scheme for qualifying employees. The scheme is registered with HMRC and is
administered by the trustees.

With effect from 1st March 2010, the benefit structure was altered from a final salary scheme with an acerual rate of 1/60th to a
Career Average Revatued Earnings scheme with an accrual rate of 1/80th. No other post-retirement benefits are provided. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the participating companies,

The most recent triennial actuarial valuation of the scheme, carried out at 31st December 2015 by Mr j Seed, Fellow of the
Institute of Actuaries, showed a deficit of £14.9 million, which represented a funding level of 67%. The valuation was impacted by
the significant fall in bond yields over the period leading up to the date of the valuation and a change in mortality assumpticns,
caused by macro-economic facters beyond the Group’s control. As a result, the engoing cost of funding the scheme has
increased significantly. Following agreement of the valuation, a revised funding and deficit reduction plan has been
implemented which includes making additional contributions and continuing to provide secunity in the form of a contingent
asset over the Group's property portfolio up to a combined value of £3.1 million, with the aim of eliminating the deficit by
31stMarch 2029.

From 1st April 2017, the future service contribution increased from 15.7% to 21.4% of pensionable payroll (including employee
contributions, which, following employee consultation, was increased from 8% to 10% of pensionable payrail) and the deficit
reduction contribution, which was previously set at 13.0% of pensionable payroll, was set at £1.0 million for the year ending
31st December 2017, rising to £1.25 million for the year ending 315t December 2018 and £1.5 million per annum thereafter.

As part of a Group recrganisation, a subsidiary company, TClarke Services Limited, became the principal employer of the
scheme with effect from 23rd December 2016, and the pension scheme liability and related deferred tax asset were transferred
to TClarke Services Limited at that date. The Company and its subsidiary, TClarke Contracting Limited, have provided a
guarantee to the trustees of the scheme in respect of TClarke Services Limited’s obligations to the pension scheme.
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23 Pension commitments continued

The key assumptions used to value the pension scheme liability in the financial statements are set out below:

2018 2017
% %
Rate of increase in salaries 2.65 2.65
Rate of increase of pensions in payment 3.10 3.10
Discount rate 3.00 2.60
Inflation assumption 3.35 3.35
2018 2017
The mortality assumptians used m the 1AS 19 valuat-on were: Years Years
Life expectancy at age 65 for current pensioners
- Men 21.7 22.0
- Women 23.9 24.4
Life expectancy at age 65 for future pensioners (current age 45)
- Men 22.7 233
- Women 25.2 258
The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financiat position are as follows:
2018 2017
£m fm
Present value of funded cbligations 58.8 60.0
Fair value of plan assets (35.8) (36.6)
Deficit of funded plans 23.0 23.4




23 Pension commitments continued
The movementin the defined benefit obligation is as follows:
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Present
e o Farrvaueof
20 gatwon P an 2sscts Tata
£ fr £m
At 1st January 2017 53.3 (32.7) 20.6
Current service cost 1.3 - 1.3
interest expense 1.5 (0.9) 0.6
Total 2.8 (0.9) 19
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense - (1.7) (1.7}
Loss from change in financial assumptions 3. - 3.3
Experience loss 1.1 - 1.1
Total 4.4 (1.7) 27
Contributions
Emplovers - 1.8) {1.8)
Employees 0.6 ) -
Payment from plans
Benefit payments (1.1 1.1 -
At 31st December 2017 60.0 (36.6) 23.4
Current service cost 1.6 - 1.6
Interest expense 1.6 {1.0) 0.6
Total 3.2 {1.0) 2.2
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense - 2.7 2.7
Change in demographic (1.0) - (1.0}
Loss from change in financial assumptions (3.1) - {3.1)
Experience loss 0.6 - 0.6
Total (3.5) 2.7 (0.8)
Contributions
Employers - (1.8} (1.8)
Employees 0.5 (0.5) -
Payment from plans
Benefit payments (1.4) 1.4 -
At 31st December 2018 58.8 (35.8) 23.0

Current service costis included in administrative expenses.
Interest expense is included in finance costs.

Remeaasurement gains and losses have been included in other comprehensive income/expense.
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23 Pension commitments
Plan assets are held in professionally managed multi-asset funds, cash and bank accounts managed by the trustees, and an
nsurance annuity contract. Plan assets are comprised as follows:

2018 2017
Quoted Unquoted Total % Quoted Unquoted Total %

UK quoted 11 - 1.1 3.6 - 3.6
Overseas quoted 81 - 8.1 n.7 - 1.7
Hedge funds 5.4 - 5.4 31 - 31
Structured and

alternative equities - 1.1 11.1 - - -
Total equities 14.6 1.1 25.7 71% 18.4 - 18.4 50%
Fixed interest

corporate bonds 2.5 - 2.5 - 1.7 - 1.7
Inflation-linked

bonds 01 - 0.1 - 0 - -
Government bonds 3.4 - 3.4 - 4.6 - 4.4
Total bonds 6.0 - 6.0 17% 6.3 - 6.3 17%
Property 1.0 - 1.0 3% 23 - 23 6%
Cash - 11 11 3% - 6.2 6.2 17%
Insurance annuity

contracts - 1.4 1.4 4% - 1.7 1.7 5%
Other - 0.6 0.6 2% - 1.7 1.7 5%
Total 21.6 14.2 35.8 100% 270 9.6 36.6 100%

Through the defined benefit pension scheme the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the mast significant of which are set out
below.

Asset volatility

The cbiective of the investment strategy is to have sufficient assets to pay benefits to members as they fall due. The scheme
assets are invested in a diversified portfalio of growth assets {such as multi-asset funds and equities) and matching assets (such
as bonds held in multi-asset funds and cash). Multi-asset funds include property investments. In addition, the scheme holds a
number of annuity policies which are used to back a number of pensions in payment, reducing the volatility of the results.

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference te corporate bond yields. If plan assets underperform
this yield, this will create a deficit. A significant proportion of scheme assets are held in equities, which are expected to
outperform bond yields in the long term while providing volatility and risk in the short term.

The Group believes that due to the long-term nature of scheme liabilities and the strength of the Group, itis appropriate

to continue to hold a significant proportion of the assets in equities. The proportion of equities held was increased following

a review of the investment strategy and taking into account expected improvements in equity markets and the matunity profile
of the scheme.

Change in corporate bond yields
A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value
ofthe scheme’s bond holdings.
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23 Pension commitments continued

inflation risk

Some of the pension oblgations are linked to inflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher liabilites. Caps are in place for
inflationary increases which protect the scheme against the impact of extreme inflation. The majonity of the plan's assets are
largely unaffected by inflation, meaning that any increase in inflation will also increase the deficit.

Life expectancy
Pension obligations are payable for the life of the member, and where elfected by the member, the member's spouse.

Increases in life expectancy will resultin increases in scheme habilities.

Age profile
The weighted average duration of the unsecured liabilities 1s approximately 22 years.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit ebligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Chaﬂge nassumpt on Increase n assumpticn Decrease n assumptlon
Discount rate 0.5% Decrease by 10% increased by 1%
Inflation assumption 0.5% Increase by 6% Decrease by 7%
Rate of increase in salaries 0.5% Increase by 2% Decrease by 2%
Rate of increase in pension payments 0.5% Increase by 5% Decrease by 4%
Life expectancy 1 year Increase by 4% Decrease by 4%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice,
this is unlkely to oeeur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the
defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit
obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied aswhen
calculating the pension liability recognised within the statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the
previcus period.

24 Lease obligations

{i) Obligations under finance leases
Present vaiue Df IrAImurm

Minimum lease payment lease payment
2018 2017 2018 2017
£m fm £m £m

Amounts payable under finance leases:

Within one year - 0.1 - 01
Within one to two years - - - -
Within two to three years - - - -
Within three to four years - - - -

- 0.1 - 01
Less: future finance charges - - - -

Present value of lease obligations - 0.1 - 0.1

For the year ended 31st December 2018, there was no obligations under finance leases.
For the year ended 31st December 2017, the average effective borrowing rate was 6%.
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24 Lease obligations continued
(ii) Operating lease obligations
Total outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:

Other Other

Land and operating Land ana cperst ng

buildings leases ol ngs leases

2018 2018 2017 2017

Group £m £m fm £m
Within one year 0.9 0.8 0.4 0.9
[n second to fifth year inclusive 1.3 1.4 0.1 15
Beyond five years 0.8 - - -
Total 2.9 2.2 05 2.4

25 Contingent liabilities

Group banking facilities of £20 million and surety bond facilities of £40.1 million are supported by cross guarantees given by the
Company and participating companies in the Group. There are contingent liabilities in respect of surety bond facilities,
guarantees and collateral warranties under contracting and other arrangements entered into in the normal course of business.

Group's defined benefit pension

As part of a Group reorganisation, a subsidiary company, TClarke Services Limited, became the principal employer of the
scheme with effect from 23rd December 2016, and the pension scheme liability and related deferred tax asset were transferred
to TClarke Services Limited atthat date. The Company and its subsidiary, TClarke Contracting Limited, have provided a
guarantee to the trustees of the scheme in respect ot TClarke Services Limited’s obligations to the pensicn scheme.

26 Financial instruments

(i) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that each entity within the Group will be able to: continue as a going concern; to
maintain a strong financial position to support business development, tender qualification and procurement activities; and to
maximise the overall return to shareholders over time. Dividends form an important part of the overall return to shareholders.
The Group is mindful of the need to ensure that the dividend is covered by earnings over the business cycle and paid out of cash
reserves in order to secure the long-term interests of shareholders. The Board considers that it has sufficient capital to
undertake its activities for the foreseeable future. The Group’s overall capital strategy remains unchanged from 2016.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net funds, including cash and cash equivalents, bankloans and overdrafts and
finance lease obligations, and equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company, comprising issued capital, reserves

and retained earnings. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments.

The capital structure of the Group at 31st December 2018 and 2017 was as follows:

2018 2017

£m £fm

Cash and cash equivalents 12.4 16.7
Less total borrowings - (5.1}
Net cash 12.4 11.6

Total eqguity 221 16.4




256 Financial instruments continued
(i) Financial assets and liabilities

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the bases of

113

measurement and the bases on which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset, financial
liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3. The fair value of the Group’s and the Company's financial assets and

financial liabilities is not materially different to the carrying value.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets comprise loans and receivables at amortised cost, and cash and cash equivalents as follows:

Amounts due

from
customers
Trade and under
Cash and cash other construction
equivalents receivables’ contracts Total
31st December 2018 £fm £m £m fm
Carrying value 12.4 66.8 26.4 105.6
Contractual cash flows
Less than one year 12.4 59.5 26.4 98.3
One to two years - 6.7 - 6.7
Two to three years - 0.4 - 0.4
Three to four years - 0.2 - 0.2
Total 12.4 66.8 26.4 105.6
31st December 2017
Carrying value 16.7 64.0 26.4 1071
Contractual cash flows
Less than cne year 16.7 59.6 26.4 102.7
One to two years - 3.8 - 3.8
Twao to three years - 0.6 - 0.6
Three to four years - - - -
Total 16.7 64.0 264 107.1

1 Trace enc uther recerebles exclaces prepayments
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26 Financial instruments continued

Financial liabilities - analysis of maturity dates

At 31st December 2018, the carrying value of the Group's financial Labilities and maturity profile of the associated contractual
cash flows were as follows:

Amounts due
to customers Obligations
Trade and under under
other construction Bank finance
payables’ contracts loans? leases Total
31st December 2018 £m Em £m £m £m
Carrying value 81.5 8.4 - - 89.9
Contractual cash flows
Less than one year 79.4 8.4 - - 87.8
One to two years 2.0 - - - 2.0
Two to three years 041 - - - 0.1
Three to four years - - - - -
Total 81.5 8.4 - - 89.9
31st December 2017
Carrying value 83.7 55 5.0 0.1 931
Contractual cash flows
Less than one year 80.9 5.5 0.2 0.1 85.5
One to two years 2.4 - 0.2 - 2.6
Two to three years 0.4 - 50 - 54
Three to four years - - - - -
Total 83.7 55 5.4 01 235
1 Traze cnrt other poyables excluge aeferrsaincome ana othar taxatios ani sacel secanty
2 Details of the Group s bank fauilities are giver nnote 21 nnpagye 106

(iii} Financial risk management
Financial risk management is integral to the way in which the Group is managed. The overall aim of the Group's financial risk
management policies is to minimise any potential adverse sffects on financial performance and net assets.

The Group does not enter into any derivative transactions and has minimal exposure to exchange rate movement as its trade is
based inthe United Kingdom.

The financial risks to which the Group is exposed comprise credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.
The Group seeks to manage these risks as follows:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will fail to discharge its abligations and create a financial loss. Credit risk exists, amongst
other factors, to the extent that at the reporting date there were significant balances outstanding, The Group's policy isto
mitigate this risk by assessing the creditworthiness of prospective clients prior to accepting a contract, requesting progress
payments on contract work in pregress and investing surplus cash only with large, highly regarded UK financial institutions.

The carrying value of construction contracts, trade and other receivables and cash on deposit represents the Group's maximum
exposure ta credit risk. There were no significant concentrations of credit risk at 31st December 2018,
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26 Financial instruments continued

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will not generate sufficient cash and liquid funds to be able to settle its financial liabilities
as and when they fall due. The Group manages liguidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities, by monitoring
cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities within the bounds of its contractuat obhgations.

The Group's facilities were successfully renegotiated in August 2018 and now comprise a £15 million RCF and a £5 million
overdraftfacility. The RCF is a committed facility available until 31st March 2022 and is subject to guarterly financial covenant
tests. Management has prepared three-year cash flow projections that demonstrate that the Group will be able to meet these
financial covenants. There have been no other significant changes to the nature of financial risks or the Group's objectives and
policies for managing these risks.

Based on an interest rate of 3.5%, provided that the Group is utilising its banking facilities, the effect of a delay/acceleration in
the maturity of the Group's trade receivables at the balance sheet date would be to decrease/increase profit by approximately
£0.2 million (2017 £0.2 million) for each month of delay/zcceleration, and the effect of a delay/acceleration in the maturity of the
Group's trade payables at the reporting date would be to increase/decrease profit by approximately £0.2 mittion (2017

£0.2 million} for each month of delay/acceleration. If the facilities are unused, there is no impact on profit.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to changes in interest rates on its bank deposits and borrowings. Surplus cash is placed on short-term
deposit at fixed rates of interest. Bank overdrafts are at floating rates, at a fixed margin of 2.00% above base rates. The interest
rate on amounts drawn down under the RCF are fixed at LIBOR plus 1.70% at the time of drawdown for periods of up to six
maonths. The Group's finance lease abligations are at fixed rates of interest determined at the inception of the lease.

The effect of each 1% increase in interest rates on the Group's floating and short-term fixed rate cash, cash equivalents and bank
overdrafts at the reporting date would be 1o increase profits by approximately £0.1 million (2017: £0.1 million) per annum. Details
of the Group's and the Company’s bank facilities are disclosed in note 21. Details of finance lease commitments are disclosed in
note 24.

27 Business combinations

At the time the 2017 year-end financial statements had been approved, the completion accounts for the acquisition of Eton

Associates Limited {'Eton’} had yet to be approved and, as such, the 2017 year-end financial statements included provisional

amounts for the fair value of Eton’s net assets. During 2018, the fair value of the net assets of Eton were determined. This has

resulted in the following changes to the provisional amounts recognised as at 31st December 2017, which are now reflected inthe

finalised balances in these year-end accounts {adjusted in 2017 balance sheet as required by 1AS 8):

+ Reduction in the fair value of net assets by £0.6 million results in an increase in the goodwill on the acquisition of Eton by £0.6
million

* |ncrease intrade and cther payables by £0.6 million

During 2018 a £0 5 million deferred consideration was paid to the previous owners of Eton Associates Limited. This amount was
included as a liability in the financial staterments at 31st December 2017,
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28 Subsidiary companies
All subsidharies are wholly owned by TClarke plc unless otherwise stated, and all are incorporated within the United Kingdom.

Principal operating company Type of shares
TClarke Caontracting Limited Ordinary
Group services company

TClarke Services Limited Ordinary
Property holding company

Waeylex Properties Limited Ordinary
Non-trading and doermant companies

A G Aylward EMS (Maintenance and Minor Works} Limited Ordinary
Anglia Electrical Services Limited Ordinary
D G Robson Mechanical Services Limited” Ordinary
Eton Assaciates Limited™™ Ordinary
G.D.. Electrical Co. Limited Ordinary
J.J. Cross Limited Ordinary
J.J. Cross Services Limited™ Ordinary
Mitchell and Hewitt Limited Ordinary
T. Clarke East Limited” Ordinary
TClarke Leeds Limited™ Ordinary
TClarke Newcastle Limited™ Ordinary
T.Clarke {(Northern) Limited Ordinary
T Clarke North West Limited” Ordinary
T. Clarke (Scotland) Limited™ Ordinary
TClarke South East Limited” Ordinary
TClarke South West Limited’ Ordinary

Waldon Security Limited Ordinary

* haretiansferren to 1Clorke Contract-ng Limitec on 315t Decernber 2016
* Tracetrensterniec to TClarke Contracting Linwtec on 31st Decomber 2017
s drace transteirea 1o 1Cerke Contracting Limitac on 30th Apal 2218
=+ Shares held by 1 Cross L mitea.

**=x+ Shares held by 1Clarke South West Limited

All subsidiary companies have their registered office at 45 Moorfields, London EC2Y 9AE apart from T. Clarke (Scotland) Lirnited
whose registered office is at & Middlefield Read, Middlefield Industrial Estate, Falkirk, Stirlingshire FK2 9AG and T.Clarke
{Northern) Limited whose registered cffice is at Stanhope Heouse, 116-118 Walworth Road, London SE17 1JL.

The Company elects to take the audit exemption by parent guarantee (under section 479A of Companies Act) with regards to
the financial statements for the year ended 315t December 2018, for the following subsidiaries:

T. Clarke {Scotland) Limited (Company number: SC116886)

TClarke Leeds Limited (Company number: 02023932)

TClarke Newcastle Limited (Company number: 00385749)

T Clarke North West Limited (Company number: 31808201)

Eton Associates Limited {Company number: 02820813)

*



Shareholder information

Company details
Registered office:

45 Moorfields

London EC2Y SAE
Telephone 020 7997 7400
Email: info@tclarke.co.uk

Company registration number: 119351

The TClarke plc website
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Shareholders are encouraged to visit our website www.tclarke.co.uk for further information about the Company. The dedicated
investors’ section on the website contains information specifically for sharehalders, including regulatory announcements and

copies of the latest and past financial statements,

Registrar

The Company's shareholder register is maintained by our Registrar, Link Asset Services. If you have any queries refating to your

TClarke ple shareholding, you should contact Link Asset Services directly by one of the methods below:

Email: shareholderenquiries@linkgroup.co.uk

Telephone: 0871 6464 0300
By post: The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

KentBR3 4TU

Sharehaolder Portal: www.signalshares.com
If you are yetto register, you will need your investor code.

Analysis of shareholdings

The tables below show an analysis of Grdinary shareholdings as at 31st December 2018.

Shares  Percentage Haldings  Percentage
Individuals 7962984 19% 770 73%
Banks or nominees 32,810,060 76% 249 24%
Other corporations 2,095,528 5% 29 3%
Totals 42,868,572 100% 1048 100%
Number of shares held:
110 5,000 1,095,348 2% 627 60%
5,001 to 10,000 1,091,160 2% 152 15%
13,001 10 50,000 3,679,398 9% 182 17%
50,001 to 500,000 8,765,408 21% 62 6%
500,001 to 1,000,000 9181174 21% 13 1%
1,000,001 to 5,000,000 19,056,084 45% 12 1%
5,000,001 to 10,000,000 0] 0% 0 0%
Totals 42,868,572 100% 1048 100%




118 TClarke & r1ua Roncrt 30 F vanc & Stateenrs 2013

Shareholder information continued

Independent auditor
PricewaterhaouseCocpers LLP
1 Embankment Place
London WC2N 6RH

Corporate broker
N+1 Singer

1 Bartholomew Lane
London EC2N 2ZAX
Tel: 020 7496 3000

Investor relations
RMS Partners Limited
160 Fleet Street
London EC4A 200
Tel: 020 3735 6551

Financial calendar

Annual General Meeting Final dividend for 2018

10th May 2019 Ex-dividend 25th April 2019
Record date 26th April 2019
Payment due 24th May 2019

Half Year results announcement
&th August 2019

Trading update release
28th Navember 2019

These dates are indicative only and may be subject to change.

Dividend reinvestment plan

interim dividend for 2019
Ex-dividend 5th September 2019
Record date 6th September 2019
Payment due 4th October 2019

Adividend reinvestment plan (DRIP') is available to shareholders. Those shareholders who have not elected to participate in the
DRIP and whe would like to do so, should contact cur Registrar, Link Asset Services on 0371 664 0381, The last day for election

for the final dividend for 2018 is 30th April 2019.
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TClarke Offices

TClarke operates in four geographic regions from 19 locations.
This allows us to offer UK coverage and to match our service
provision to market needs and the opportunities we target.

For full addresses and contact details for each office,
please visit our website at
www.tclarke.co.uk/locations
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